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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
b Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 2007
OR
0 Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 0-25434
BROOKS AUTOMATION, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 04-3040660
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
15 Elizabeth Drive

Chelmsford, Massachusetts
(Address of principal executive offices)

01824
(Zip Code)

Registrant s telephone number, including area code: (978) 262-2400

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes b No o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer p Accelerated Filer o Non-Accelerated Filer o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes
oNop
APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY PROCEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING
FIVE YEARS
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12,
13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed
by a court. Yes o No o
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant s classes of common stock, as of the latest practical
date, July 31, 2007:

Common stock, $0.01 par value 70,384,303 shares
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BROOKS AUTOMATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable securities

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories, net

Current assets from discontinued operations
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Long-term marketable securities

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Non-current assets from discontinued operations
Equity investment in Ulvac Cryogenics, Inc.
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities, minority interests and stockholders equity
Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

Accrued warranty and retrofit costs

Accrued compensation and benefits

Accrued restructuring costs

Accrued income taxes payable

Current liabilities from discontinued operations
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Accrued long-term restructuring

Non-current liabilities from discontinued operations
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Table of Contents

June 30,
2007

$ 302,998
57,780
108,912
107,725

22,270
599,685
77,855
8,394
315,437
80,777
22,239
10,847

$1,115,234

$ 4
55,844
7,301
11,489
21,068
4,652
18,976

17,052
136,386
9,538
3,232

149,156

September 30,
2006

$ 115,773
68,280
113,440
99,854

15,277

20,188

432,812

76,667
7,307
314,452
92,213
42,047
21,489
5,590

$ 992,577

$ 11
69,270

8,261

11,608

25,999

7,254

17,773

21,223

18,780

180,179
2

9,289
963
2,616

193,049
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Contingencies (Note 13)
Minority interests 504 394

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
and outstanding

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 125,000,000 shares authorized, 76,340,969
and 75,431,592 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2007 and

September 30, 2006, respectively 763 754
Additional paid-in capital 1,776,779 1,763,247
Accumulated other comprehensive income 15,566 15,432
Accumulated deficit (827,534) (980,299)
Total stockholders equity 965,574 799,134
Total liabilities, minority interests and stockholders equity $1,115,234 $ 992,577

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements
3
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BROOKS AUTOMATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Three months ended Nine months ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues
Product $ 156,666 $ 130,876 $477,614 $336,046
Services 33,795 32,551 99,141 84,648
Total revenues 190,461 163,427 576,755 420,694
Cost of revenues
Product 108,321 85,549 326,410 240,597
Services 24,704 22,635 70,737 53,508
Total cost of revenues 133,025 108,184 397,147 294,105
Gross profit 57,436 55,243 179,608 126,589
Operating expenses
Research and development 12,817 12,237 39,185 32,353
Selling, general and administrative 29,924 30,154 91,482 83,482
Restructuring and acquisition-related charges 411 619 3,451 3,475
Total operating expenses 43,152 43,010 134,118 119,310
Operating income from continuing operations 14,284 12,233 45,490 7,279
Interest income 4,344 4,204 8,874 11,302
Interest expense 48 2,420 503 7,166
Equity in earnings of Ulvac Cryogenics, Inc. 328 270 878 742
Gain on investment 5,110 5,110
Other (income) expense, net 491 196 1,416 @n
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes and minority interests 23,527 14,091 58,433 12,204
Income tax provision 605 553 2,729 1,745
Income from continuing operations before minority
interests 22,922 13,538 55,704 10,459
Minority interests in income (loss) of consolidated
subsidiaries 58 (316) 110 (1,082)
Income from continuing operations 22,864 13,854 55,594 11,541
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes 25) 3,308 13,273 (1,727)
83,898
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Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of
income taxes

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of

income taxes (25) 3,308 97,171 (1,727)
Net income $ 22,839 $ 17,162 $152,765 $ 9814
Basic income per share from continuing operations $ 030 $ 0.19 $ 074 $ 0.16
Basic income (loss) per share from discontinued
operations 0.00 0.04 1.30 (0.02)
Basic net income per share $ 030 $ 023 $ 204 $ 0.14
Diluted income per share from continuing operations $ 030 $ 0.19 $ 074 $ 0.16
Diluted income (loss) per share from discontinued
operations 0.00 0.04 1.29 (0.02)
Diluted net income per share $ 030 $ 023 $ 203 $ 0.14
Shares used in computing income per share
Basic 75,046 74,427 74,802 71,597
Diluted 75,737 74,566 75,376 71,792

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.

4
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BROOKS AUTOMATION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation

Discount on marketable securities
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Undistributed earnings of joint venture
Minority interests

Loss on disposal of long-lived assets
Gain on sale of software division, net
Gain on investment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and disposals:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

Accrued warranty and retrofit costs

Accrued compensation and benefits

Accrued restructuring costs

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of software division

Acquisition of Helix Technology, cash acquired net of expenses
Acquisition of Synetics Solutions, net of cash acquired
Purchases of marketable securities

Sale/maturity of marketable securities

Purchases of intangibles

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs

Net cash provided by financing activities

Table of Contents

Nine months ended

June 30,

2007

$ 152,765

24,280
5,880
(1,006)

(878)
110
568

(81,813)
(5,110)

(4,531)
(8,990)
(7,465)
(13,637)
4,212

(132)
(5,385)
(2,359)
(3,717)

52,792
(14,837)
130,393

(3%)
(306,425)
316,181

15

125,289
3)

8,295

8,292

2006
9,814

22,795
6,190
(2,856)

629
(742)
(1,082)

287

(14,257)
4,373
(6,109)
6,822
7,441
(344)
5,479
(8,168)
(4,206)

26,066

(10,976)
8,805
(46,014)

(837,012)
771,438

(113,759)

“)
2,354

2,350
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Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 852 718
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 187,225 (84,625)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 115,773 202,462
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 302,998 $ 117,837
Supplemental cash flow information
Non-cash transactions:
Acquisition of Helix Technology, net of transaction costs $ $ 447,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.

5
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BROOKS AUTOMATION, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Brooks Automation, Inc. and its subsidiaries
( Brooks orthe Company ) included herein have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. In the opinion of management, all material adjustments which are of a normal and recurring nature
necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the periods presented have been reflected.

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in our annual consolidated financial statements
have been condensed or omitted and, accordingly, the accompanying financial information should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in the Company s Annual Report on
Form 10-K, filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission for the year ended September 30, 2006.
Certain reclassifications have been made in the prior period consolidated financial statements to conform to the
current presentation.

Recently Enacted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ( SFAS ) No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20,
Accounting Changes and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements
( SFAS 154 ). SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error
corrections. It establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as the required method for reporting a
change in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to the newly adopted
accounting principle. SFAS 154 also provides guidance for determining whether retrospective application of a change
in accounting principle is impracticable and for reporting a change when retrospective application is impracticable. On
October 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 154 and did not realize a material impact on its financial position or
results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 ( FIN No. 48 ). FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in financial statements and prescribes a comprehensive model for the recognition,
measurement and financial statement disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns.
The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Generally, a company
should record the change in net assets that results from the application of FIN No. 48 as an adjustment to retained
earnings. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of FIN No. 48 and does not expect a material
impact on its financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements ( SAB 108 ) expressing the
Staff s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. There have been two
widely-recognized methods for quantifying the effects of financial statement errors: the roll-over method and the iron
curtain method. The roll-over method focuses primarily on the impact of a misstatement on the income statement,
including the reversing effect of prior year misstatements, but its use can lead to the accumulation of misstatements in
the balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand, focuses primarily on the effect of correcting the
period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income statement.
SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of financial statement errors based on the effects of the
error on each of the Company s financial statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This model is
commonly referred to as a dual approach because it essentially requires quantification of errors under both the
iron-curtain and the roll-over methods. The provisions of SAB 108 should be applied to annual financial statements
covering the first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that the adoption of SAB
108 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 will have a material impact on its financial position or results of
operations.

6
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS 157 ). SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair
value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, with earlier adoption permitted. The provisions of SFAS 157 should be applied prospectively as of
the beginning of the fiscal year in which it is initially applied, with limited exceptions. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact of SFAS 157 on its financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ( SFAS 158 ). SFAS 158
requires an employer that is a business entity and sponsors one or more single-employer defined benefit plans to:

a. Recognize the funded status of a benefit plan, measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and
the benefit obligation, in its statement of financial position. For a pension plan, the benefit obligation is the projected
benefit obligation; for any other postretirement benefit plan, such as a retiree health care plan, the benefit obligation is
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation.

b. Recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs
or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to
SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for Pensions , or SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions . Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, including the gains
or losses, prior service costs or credits, and the transition asset or obligation remaining from the initial application of
SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106, are adjusted as they are subsequently recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of those Statements.

c. Measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer s fiscal year-end statement of
financial position (with limited exceptions).

d. Disclose in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit
cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and
transition asset or obligation.

An employer with publicly traded equity securities is required to initially recognize the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as of the end of the first fiscal year ending after
December 15, 2006. Retrospective application is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential
impact of SFAS No. 158 and does not expect a material impact on its financial position and results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 ( SFAS No. 159 ). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value and is effective as of the beginning
of the Company s fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the potential
impact of SFAS No. 159 on its financial position and results of operations.

2. Stock Based Compensation

As of October 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment ( SFAS 123R ) using the modified prospective method, which requires
measurement of compensation cost for all stock awards at fair value on date of grant and recognition of compensation
over the service period for awards expected to vest.

7
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The following table reflects compensation expense recorded during the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007
and 2006 in accordance with SFAS 123R (in thousands):

Three months ended Nine months ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Stock options $ 426 $ 880 $1,867 $3,422
Restricted stock 1,248 950 3,425 2,145
Employee stock purchase plan 136 248 588 623
$1,810 $2,078 $ 5,880 $ 6,190

Equity Incentive Plans

The Company s equity incentive plans are intended to attract and retain employees and to provide an incentive for
them to assist the Company to achieve long-range performance goals and to enable them to participate in the
long-term growth of the Company. The equity incentive plans consist of plans under which employees may be granted
options to purchase shares of the Company s stock, restricted stock and other equity incentives. Under the equity
incentive plans, stock options generally have a vesting period of 4 years and are exercisable for a period not to exceed
7 years from the date of issuance. Restricted stock awards generally vest over one to four years. At June 30, 2007, a
total of 6,641,544 shares were reserved and available for the issuance of awards under the plans.

Stock Option Activity

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the nine months ended June 30, 2007:

Weighted
Number of Average
Exercise
Options Price
Outstanding at September 30, 2006 4,790,477 $ 21.51
Granted
Exercised (529,961) 12.53
Forfeited/expired (1,703,362) 26.59
Outstanding at June 30, 2007 2,557,154 $ 20.04
Options exercisable at June 30, 2007 2,188,085 $ 20.88
The options outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2007 were in the following exercise price ranges:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average
Remaining Aggregate Aggregate
Contractual Weighted-  Intrinsic Weighted-  Intrinsic
Range of Life Average  Value (in Average  Value (in
Exercise Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares (Years) Price Thousands) Shares Price Thousands)
$3.62 $18.15 1,132,069 4.17 $13.42 $5,359 784,685 $12.88 $4,137
$18.16  $24.30 999,602 240 $23.44 $ 977,917 $23.46 $
$24.31 $59.44 425,483 1.84 $29.71 $ 425,483 $29.71 $
$3.62  $59.44 2,557,154 3.09 $20.04 $5,359 2,188,085 $20.88 $4,137
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The weighted average remaining contractual life of options exercisable at June 30, 2007 was 2.7 years.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total intrinsic value, based on the Company s closing
stock price of $18.15 as of June 30, 2007, which would have been received by the option holders had all option
holders exercised their options as of that date.

No stock options were granted during the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. For the nine months ended
June 30, 2006, 217,000 stock options were granted. The weighted average grant date fair value of options, as
determined under SFAS 123R, granted during the nine months ended June 30, 2006 was $6.82 per share. No stock
options were granted during the nine months ended June 30, 2007. The total intrinsic value of options exercised
during the three month period ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $1,662,000 and $28,000, respectively. The total
intrinsic value of options exercised during the nine month period ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $2,405,000 and
$200,000, respectively. The total cash received from employees as a result of employee stock option exercises during
the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $4,485,000 and $74,000, respectively. The total cash received
from employees as a result of employee stock option exercises during the nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
was $6,614,000 and $1,143,000, respectively.

8
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As of June 30, 2007 future compensation cost related to nonvested stock options is approximately $3.1 million and
will be recognized over an estimated weighted average period of 2.0 years.

The Company settles employee stock option exercises with newly issued common shares.

Restricted Stock Activity

Restricted stock for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 was determined using the fair value method. A summary
of the status of the Company s restricted stock as of June 30, 2007 and changes during the nine months ended June 30,
2007 is as follows:

Nine months ended
June 30, 2007

Weighted
Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning of year 895,750 $ 1379
Awards granted 350,500 16.48
Awards vested (92,986) 15.40
Awards canceled (81,889) 14.51
Outstanding at end of period 1,071,375 $ 14.48

The fair value of restricted stock awards vested during the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was
$0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. The fair value of restricted stock awards vested during the nine months
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $1.4 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

As of June 30, 2007, the unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock is $9.8 million and
will be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization period of 2.6 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company s employee stock purchase plan enables eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company s
common stock. Under this plan, eligible employees may purchase shares during six-month offering periods
commencing on February 1 and August 1 of each year at a price per share of 85% of the lower of the fair market value
price per share on the first or last day of each six-month offering period. Participating employees may elect to have up
to 10% of their base pay withheld and applied toward the purchase of such shares. The rights of participating
employees under this plan terminate upon voluntary withdrawal from the plan at any time or upon termination of
employment. There were no shares purchased under the employee stock purchase plan during the three months ended
June 30, 2007. There were 118,073 shares purchased under the employee stock purchase plan during the nine months
ended June 30, 2007. At June 30, 2007, a total of 1,330,165 shares were reserved and available for issuance under this
plan.
3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 is as follows (in
thousands):

Total
Balance at September 30, 2006 $314,452
Adjustments to goodwill:
Acquisition of Helix Technology (943)
Acquisition of Synetics Solutions 1,928
Balance at June 30, 2007 $315,437
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Components of the Company s identifiable intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2007 September 30, 2006
Net Net
Accumulated book Accumulated book
Cost Amortization value Cost Amortization Value

Patents $ 9,802 $ 6,986 $ 2816 $ 9,787 $ 6,662 $ 3,125
Completed technology 66,846 21,786 45,060 66,846 14,793 52,053
License agreements 305 305 305 305
Trademark and trade
names 4,962 1,567 3,395 4,962 980 3,982
Non-competition
agreements 50 50 50 50
Customer relationships 36,500 6,994 29,506 36,500 3,447 33,053

$ 118,465 $ 37,688 $ 80,777 $ 118,450 $ 26,237 $ 92,213

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $3.9 million and $3.2 million for the three months ended June 30,
2007 and 2006, respectively, and $11.5 million and $8.5 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

4. Business Acquisitions

Helix Technology Corporation

On October 26, 2005, the Company acquired all the issued and outstanding stock of Helix Technology Corporation
( Helix ). Helix develops and manufactures vacuum technology solutions for the semiconductor, data storage, and flat
panel display markets. The Company believes that the acquisition of Helix enables it to better serve its current market,
increase its addressable market, reduce the volatility that both businesses have historically faced and positions the
Company to enhance its financial performance. The aggregate purchase price, net of cash acquired, was approximately
$458.1 million, consisting of 29.0 million shares of common stock valued at $444.6 million, the fair value of assumed
Helix options of $3.3 million and transaction costs of $10.2 million. The market price used to value the Brooks shares
issued as consideration for Helix was $15.32, which represents the average of the closing market price of Brooks
common stock for the period beginning two trading days before and ending two trading days after the merger
agreement was announced. The actual number of shares of Brooks common stock issued was determined based on the
actual number of shares of Helix common stock outstanding immediately prior to the completion of the merger, based
on an exchange ratio of 1.11 shares of Brooks common stock for each outstanding share of Helix common stock. This
transaction qualified as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Helix from the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition based upon a third-party valuation (in millions):

Current assets $ 79.9
Property, plant and equipment 15.4
Intangible assets 84.4
Goodwill 275.9
Other assets 20.8
Total assets acquired 476.4
Current liabilities 17.2
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Other liabilities 1.1
Total liabilities assumed 18.3
Total purchase price including acquisition costs $458.1

Of the $84.4 million of acquired intangible assets, the following table reflects the allocation of the acquired
intangible assets and related estimates of useful lives (in millions):

Completed and core technology $ 564 6.9 years weighted average estimated useful life
Customer and contract 6.9 years weighted average estimated economic consumption life
relationships 23.3
Trade names and trademarks 4.7 6 years weighted average estimated useful life
$ 844
10
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Synetics Solutions, Inc.

On May 8, 2006, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the Merger Agreement ) with
Synetics Solutions Inc. ( Synetics ). Brooks completed its acquisition of Synetics from Yaskawa Electric Corporation
( Yaskawa ), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Japan, through a merger that became effective
as of June 30, 2006. Synetics provides customized manufactured solutions for the North American semiconductor
equipment industry. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Synetics became a wholly owned subsidiary of Brooks. The
aggregate purchase price of Synetics, net of cash acquired, was approximately $50.2 million consisting of a
$28.6 million cash payment to Yaskawa, repayment of outstanding debt of $19.9 million and transaction costs of
$1.7 million. The acquisition of Synetics provides the Company with the opportunity to enhance its existing
capabilities with respect to manufacturing customer designed automation systems.

Also on May 8, 2006, the Company agreed to enter into a Joint Venture Agreement (the Agreement ) with Yaskawa
to form a 50/50 joint venture called Yaskawa Brooks Automation, Inc. ( YBA ) to exclusively market and sell
Yaskawa s semiconductor robotics products and Brooks automation hardware products to semiconductor customers in
Japan. This Agreement was executed on June 30, 2006.

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Synetics from the date of acquisition and recognize the
Company s equity investment in YBA which began operations on September 21, 2006.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition based upon a third-party valuation (in millions):

Current assets $ 179
Property, plant and equipment 8.6
Intangible assets 17.4
Goodwill 14.5
Other assets 0.1
Total assets acquired 58.5
Current liabilities 8.3
Total purchase price including acquisition costs $ 502

Of the $17.4 million of acquired intangible assets, the following table reflects the allocation of the acquired
intangible assets and related estimates of useful lives (in millions):

Core technology $ 42 7 years weighted average estimated useful life
Customer and contract 7 years weighted average estimated economic consumption life
relationships 4.8
Customer supply agreement 8.4 10 years weighted average estimated useful life
$ 174

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

September
June 30, 30,
2007 2006
Buildings and land $ 45942 $ 45,421
Computer equipment and software 40,659 48,476
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Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment, net

11

43,443
11,809
26,637

8,825

177,315
(99,460)

$ 77,855

$

40,475
12,078
22,873

5,380

174,703
(98,036)

76,667
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Depreciation expense was $4.3 million and $3.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and $12.8 million and $11.4 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
6. Earnings per Share

Below is a reconciliation of weighted average common shares outstanding for purposes of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share (in thousands):

Three months ended Nine months ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted average common shares outstanding used in
computing basic earnings per share 75,046 74,427 74,802 71,597
Dilutive common stock options and restricted stock
awards 691 139 574 195
Weighted average common shares outstanding for
purposes of computing diluted earnings per share 75,737 74,566 75,376 71,792

Approximately 2,769,000 and 4,527,000 options to purchase common stock and 0 and 215,000 shares of restricted
stock were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders for the
three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, as their effect would be anti-dilutive. The 2,769,000 and
4,527,000 options for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, had an exercise price greater than
the average market price of the common stock. In addition, approximately 3,194,000 and 4,961,000 options to
purchase common stock and 44,000 and 4,000 shares of restricted stock were excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, as their effect would be anti-dilutive. The 3,194,000 and 4,961,000 options for the nine months ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, had an exercise price greater than the average market price of the common
stock. These options and restricted stock could, however, become dilutive in future periods. In addition, 2,492,000
shares of common stock for the assumed conversion of the Company s convertible debt was excluded from this
calculation for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2006 as the effect of conversion would be anti-dilutive based
on a conversion price of $70.23. The Company paid off the convertible debt in full on July 17, 2006.

7. Discontinued Operations

On March 30, 2007, the Company completed the sale of its software division, Brooks Software, to Applied
Materials, Inc., a Delaware corporation ( Applied ) for cash consideration and the assumption of certain liabilities
related to Brooks Software. Brooks Software is a provider of real-time applications for greater efficiency and
productivity in collaborative, complex manufacturing environments. The Company transferred to Applied
substantially all of its assets primarily related to Brooks Software, including the stock of several subsidiaries engaged
only in the business of Brooks Software, and Applied assumed certain liabilities related to Brooks Software.

The Company recorded a gain of $83.9 million in the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 on the sale of its
discontinued software business, which is unchanged at June 30, 2007. This gain reflects the expected proceeds of
$131.1 million of cash consideration, offset by expenses of $7.6 million, a tax provision of $1.9 million, and the
write-off of net assets totaling $37.7 million.

The sale was consummated pursuant to the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of November 3, 2006
by and between the Company and Applied. Applied is among the Company s largest customers for tool automation
products. Following a bidding process in which multiple possible purchasers participated, the purchase price for
Brooks Software was determined by arm s-length negotiations between the Company and Applied. The Company sold
its software division in order to focus on its core semiconductor-related hardware businesses.
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Effective October 1, 2006, the Company s consolidated financial statements and notes have been reclassified to
reflect this business as a discontinued operation in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

The summary of operating results from discontinued operations of the software division for the three and nine
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (in thousands):

Three months ended Nine months ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Revenues $ $22,768 $47,712 $61,853
Gross profit 16,240 34,048 41,568
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before

income taxes 95) 4,011 12,578 76
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (25) 3,304 13,273 (1,781)

The income of $13,273,000 for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 includes the recognition of a tax benefit
resulting from the reversal of tax reserves due to an audit settlement of $2,100,000.

In addition, the Company recognized discontinued operations from the sale of its Specialty Equipment and Life
Sciences division (  SELS ). For the three months ended June 30, 2006, there was $4,000 of SELS activity for revenue,
gross profit and income from discontinued operations, net of tax. For the nine months ended June 30, 2006, there was
$59,000 of SELS activity for revenue and $54,000 of gross profit and income from discontinued operations, net of tax.
There was no SELS activity for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007. Due to the losses incurred since
acquisition of the SELS division, no tax benefit is reflected for the losses incurred.

Assets and liabilities from discontinued operations are as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2006
Current assets from discontinued operations $15,277
Non-current assets from discontinued operations $42.047
Current liabilities from discontinued operations $21,223
Non-current liabilities from discontinued operations $ 963

Current assets include accounts receivable and other current assets. Current liabilities include accounts payable,
deferred revenue, accrued vacation and other current liabilities. There were no SELS assets and liabilities from
discontinued operations as of September 30, 2006.

8. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is computed as the sum of the Company s net income, the change in the cumulative
translation adjustment and the total unrealized gain (loss) on the Company s marketable securities. The calculation of
the Company s comprehensive income for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (in
thousands):

Three months ended Nine months ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Net income $22.839 $17,162 $ 152,765 $ 9,814
Change in cumulative translation adjustment 368 1,558 2,092 2,493
Cumulative translation adjustment on sale of software
division (2,085)
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities (53) 52 127 480

$23,154 $18,772 $ 152,899 $12,787
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9. Restructuring-Related Charges and Accruals

The Company recorded a charge to continuing operations of $411,000 in the three months ended June 30, 2007
which primarily relates to costs for workforce reductions in the Company s operations in Germany, compared to a
charge of $619,000 in the three months ended June 30, 2006 for costs incurred related to workforce reductions. The
Company recorded charges to continuing operations of $3,451,000 in the nine months ended June 30, 2007 which
consist of $461,000 for costs incurred related to workforce reductions and $2,990,000 that relates to a vacant leased
facility in Billerica, Massachusetts, the former PRI Automation, Inc. headquarters, and fully recognizes the Company s
remaining obligation on this lease and assumes that the Company will be unable to sublease any portion of the facility
over the remainder of the lease. The Company recorded charges to continuing operations of $3,475,000 in the nine
months ended June 30, 2006 which consisted of approximately a $1,600,000 charge related to the vacant Billerica
facility and approximately $1,875,000 for costs incurred related to workforce reductions.

The activity for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 related to the Company s
restructuring-related accruals is summarized below (in thousands):

Activity Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

Balance Balance
March
31, June 30,
2007 Expense Utilization 2007
Facilities $14,478 $ $ (896) $ 13,582
Workforce-related 595 411 (398) 608

$15,073 $ 411 $ (1,294) $ 14,190

Activity Three Months Ended June 30, 2006

Balance Balance
March
31, June 30,
Helix

2006 Expense Acquisition Reversals Utilization 2006
Facilities $15,225 $ $ $ $ (831 $ 14,394
Workforce-related 5,759 845 719 (69) (2,926) 4,328
$20,984 $ 845 $ 719 $ (69 $ (3,757) $ 18,722

Activity Nine Months Ended June 30, 2007

Balance Balance
September
30, June 30,
2006 Expense Utilization 2007
Facilities $ 13,697 $ 2,990 $ (3,105 $ 13,582
Workforce-related 2,846 439 (2,677) 608

$16,543 $ 3,429 $ (5,782) $ 14,190
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Activity Nine Months Ended June 30, 2006

Balance Balance
September
30, June 30,
Helix
2005 Expense Acquisition Reversals Utilization 2006

Facilities $ 15,045 $ 1,600 $ 580 $ $ (2,831) $ 14,394
Workforce-related 8,429 3,696 2,785 (555) (10,027) 4,328
$23,474 $ 5,296 $ 3,365 $ (555 $ (12,858) $ 18,722

Workforce related charges (reversals) include $0 and $157,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and ($22,000) and $1,266,000 for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to
discontinued operations.

The Company expects the majority of the remaining severance costs totaling $608,000 will be paid over the next
twelve months. The expected facilities costs, totaling $13,582,000, net of estimated sub-rental income, will be paid on
leases that expire through September 2011.

10. Gain on Investment

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, a company in which Brooks held a minority equity interest was
acquired by a closely-held Swiss public company. The Company s minority equity investment had been previously
written down to zero in 2003. As a result, the Company received shares of common stock from the acquirer in
exchange for its minority equity interest and recorded a gain of $5,110,000.
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11. Employee Benefit Plans

The components of the Company s net pension cost relating to a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
acquired with the Helix acquisition for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (in
thousands):

Three months ended Nine months ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Service cost $ 63 $ 468 $ 189 $1,273
Interest cost 175 220 524 600
Expected return on assets 251) (253) (752) (688)
Net periodic pension benefit cost $ (13) $ 435 $ (39 $1,185

In conjunction with the acquisition of Helix, the Company closed the defined benefit pension plan to new hires and
approved the decision to freeze the plan such that no further benefits would accrue after October 31, 2006. The impact
of this decision has been reflected in the purchase price allocation described in Note 4.

The Company does not expect to make contributions to the pension plan in fiscal 2007 given that the plan has been
frozen.

12. Other Balance Sheet Information
Components of other selected captions in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in thousands):

September
June 30, 30,
2007 2006
Accounts receivable $110,362 $ 115,149
Less allowances 1,450 1,709

$108,912 $ 113,440

Inventories

Raw materials and purchased parts $ 46,062 $ 48,996
Work-in-process 35,214 25,064
Finished goods 26,449 25,794

$107,725 $ 99,854

The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties, primarily from historical information, at the
time product revenue is recognized and retrofit accruals at the time retrofit programs are established. While the
Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating
the quality of its component suppliers, the Company s warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates,
utilization levels, material usage, service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure, and supplier
warranties on parts delivered to the Company. Product warranty and retrofit activity on a gross basis for three and nine
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (in thousands):

Activity Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

Balance Balance
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2007
$12,204

Balance

March 31,
2006
$10,741

Balance

September 30,
2006
$11,608

Balance

September 30,
2005
$9,782
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June 30,
Accruals Settlements 2007
$1,953 $(2,668) $11,489
Activity Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
Balance
June
30,

Accruals  Settlements 2006
$3.401 $(3,240) $10,902

Activity Nine Months Ended June 30, 2007

Balance
June
30,
Accruals  Settlements 2007
$8,914 $(9,033) $11,489

Activity Nine Months Ended June 30, 2006

Balance
June
30,
Accruals  Settlements 2006
$9,199 $(8,079)  $10,902
15
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The accrual of $9,199,000 for the nine months ended June 30, 2006 includes the acquired warranty liability of
$1,262,000 and $309,000 from Helix and Synetics, respectively. The accrual of $3,401,000 for the three months ended
June 30, 2006 includes the acquired warranty liability of $309,000 from Synetics at date of acquisition.

13. Contingencies

There has been substantial litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights in the semiconductor
and related industries. The Company has in the past been, and may in the future be, notified that it may be infringing
intellectual property rights possessed by other third parties. The Company cannot guarantee that infringement claims
by third parties or other claims for indemnification by customers or end users of its products resulting from
infringement claims will not be asserted in the future or that such assertions, if proven to be true, will not materially
and adversely affect the Company s business, financial condition and results of operations. If any such claims are
asserted against the Company s intellectual property rights, the Company may seek to enter into a royalty or licensing
arrangement. The Company cannot guarantee, however, that a license will be available on reasonable terms or at all.
The Company could decide in the alternative to resort to litigation to challenge such claims or to attempt to design
around the patented technology. Litigation or an attempted design around could be costly and would divert the
Company s management s attention and resources. In addition, if the Company does not prevail in such litigation or
succeed in an attempted design around, the Company could be forced to pay significant damages or amounts in
settlement. Even if a design around is effective, the functional value of the product in question could be greatly
diminished.

Commercial Litigation Matters

In January 2006 a ruling was issued against the Company by a Massachusetts state court in a commercial litigation
matter involving the Company and BlueShift Technologies, Inc. Awards of damages and costs were assessed against
Brooks in January and April 2006 in the amount of approximately $1.6 million, which had been accrued for at
December 31, 2005. That ruling was affirmed by the Massachusetts Court of Appeals in June 2007 and a request for
further appellate review by the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court is now pending.

Regulatory Proceedings Relating to Equity Incentive Practices and the Restatement

On May 12, 2006, the Company announced that it had received notice that the Boston Office of the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) was conducting an informal inquiry concerning stock option grant
practices to determine whether violations of the securities laws had occurred. On June 2, 2006, the SEC issued a
voluntary request for information in connection with an informal inquiry by that office regarding a loan the Company
previously reported had been made to former Chairman and CEO Robert Therrien in connection with the exercise by
him of stock options in 1999. On June 23, 2006, the Company was informed that the SEC had opened a formal
investigation into this matter and on the general topic of the timing of stock option grants. On June 28, 2006, the SEC
issued subpoenas to the Company and to the Special Committee of the Board of Directors, which had previously been
formed on March 8, 2006, requesting documents related to the Company s stock option grant practices and to the loan
to Mr. Therrien.

On May 19, 2006, the Company received a grand jury subpoena from the United States Attorney (the DQOJ ) for the
Eastern District of New York requesting documents relating to stock option grants. Responsibility for the DOJ s
investigation was subsequently assumed by the United States Attorney for the District of Massachusetts. On June 22,
2006 the United States Attorney s Office for the District of Massachusetts issued a grand jury subpoena to the
Company in connection with an investigation by that office into the timing of stock option grants by the Company and
the loan to Mr. Therrien mentioned above. On May 9, 2007, the Company received a follow-up grand jury subpoena
from the United States Attorney s Office for the District of Massachusetts in connection with the same matters.

On July 25, 2007, a criminal indictment was filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Massachusetts charging Robert J. Therrien, the former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Company, with
income tax evasion. A separate civil complaint was filed by the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25,
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2007 against Mr. Therrien in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts charging him with
violations of federal securities laws.

The Company has been cooperating fully with both the Securities and Exchange Commission and the United States
Attorney s Office for the District of Massachusetts since the outset of their respective investigations. The Company
intends to continue to cooperate with both of these agencies. Brooks was not charged in either the SEC complaint or
the indictment. Neither the SEC nor the United States Attorney s Office has notified Brooks that it intends to bring
criminal or civil charges against Brooks relating to this conduct.

The Company continues to cooperate fully with the investigations being conducted by the SEC and the DOJ.

Private Litigation

On May 22, 2006, a derivative action was filed nominally on the Company s behalf in the Superior Court for
Middlesex County, Massachusetts, captioned as Mollie Gedell, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant Brooks
Automation, Inc. v. A. Clinton Allen, et al. The Defendants named in the complaint are: A. Clinton Allen, Director of
the Company; Roger D. Emerick, former Director of the Company; Edward C. Grady, Director, President and CEO of
the Company; Amin J. Khoury, former Director of the Company; Joseph R. Martin, Director of the Company; John K.
McGillicuddy, Director of the Company; and Robert J. Therrien, former Director, President and CEO of the
Company.

On May 26, 2006, a derivative action was filed in the Superior Court for Middlesex County, Massachusetts
nominally on the Company s behalf, captioned as Ralph Gorgone, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant
Brooks Automation, Inc. v. Edward C. Grady, et al. The Defendants named in the complaint are: Mr. Grady;

Mr. Allen; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Khoury; Robert J. Lepofsky, Director of the Company; Mr. Martin; Mr. McGillicuddy;
Krishna G. Palepu, Director of the Company; Alfred Woollacott, III, Director of the Company; Mark S. Wrighton,
Director of the Company; and Marvin Schorr, Director Emeritus of the Company.

On August 4, 2006 the Superior Court for Middlesex County, Massachusetts, entered an order consolidating the
above state derivative actions under docket number 06-1808 and the caption In re Brooks Automation, Inc. Derivative
Litigation. On September 5, 2006, the Plaintiffs filed a Consolidated Shareholder Derivative Complaint; the
Defendants named therein are: Mr. Allen, Mr. Martin, Mr. Grady, Mr. McGillicuddy, Mr. Therrien, Mr. Emerick, and
Mr. Khoury; Robert W. Woodbury, Jr., the Company s Chief Financial Officer; Joseph Bellini, former President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Company s Enterprise Software Group; Thomas S. Grilk, Secretary and General
Counsel of the Company; current employee Michael W. Pippins; Stanley D. Piekos and Ellen B. Richstone, the
Company s former Chief Financial Officers; and David R. Beaulieu, Jeffrey A. Cassis, Santo DiNaro, Peter Frasso,
Robert A. McEachern, Dr. Charles M. McKenna, James A. Pelusi, Michael F. Werner, former Officers and employees
of the Company. The Consolidated Shareholder Derivative Complaint alleges that certain current and former directors
and officers breached fiduciary duties owed to Brooks by backdating stock option grants, issuing inaccurate financial
results and false or misleading public filings, and that Messrs. Therrien, Emerick and Khoury breached their fiduciary
duties, and Mr. Therrien was unjustly enriched, as a result of the loan to and stock option exercise by Mr. Therrien
mentioned above, and seeks, on our behalf, damages for breaches of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment,
disgorgement to the Company of all profits from allegedly backdated stock option grants, equitable relief, and
Plaintiffs costs and disbursements, including attorneys fees, accountants and experts fees, costs, and expenses. The
Defendants served motions to dismiss and, in response, Plaintiffs have moved for leave to amend their Complaint. The
Proposed Amended Complaint makes allegations substantially similar to those in the Consolidated Shareholder
Derivative Complaint, and adds as Defendants Richard C. Small, Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller of
the Company, and Mr. Woolacott, Mr. Wrighton, Mr. Lepofsky, and Mr. Palepu, Directors of the Company. On
May 4, 2007, the Court granted Plaintiffs leave to file an amended complaint. On June 22, 2007, the Defendants
served Plaintiffs with motions to dismiss the amended complaint, and briefing is now in progress.

On May 30, 2006, a derivative action was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts,
captioned as Mark Collins, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant Brooks Automation, Inc. v. Robert J.
Therrien, et al. The defendants in the action are: Mr. Therrien; Mr. Allen; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Grady; Mr. Khoury;

Mr. Martin; and Mr. McGillicuddy.
17
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On June 7, 2006, a derivative action was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts,
captioned as City of Pontiac General Employees Retirement System, Derivatively on Behalf of Brooks Automation,
Inc. v. Robert J. Therrien, et al. The Defendants in this action are: Mr. Therrien; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Khoury; Mr. Allen;
Mr. Grady; Mr. Lepofsky; Mr. Martin; Mr. McGillicuddy; Mr. Palepu; Mr. Woollacott, III; Mr. Wrighton; and
Mr. Schorr.

The District Court issued an Order consolidating the above federal derivative actions on August 15, 2006, and a
Consolidated Verified Shareholder Derivative Complaint was filed on October 6, 2006; the Defendants named therein
are: Mr. Allen, Mr. Grady, Mr. Lepofsky, Mr. Martin, Mr. McGillicuddy, Mr. Palepu, Mr. Schorr, Mr. Woollacott,
Mr. Wrighton, Mr. Woodbury, Mr. Therrien, Mr. Emerick, Mr. Khoury, and Mr. Werner. The Consolidated Verified
Shareholder Derivative Complaint alleges violations of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange act; Section
14(a) of the Exchange Act; Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act; breach of fiduciary duty; corporate waste; and unjust
enrichment, and seeks, on behalf of Brooks, damages, extraordinary equitable relief including disgorgement and a
constructive trust for improvidently granted stock options or proceeds from alleged insider trading by certain
defendants, Plaintiffs costs and disbursements including attorneys fees, accountants and experts fees, costs and
expenses. On December 27, 2006, the Court granted Defendants motion to stay the federal derivative actions in favor
of the first-filed state derivative action described above.

On June 19, 2006, a putative class action was filed in the United States District Court, District of Massachusetts,
captioned as Charles E. G. Leech Sr. v. Brooks Automation, Inc., et al. The defendants in this action are: the
Company; Mr. Therrien; Ellen Richstone, the Company s former Chief Financial Officer; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Khoury;
Robert W. Woodbury, Jr., the Company s Chief Financial Officer; and Mr. Grady. The complaint alleges violations of
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 against the Company and the individual defendants; Section 20(a)
of the Exchange Act against the individual defendants; Section 11 of the Securities Act against the Company and
Messrs. Grady, Woodbury, Emerick, Khoury and Therrien; Section 12 of the Securities Act against the Company and
Messrs. Grady, Woodbury, Emerick, Khoury and Therrien; and Section 15 of the Securities Act against
Messrs. Grady, Woodbury, Emerick, Khoury and Therrien. The complaint seeks, inter alia, damages, including
interest, and plaintiff s costs.

On July 19, 2006, a putative class action was filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Massachusetts, captioned as James R. Shaw v. Brooks Automation, Inc. et al., No. 06-11239-RWZ. The Defendants in
the case are the Company, Mr. Therrien, Ms. Richstone, Mr. Emerick, Mr. Khoury, Mr. Woodbury, and Mr. Grady.
The complaint alleges violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 against all defendants and
violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act against all individual defendants. The complaint seeks, inter alia,
damages, including interest, and plaintiff s costs. On December 13, 2006, the Court issued an order consolidating the
Shaw action with the Leech action described above and appointing a lead plaintiff and lead counsel. The lead plaintiff
has filed a Consolidated Amended Complaint. Motions to dismiss have been filed by all defendants in the case. In
partial response to defendants motions to dismiss, the lead plaintiff filed a motion to amend the complaint to add a
named plaintiff on May 10, 2007. Defendants filed their opposition to this motion. On June 26, 2007, the Court heard
argument on defendants motions to dismiss and lead plaintiff s motion to amend the complaint. The Court took the
motions under advisement.

On August 22, 2006, an action captioned as Mark Levy v. Robert J. Therrien and Brooks Automation, Inc., was
filed in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, seeking recovery, on behalf of the Company,
from Mr. Therrien under Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for alleged short-swing profits earned
by Mr. Therrien due to the loan and stock option exercise in November 1999 referenced above, and a sale by
Mr. Therrien of Brooks stock in March 2000. The Complaint seeks disgorgement of all profits earned by Mr. Therrien
on the transactions, attorneys fees and other expenses. On February 20, 2007, a second Section 16(b) action,
concerning the same loan and stock option exercise in November 1999 discussed above and seeking the same remedy,
was filed in the United States District Court of the District of Delaware, captioned Aron Rosenberg v. Robert J.
Therrien and Brooks Automation, Inc. On April 4, 2007, the Court issued an order consolidating the Levy and
Rosenberg actions. Defendants have filed motions to dismiss.
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The Company is aware of additional proposed class actions, posted on the websites of various law firms. The
Company is not yet aware of the filing of any such actions and has not been served with a complaint or any other
process in any of these matters.

Matter to which the Company is Not a Party

Jenoptik-Asyst Litigation

The Company acquired certain assets, including a transport system known as IridNet, from the Infab division of
Jenoptik AG on September 30, 1999. Asyst Technologies, Inc. had previously filed suit against Jenoptik AG and other
defendants, or collectively, the defendants, in the Northern District of California charging that products of the
defendants, including IridNet, infringe Asyst s U.S. Patent Nos. 4,974,166, or the 166 patent, and 5,097,421, or the 421
patent. Asyst later withdrew its claims related to the 166 patent from the case. Summary judgment of noninfringement
was granted in that case by the District Court and judgment was issued in favor of Jenoptik on the ground that the
product at issue did not infringe the asserted claims of the 421 patent. Following certain rulings and findings adverse
to Jenoptik, on August 3, 2007 the District Court issued final judgment in favor of Jenoptik. The Company does not
know whether Asyst will appeal this judgment.

The Company had received notice that Asyst might amend its complaint in this Jenoptik litigation to name Brooks
as an additional defendant, but no such action was ever taken. Based on the Company s investigation of Asyst s
allegations, the Company does not believe it is infringing any claims of Asyst s patents. Asyst may decide to seek to
prohibit the Company from developing, marketing and using the IridNet product without a license. The Company
cannot guarantee that a license would be available to Brooks on reasonable terms, if at all. In any case, the Company
could face litigation with Asyst. Jenoptik has agreed to indemnify the Company for any loss Brooks may incur in this
action.

14. Subsequent Event

Tender Offer of the Company s Common Stock

On May 31, 2007, the Company announced that its Board of Directors (Board) had authorized a modified Dutch
Auction self-tender offer to purchase up to 6,060,000 shares of its common stock, representing approximately 8% of
its approximately 75.8 million outstanding shares as of April 30, 2007. This transaction closed on July 5, 2007. In the
tender offer, shareholders had the opportunity to tender some or all of their shares at a price not less than $16.50 per
share or more than $19.00 per share, net to the seller in cash, without interest. The tender offer commenced on June 1,
2007 and expired on June 28, 2007. This action followed the closing of the Company s recent sale of the Brooks
Software Division, which generated proceeds to the Company that strengthened its cash assets. Following the sale of
the Brooks Software Division, the Board determined that the best use for much of the cash generated in that
transaction was to invest in Brooks through a share repurchase returning money to its shareholders.

On July 5, 2007, the Company announced the final results of its modified Dutch Auction tender offer. In
accordance with the terms and conditions of the tender offer, the Company accepted for purchase 6,060,000 shares of
its common stock at a purchase price of $18.20 per share, for a total cost of approximately $110.3 million. The total
shares tendered before proration was approximately 7,400,000 common shares. Since the offer was oversubscribed,
the number of shares that the Company accepted for purchase from each tendering shareholder was prorated, based
upon the proration procedures described in the Offer to Purchase mailed to shareholders and certain other limited
exceptions. Shareholders who validly tendered shares at a price equal to or below $18.20 per share had approximately
82% of those shares accepted for purchase. The depositary promptly issued payment for the shares accepted for
purchase in the tender. Any shares properly tendered and not properly withdrawn, but not purchased, were returned
promptly to stockholders by the depositary. Brooks financed the tender offer with available cash on hand.
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Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Certain statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q constitute forward-looking statements which involve
known risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, our performance or our achievements
to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Such factors include the Risk Factors which are set forth in our Annual Report on Form
10-K and which are incorporated herein by reference and summarized in Part II, Item 1A of this report. Precautionary
statements made in our Annual Report on Form 10-K or in Part II, Item 1A of this report should be read as being
applicable to all related forward-looking statements whenever they appear in this report.

Overview

Brooks Automation, Inc. ( Brooks , we , us or our )is aleading supplier of technology products and solutions
primarily serving the worldwide semiconductor market. We supply products and services to both chip manufacturers
and original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, who make semiconductor device manufacturing equipment. We are
a technology and market leader with offerings ranging from individual hardware modules to fully integrated systems
as well as services to install and support our products world-wide. Although our core business addresses the
increasingly complex automation and integrated subsystems requirements of the global semiconductor industry, we
also provide solutions for a number of related industries, including the flat panel display manufacturing, data storage
and certain other industries which have complex manufacturing environments.

Our business is significantly dependent on capital expenditures by semiconductor manufacturers, which in turn are
dependent on the current and anticipated market demand for integrated circuit ( IC ) chips and electronics equipment.
To maintain manufacturing leadership and growth in the semiconductor industry, companies make significant capital
expenditures in manufacturing equipment and investments in research and development. For example, investments in
the production of chips that use advanced 90-nanometer ( nm ) and 65nm process technology are the enablers
(increased chip performance, decreased power consumption and reduced cost) for a broad range of new products that
are expected to help drive growth in the chip industry. Further advances in IC designs utilizing 45nm and smaller sizes
continue to enable innovation and are driving the need for new manufacturing facilities and new generation processing
equipment.

We offer a wide range of wafer handling products, vacuum subsystems and wafer transport platforms for use
within the semiconductor process and metrology equipment. Our automation hardware products, historically the core
products of Brooks, include wafer transfer robots and platforms, or systems that operate in either vacuum or
atmospheric environments that are sold to equipment manufacturers. We also provide hardware directly to fabs
including equipment for lithography that automate the storage, inspection and transport of photomasks, or reticles.
Our vacuum products and subsystems include vacuum technology solutions such as cryogenic pumps for creating
vacuum, products for measuring vacuum, and thermal management products that are used in manufacturing
equipment for the semiconductor, data storage and flat panel display industries. Additionally, the Company leverages
its domain knowledge and manufacturing expertise, enhanced by the acquisition of Synetics Solutions, to build
customer-designed automation ( CDA ) systems, or contract automation systems, in a program designed to help
customers outsource their automation. The primary customers for these solutions are manufacturers of process
equipment. Finally, the global customer service offerings provide customers with support for all our hardware
offerings.

We are currently focusing our major efforts in the following aspects of our business:

Implementing global sourcing and manufacturing efficiency through expanded operations in the U.S., Mexico
and Asia to be close to the customer;

Expanding our vacuum business globally with new products and new channels such as our joint venture in
Japan with Yaskawa;

Expanding our sales of equipment automation to the larger vertically integrated OEMs with new integrated

sub-system and automation system platforms, and through our CDA business; and
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Sizing our business appropriately given the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry.
Recent Developments

We completed the sale of our software division on March 30, 2007. Effective October 1, 2006, our consolidated
financial statements and notes have been reclassified to reflect this business as a discontinued operation.

On May 31, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors (Board) had authorized a modified Dutch Auction
self-tender offer to purchase up to 6,060,000 shares of our common stock, representing approximately 8% of our
approximately 75.8 million outstanding shares as of April 30, 2007. This transaction closed on July 5, 2007. In the
tender offer, shareholders had the opportunity to tender some or all of their shares at a price not less than $16.50 per
share or more than $19.00 per share, net to the seller in cash, without interest. The tender offer commenced on June 1,
2007 and expired on June 28, 2007. This action followed the closing of our recent sale of the Brooks Software
Division, which generated proceeds to us that strengthened our cash assets. Following the sale of the Brooks Software
Division, the Board determined that the best use for much of the cash generated in that transaction was to invest in
Brooks through a share repurchase returning money to our shareholders.

On July 5, 2007, we announced the final results of our modified Dutch Auction tender offer. In accordance with the
terms and conditions of the tender offer, we accepted for purchase 6,060,000 shares of our common stock at a
purchase price of $18.20 per share, for a total cost of approximately $110.3 million. The total shares tendered before
proration was approximately 7,400,000 common shares. Since the offer was oversubscribed, the number of shares that
we accepted for purchase from each tendering shareholder was prorated, based upon the proration procedures
described in the Offer to Purchase mailed to shareholders and certain other limited exceptions. Shareholders who
validly tendered shares at a price equal to or below $18.20 per share had approximately 82% of those shares accepted
for purchase. The depositary promptly issued payment for the shares accepted for purchase in the tender. Any shares
properly tendered and not properly withdrawn, but not purchased, were returned promptly to stockholders by the
depositary. We financed the tender offer with available cash on hand.

Three and Nine Months Ended June 30, 2007, Compared to Three and Nine Months Ended June 30, 2006
Revenues

We reported revenues of $190.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $163.4 million in
the three months ended June 30, 2006, a 16.6% increase. The increase primarily reflects the additional revenues of
$24.8 million related to the Synetics acquisition along with incremental vacuum product license revenues of
$8.5 million, offset by lower revenues for automation products due to a slowdown in capital spending in the
semiconductor industry. Our revenues for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 were $576.8 million, compared to
$420.7 million in the same prior year period, a 37.1% increase. This increase reflects the additional revenues of
$72.0 million related to the Synetics acquisition, along with higher revenues of $34.6 million from automation
products due to higher demand for semiconductor capital equipment primarily from large OEM equipment suppliers,
higher revenues of $22.9 million from vacuum products due to higher demand, additional license revenues and an
additional month of activity in the first three quarters of fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006 as the Helix
transaction closed one month into this period in 2006, higher customer support revenues of $11.8 million, and higher
revenues of $14.8 million for legacy CDA systems.

Product revenues increased $25.8 million, or 19.7%, to $156.7 million, in the three months ended June 30, 2007,
from $130.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2006. This increase is primarily attributable to the additional
revenues of $23.7 million related to the Synetics acquisition along with incremental vacuum product license revenues
of $8.5 million, offset by lower revenues for automation products due to a slowdown in capital spending in the
semiconductor industry. Service revenues increased $1.3 million to $33.8 million in the three months ended June 30,
2007. This increase primarily reflects additional revenues of $1.1 million related to the Synetics acquisition.

Product revenues increased $141.6 million, or 42.1%, to $477.6 million, in the nine months ended June 30, 2007,
from $336.0 million in the nine months ended June 30, 2006. This increase is primarily attributable to the additional
revenues of $69.1 million related to the Synetics acquisition, along with higher revenues of $30.9 million for
automation products, principally vacuum systems, due to higher demand for semiconductor capital equipment
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primarily from large OEM equipment suppliers, higher revenues of $22.9 million from vacuum products due to higher
demand, additional license revenues and an additional month of activity in the first three quarters of fiscal year 2007
compared to fiscal year 2006 as the Helix transaction closed one month into this period in 2006, and higher revenue of
$14.7 million from legacy CDA systems. Service revenues increased $14.5 million, or 17.1%, to $99.1 million in the
nine months ended June 30, 2007. This increase reflects additional revenues of $2.8 million related to the Synetics
acquisition, along with higher revenues from services agreements of $2.8 million and repair services of $5.3 million.

Revenues outside the United States were $54.9 million, or 28.8% of revenues, and $202.0 million, or 35.0% of
revenues, in the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to $62.6 million, or 38.3% of
revenues, and $163.1 million, or 38.8% of revenues, in the three and nine months ended June 30, 2006, respectively.
We expect that foreign revenues will continue to account for a significant portion of total revenues. The current
international component of revenues is not indicative of the future international component of revenues.

Gross Margin

Gross margin dollars increased to $57.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 or $59.7 million
excluding $2.3 million of completed technology amortization, compared to $55.2 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2006, or $57.4 million excluding $2.2 million of completed technology amortization. The overall increase in
gross margin dollars primarily reflects the additional margin of $3.7 million related to the Synetics acquisition, along
with the incremental margin from the vacuum product license revenue, offset by lower margin related to automation
products due to unfavorable absorption variances and additional inventory provisions and disposals. Gross margin
percentage decreased to 30.1% for the three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to 33.8% for the three months
ended June 30, 2006, primarily due to the lower margin on the additional Synetics revenues.

Gross margin dollars increased to $179.6 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 or $186.6 million
excluding $7.0 million of completed technology amortization, compared to $126.6 million for the nine months ended
June 30, 2006, or $143.6 million excluding a $11.2 million charge to write-off the remaining step-up in inventory
related to the Helix acquisition and $5.8 million of completed technology amortization. Gross margin percentage
increased to 31.1% for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, compared to 30.1% for the nine months ended June 30,
2006. Excluding the $11.2 million inventory write-off taken in the first half of fiscal year 2006 and the amortization of
completed technology, the overall increase in gross margin primarily reflects the additional margin of $12.3 million
related to the Synetics acquisition, along with higher margin of $14.6 million from higher sales of automation
products and higher margin of $8.9 million on higher revenues from vacuum products.

Gross margin on product revenues was $48.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 or $50.6 million
excluding $2.3 million of completed technology amortization, compared to $45.3 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2006, or $47.5 million excluding $2.2 million of completed technology amortization. The overall increase in
product gross margin dollars primarily reflects the additional margin of $3.2 million related to the Synetics
acquisition, along with the incremental margin from the vacuum product license revenue, offset by lower margin
related to automation products due to unfavorable absorption variances and additional inventory provisions and
disposals. Gross margin percentage on product revenues decreased to 30.8% for the three months ended June 30,
2007, compared to 34.6% for the three months ended June 30, 2006, primarily due to the lower margin on the
additional Synetics revenues.

Gross margin on product revenues increased to $151.2 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007 or
$158.2 million excluding $7.0 million of completed technology amortization, compared to $95.4 million for the nine
months ended June 30, 2006, or $112.4 million excluding a $11.2 million charge to write-off the remaining step-up in
inventory related to the Helix acquisition and $5.8 million of completed technology amortization. Gross margin
percentage increased to 31.7% for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, compared to 28.4% for the nine months
ended June 30, 2006. Excluding the $11.2 million inventory write-off taken in the first half of fiscal year 2006 and the
amortization of completed technology, the overall increase in gross margin primarily reflects the additional margin of
$11.2 million related to the Synetics acquisition, along with higher margin of $14.6 million from higher sales of
automation products and higher margin of $8.9 million on higher revenues from vacuum products.
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Gross margin on service revenues was $9.1 million or 26.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2007, compared
to $9.9 million or 30.4% in the three months ended June 30, 2006. Gross margin on service revenues was
$28.4 million or 28.7% for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $31.1 million or 36.8% in the nine
months ended June 30, 2006. This decrease in gross dollars and percentage is primarily attributable to higher materials
costs incurred on customer service, upgrade and repairs programs as well as higher warranty-related spending.
Research and Development

Research and development expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2007, were $12.8 million, an increase of
$0.6 million, compared to $12.2 million in the three months ended June 30, 2006. Research and development
expenses for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, were $39.2 million, an increase of $6.8 million, compared to
$32.4 million in the nine months ended June 30, 2006. Research and development expenses decreased as a percentage
of revenues to 6.7% in the three months ended June 30, 2007 from 7.5% in the three months ended June 30, 2006, and
also decreased to 6.8% in the nine months ended June 30, 2007 compared to 7.7% in the nine months ended June 30,
2006. The increase in absolute spending in the three months ended June 30, 2007 is primarily attributable to the
additional spending of $1.1 million related to the Synetics acquisition. The increase in absolute spending in the nine
months ended June 30, 2007 is attributable to the additional spending of $3.2 million related to the Synetics
acquisition, along with higher spending of $3.6 million associated with the legacy Brooks business. The decrease as a
percentage of revenues was primarily the result of continued focus on controlling costs as well as higher revenue
levels against which these costs are measured.
Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses were $29.9 million for the three months ended June 30,
2007, a decrease of $0.3 million, compared to $30.2 million in the three months ended June 30, 2006. SG&A expenses
were $91.5 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, an increase of $8.0 million, compared to $83.5 million in
the nine months ended June 30, 2006. SG&A expenses decreased as a percentage of revenues, to 15.7% in the three
months ended June 30, 2007 from 18.5% in the three months ended June 30, 2006, and also decreased to 15.9% in the
nine months ended June 30, 2007 compared to 19.8% in the nine months ended June 30, 2006. The decrease in
absolute spending in the three months ended June 30, 2007 is primarily attributable to lower legal expenses arising out
of matters described more fully in the Contingencies note to the consolidated financial statements of $1.5 million
along with lower management incentive charges of $2.8 million, offset by additional expenses of $1.9 million related
to the Synetics business and other increased SG&A costs of $2.1 million. The increase in absolute spending in the
nine months ended June 30, 2007 is primarily attributable to additional expenses of $5.4 million related to the
Synetics business, higher legal expenses arising out of matters described more fully in the Contingencies note to the
consolidated financial statements of $1.6 million, and other increased SG&A costs of $1.0 million.
Restructuring and Acquisition-related Charges

We recorded a charge to continuing operations of $0.4 million in the three months ended June 30, 2007 which
primarily relates to costs for workforce reductions in our operations in Germany, compared to charges of $0.6 million
in the three months ended June 30, 2006 for costs incurred related to workforce reductions. We recorded charges to
continued operations of $3.5 million in the nine months ended June 30, 2007 which consisted of $0.5 million for costs
incurred related to workforce reductions and $3.0 million to fully recognize our remaining obligation on the lease
associated with our vacant facility in Billerica, Massachusetts. We recorded charges to continuing operations of
$3.5 million in the nine months ended June 30, 2006 which consisted of a $1.6 million charge related to the vacant
Billerica facility and $1.9 million for costs incurred related to workforce reductions.
Interest Income and Expense

Interest income increased by $0.1 million, to $4.3 million, in the three months ended June 30, 2007, from
$4.2 million in the three months ended June 30, 2006. Interest income decreased by $2.4 million, to $8.9 million, in
the nine months ended June 30, 2007, from $11.3 million in the nine months ended June 30, 2006. This decrease is
primarily the result of lower investment balances in the first half of fiscal year 2007 following the repayment of the
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Convertible Subordinated Notes in the quarter ended September 30, 2006. Interest expense decreased by $2.3 million,
to $0.1 million, in the three months ended June 30, 2007, from $2.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2006.
Interest expense decreased by $6.7 million, to $0.5 million, in the nine months ended June 30, 2007, from $7.2 million
for the nine months ended June 30, 2006. The interest expense incurred in the prior periods related primarily to the
Convertible Subordinated Notes that were paid off in the quarter ended September 30, 2006.

Equity in Earnings of ULVAC Cryogenics, Inc.

Income associated with our 50% interest in ULVAC Cryogenics, Inc., a joint venture with ULVAC Corporation of
Chigasaki, Japan, was $0.3 million and $0.9 million in the three and nine months ended June 30, 2007, compared to
$0.3 million and $0.7 million for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2006.

Gain on Investment

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, a company in which Brooks held a minority equity interest was
acquired by a closely-held Swiss public company. Our minority equity investment had been previously written down
to zero in 2003. As a result, we received shares of common stock from the acquirer in exchange for our minority
equity interest and recorded a gain of $5.1 million.

Other (Income) Expense

We recorded other expense, net of $0.5 million in the three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $0.2 million
in the three months ended June 30, 2006. For the nine months ended June 30, 2007, we recorded other expense, net of
$1.4 million compared to other income, net of $0.1 million in the nine months ended June 30, 2006. This increase in
expense in both the three and nine month periods is primarily due to foreign exchange losses.

Income Tax Provision

We recorded an income tax provision of $0.6 million and $2.7 million in the three and nine months ended June 30,
2007, respectively, compared to a provision of $0.6 million and $1.7 million in the three and nine months ended
June 30, 2006, respectively. The tax provision recorded for both periods was primarily due to alternative minimum
taxes along with foreign income and withholding taxes. We continued to provide a full valuation allowance for our net
deferred tax assets at June 30, 2007, as we believe it is more likely than not that the future tax benefits from
accumulated net operating losses and deferred taxes will not be realized. We continue to assess the need for the
valuation allowance at each balance sheet date based on all available evidence. However, it is possible that the more
likely than not criterion could be met in fiscal 2007 or a future period, which could result in the reversal of a
significant portion or all of the valuation allowance, which, at that time, would be recorded as a tax benefit in the
consolidated statement of operations.

We are subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the
world-wide provision for income taxes. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of
resolution of any particular tax matter, we believe that the tax reserves reflect the probable outcome of known
contingencies. Tax reserves established include, but are not limited to, business combinations, transfer pricing,
withholding taxes, and various state and foreign audit matters, some of which may be resolved in the near future
resulting in an adjustment to the reserve.

Discontinued Operations

We completed the sale of our software division to Applied Materials on March 30, 2007. We recorded income
from the operation of our discontinued software business of $13.3 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007,
compared to a loss of $1.7 million associated with this business for the nine months ended June 30, 2006. This
favorable change is primarily the result of reduced research and development and SG&A spending, lower amortization
of completed technology and the recognition of a tax benefit resulting from the reversal of tax reserves due to an audit
settlement.

We recorded a gain of $83.9 million in the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 on the sale of our discontinued
software business, which is unchanged at June 30, 2007. This gain reflects the expected proceeds of $131.1 million
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of cash consideration, offset by expenses of $7.6 million, a tax provision of $1.9 million, and the write-off of net
assets totaling $37.7 million.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is significantly dependent on capital expenditures by semiconductor manufacturers and OEM s that
are, in turn, dependent on the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors. Demand for semiconductors
is cyclical and has historically experienced periodic downturns. In response to this cyclicality, we implement cost
reduction programs aimed at aligning our ongoing operating costs with our currently expected revenues over the near
term. These cost management initiatives have included consolidating facilities, reductions to headcount, salary and
wage reductions and reduced spending. The cyclical nature of the industry make estimates of future revenues, results
of revenues, results of operations and net cash flows inherently uncertain.

At June 30, 2007, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities aggregating $369.2 million. This
amount was comprised of $303.0 million of cash and cash equivalents, $57.8 million of investments in short-term
marketable securities and $8.4 million of investments in long-term marketable securities. At September 30, 2006, we
had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities aggregating $191.4 million. This amount was comprised of
$115.8 million of cash and cash equivalents, $68.3 million of investments in short-term marketable securities and
$7.3 million of investments in long-term marketable securities.

Cash provided by operations was $52.8 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, and was primarily
attributable to our net income of $152.8 million, non-cash depreciation and amortization of $24.3 million and
compensation expense related to common stock and options of $5.9 million, partially offset by the working capital
adjustments related to the sale of our software division of $81.8 million, the gain on investment of $5.1 million and a
decrease in cash of $42.0 million due to net working capital changes. This change in working capital was primarily the
result of decreased accounts payable levels of $13.6 million, an increased inventory balance of $9.0 million, an
increase in prepaid expenses of $7.5 million, a decrease in accrued compensation and benefits of $5.4 million and
increased accounts receivable balances of $4.5 million.

Cash provided by investing activities was $125.3 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, and is
principally comprised of proceeds from the sale of our software business of $130.4 million and net sales of marketable
securities of $9.8 million, partially offset by $14.8 million used for capital additions.

Cash provided by financing activities was $8.3 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2007, and is primarily
due to the issuance of stock under our employee stock purchase plan and the exercise of options to purchase our
common stock.

While we have no significant capital commitments, as we expand our product offerings, we anticipate that we will
continue to make capital expenditures to support our business and improve our computer systems infrastructure. We
may also use our resources to acquire companies, technologies or products that complement our business.

At June 30, 2007, we had approximately $0.7 million of an uncommitted demand promissory note facility still in
use, all of it for letters of credit.

On July 5, 2007, we announced the final results of our modified Dutch Auction tender offer. In accordance with the
terms and conditions of the tender offer, we accepted for purchase 6,060,000 shares of our common stock at a
purchase price of $18.20 per share, for a total cost of approximately $110.3 million. We financed the tender offer with
available cash on hand.

We believe that we have adequate resources to fund our currently planned working capital and capital expenditure
requirements for both the short and long-term. However, the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry makes it
difficult for us to predict future liquidity requirements with certainty. We may be unable to obtain any required
additional financing on terms favorable to us, if at all. If adequate funds are not available on acceptable terms, we may
be unable to fund our expansion, successfully develop or enhance products, respond to competitive pressure or take
advantage of acquisition opportunities, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our
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business. In addition, we are subject to litigation related to our stock-based compensation restatement which could
have an adverse affect on our existing resources.
Recently Enacted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ( SFAS ) No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20,
Accounting Changes and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements
( SFAS 154 ). SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error
corrections. It establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as the required method for reporting a
change in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to the newly adopted
accounting principle. SFAS 154 also provides guidance for determining whether retrospective application of a change
in accounting principle is impracticable and for reporting a change when retrospective application is impracticable. On
October 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 154 and did not realize a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 ( FIN No. 48 ). FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in financial statements and prescribes a comprehensive model for the recognition,
measurement and financial statement disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns.
The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Generally, a company
should record the change in net assets that results from the application of FIN No. 48 as an adjustment to retained
earnings. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of FIN No. 48 and do not expect a material impact on our
financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements ( SAB 108 ) expressing the
Staff s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. There have been two
widely-recognized methods for quantifying the effects of financial statement errors: the roll-over method and the iron
curtain method. The roll-over method focuses primarily on the impact of a misstatement on the income statement,
including the reversing effect of prior year misstatements, but its use can lead to the accumulation of misstatements in
the balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand, focuses primarily on the effect of correcting the
period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income statement.
SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of financial statement errors based on the effects of the
error on each of our financial statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This model is commonly
referred to as a dual approach because it essentially requires quantification of errors under both the iron-curtain and
the roll-over methods. The provisions of SAB 108 should be applied to annual financial statements covering the first
fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. We do not expect that the adoption of SAB 108 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 will have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS 157 ). SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair
value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, with earlier adoption permitted. The provisions of SFAS 157 should be applied prospectively as of
the beginning of the fiscal year in which it is initially applied, with limited exceptions. We are currently evaluating the
potential impact of SFAS 157 on our financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ( SFAS 158 ). SFAS 158
requires an employer that is a business entity and sponsors one or more single-employer defined benefit plans to:
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a. Recognize the funded status of a benefit plan, measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and
the benefit obligation, in its statement of financial position. For a pension plan, the benefit obligation is the projected
benefit obligation; for any other postretirement benefit plan, such as a retiree health care plan, the benefit obligation is
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation.

b. Recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs
or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to
SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for Pensions , or SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions . Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, including the gains
or losses, prior service costs or credits, and the transition asset or obligation remaining from the initial application of
SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106, are adjusted as they are subsequently recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of those Statements.

c. Measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer s fiscal year-end statement of
financial position (with limited exceptions).

d. Disclose in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit
cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and
transition asset or obligation.

An employer with publicly traded equity securities is required to initially recognize the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as of the end of the first fiscal year ending after
December 15, 2006. Retrospective application is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of
SFAS No. 158 and do not expect a material impact on our financial position and results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 ( SFAS No. 159 ). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value and is effective as of the beginning
of our fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of SFAS
No. 159 on our financial position and results of operations.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Our primary market risk exposures are to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. A portion of our business is
conducted outside the United States through foreign subsidiaries which maintain accounting records in their local
currencies. Consequently, some of our assets and liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the United Stated
dollar. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates affect the carrying amount of these assets and liabilities and
our operating results. We do not enter into market risk sensitive instruments to hedge these exposures.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this Report, and
pursuant to Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company s chief executive
officer and chief financial officer have concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures are effective
to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in accordance with the time specified by the
SEC s rules and forms.

Change in Internal Controls. There were no changes in the Company s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Company s last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Commercial Litigation Matters

In January 2006 a ruling was issued against us by a Massachusetts state court in a commercial litigation matter
involving us and BlueShift Technologies, Inc. Awards of damages and costs were assessed against us in January and
April 2006 in the amount of approximately $1.6 million, which had been accrued for at December 31, 2005. That
ruling was affirmed by the Massachusetts Court of Appeals in June 2007 and a request for further appellate review by
the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court is now pending.

Regulatory Proceedings Related to Equity Incentive Practices and the Restatement

On May 12, 2006, we announced that the Company had received notice that the Boston Office of the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) was conducting an informal inquiry concerning stock option grant
practices to determine whether violations of the securities laws had occurred. On June 2, 2006, the SEC issued a
voluntary request for information to us in connection with an informal inquiry by that office regarding a loan we
previously reported had been made to former Chairman and CEO Robert Therrien in connection with the exercise by
him of stock options in 1999. On June 23, 2006, we were informed that the SEC had opened a formal investigation
into this matter and on the general topic of the timing of stock option grants. On June 28, 2006, the SEC issued
subpoenas to the Company and to the Special Committee of the Board of Directors, which had previously been
formed on March 8, 2006, requesting documents related to the Company s stock option grant practices and to the loan
to Mr. Therrien.

On May 19, 2006, we received a grand jury subpoena from the United States Attorney (the DOJ ) for the Eastern
District of New York requesting documents relating to stock option grants. Responsibility for the DOJ s investigation
was subsequently assumed by the United States Attorney for the District of Massachusetts. On June 22, 2006 the
United States Attorney s Office for the District of Massachusetts issued a grand jury subpoena to us in connection with
an investigation by that office into the timing of stock option grants by us and the loan to Mr. Therrien mentioned
above. On May 9, 2007, we received a follow-up grand jury subpoena from the United States Attorney s Office for the
District of Massachusetts in connection with the same matters.

On July 25, 2007, a criminal indictment was filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Massachusetts charging Robert J. Therrien, the former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Company, with
income tax evasion. A separate civil complaint was filed by the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25,
2007 against Mr. Therrien in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts charging him with
violations of federal securities laws.

We have been cooperating fully with both the Securities and Exchange Commission and the United States
Attorney s Office for the District of Massachusetts since the outset of their respective investigations. We intend to
continue to cooperate with both of these agencies. Brooks was not charged in either the SEC complaint or the
indictment. Neither the SEC nor the United States Attorney s Office has notified us that it intends to bring criminal or
civil charges against us relating to this conduct.

The Company continues to cooperate fully with the investigations being conducted by the SEC and the DOJ.

Private Litigation

On May 22, 2006, a derivative action was filed nominally on our behalf in the Superior Court for Middlesex
County, Massachusetts, captioned as Mollie Gedell, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant Brooks Automation,
Inc. v. A. Clinton Allen, et al. The Defendants named in the complaint are: A. Clinton Allen, Director of the Company;
Roger D. Emerick, former Director of the Company; Edward C. Grady, Director, President and CEO of the Company;
Amin J. Khoury, former Director of the Company; Joseph R. Martin, Director of the Company; John K.
McGillicuddy, Director of the Company; and Robert J. Therrien, former Director, President and CEO of the
Company.
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On May 26, 2006, a derivative action was filed in the Superior Court for Middlesex County, Massachusetts
nominally on our behalf, captioned as Ralph Gorgone, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant Brooks
Automation, Inc. v. Edward C. Grady, et al. The Defendants named in the complaint are: Mr. Grady; Mr. Allen;

Mr. Emerick; Mr. Khoury; Robert J. Lepofsky, Director of the Company; Mr. Martin; Mr. McGillicuddy; Krishna G.
Palepu, Director of the Company; Alfred Woollacott, III, Director of the Company; Mark S. Wrighton, Director of the
Company; and Marvin Schorr, Director Emeritus of the Company.

On August 4, 2006 the Superior Court for Middlesex County, Massachusetts, entered an order consolidating the
above state derivative actions under docket number 06-1808 and the caption In re Brooks Automation, Inc. Derivative
Litigation. On September 5, 2006, the Plaintiffs filed a Consolidated Shareholder Derivative Complaint; the
Defendants named therein are: Mr. Allen, Mr. Martin, Mr. Grady, Mr. McGillicuddy, Mr. Therrien, Mr. Emerick, and
Mr. Khoury; Robert W. Woodbury, Jr., the Company s Chief Financial Officer; Joseph Bellini, former President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Company s Enterprise Software Group; Thomas S. Grilk, Secretary and General
Counsel of the Company; current employee Michael W. Pippins; Stanley D. Piekos and Ellen B. Richstone, the
Company s former Chief Financial Officers; and David R. Beaulieu, Jeffrey A. Cassis, Santo DiNaro, Peter Frasso,
Robert A. McEachern, Dr. Charles M. McKenna, James A. Pelusi, Michael F. Werner, former Officers and employees
of the Company. The Consolidated Shareholder Derivative Complaint alleges that certain current and former directors
and officers breached fiduciary duties owed to Brooks by backdating stock option grants, issuing inaccurate financial
results and false or misleading public filings, and that Messrs. Therrien, Emerick and Khoury breached their fiduciary
duties, and Mr. Therrien was unjustly enriched, as a result of the loan to and stock option exercise by Mr. Therrien
mentioned above, and seeks, on our behalf, damages for breaches of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment,
disgorgement to the Company of all profits from allegedly backdated stock option grants, equitable relief, and
Plaintiffs costs and disbursements, including attorneys fees, accountants and experts fees, costs, and expenses. The
Defendants served motions to dismiss and, in response, Plaintiffs have moved for leave to amend their Complaint. The
Proposed Amended Complaint makes allegations substantially similar to those in the Consolidated Shareholder
Derivative Complaint, and adds as Defendants Richard C. Small, Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller of
the Company, and Mr. Woolacott, Mr. Wrighton, Mr. Lepofsky, and Mr. Palepu, Directors of the Company. On
May 4, 2007, the Court granted Plaintiffs leave to file an amended complaint. On June 22, 2007, the Defendants
served Plaintiffs with motions to dismiss the amended complaint, and briefing is now in progress.

On May 30, 2006, a derivative action was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts,
captioned as Mark Collins, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant Brooks Automation, Inc. v. Robert J.
Therrien, et al. The defendants in the action are: Mr. Therrien; Mr. Allen; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Grady; Mr. Khoury;

Mr. Martin; and Mr. McGillicuddy.

On June 7, 2006, a derivative action was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts,
captioned as City of Pontiac General Employees Retirement System, Derivatively on Behalf of Brooks Automation,
Inc. v. Robert J. Therrien, et al. The Defendants in this action are: Mr. Therrien; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Khoury; Mr. Allen;
Mr. Grady; Mr. Lepofsky; Mr. Martin; Mr. McGillicuddy; Mr. Palepu; Mr. Woollacott, III; Mr. Wrighton; and
Mr. Schorr.

The District Court issued an Order consolidating the above federal derivative actions on August 15, 2006, and a
Consolidated Verified Shareholder Derivative Complaint was filed on October 6, 2006; the Defendants named therein
are: Mr. Allen, Mr. Grady, Mr. Lepofsky, Mr. Martin, Mr. McGillicuddy, Mr. Palepu, Mr. Schorr, Mr. Woollacott,
Mr. Wrighton, Mr. Woodbury, Mr. Therrien, Mr. Emerick, Mr. Khoury, and Mr. Werner. The Consolidated Verified
Shareholder Derivative Complaint alleges violations of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange act; Section
14(a) of the Exchange Act; Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act; breach of fiduciary duty; corporate waste; and unjust
enrichment, and seeks, on behalf of Brooks, damages, extraordinary equitable relief including disgorgement and a
constructive trust for improvidently granted stock options or proceeds from alleged insider trading by certain
defendants, Plaintiffs costs and disbursements including attorneys fees, accountants and experts fees, costs and
expenses. On December 27, 2006, the Court granted Defendants motion to stay the federal derivative actions in favor
of the first-filed state derivative action described above.
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On June 19, 2006, a putative class action was filed in the United States District Court, District of Massachusetts,
captioned as Charles E. G. Leech Sr. v. Brooks Automation, Inc., et al. The defendants in this action are: the
Company; Mr. Therrien; Ellen Richstone, the Company s former Chief Financial Officer; Mr. Emerick; Mr. Khoury;
Robert W. Woodbury, Jr., the Company s Chief Financial Officer; and Mr. Grady. The complaint alleges violations of
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 against us and the individual defendants; Section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act against the individual defendants; Section 11 of the Securities Act against us and Messrs. Grady,
Woodbury, Emerick, Khoury and Therrien; Section 12 of the Securities Act against us and Messrs. Grady, Woodbury,
Emerick, Khoury and Therrien; and Section 15 of the Securities Act against Messrs. Grady, Woodbury, Emerick,
Khoury and Therrien. The complaint seeks, inter alia, damages, including interest, and plaintiff s costs.

On July 19, 2006, a putative class action was filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Massachusetts, captioned as James R. Shaw v. Brooks Automation, Inc. et al., No. 06-11239-RWZ. The Defendants in
the case are the Company, Mr. Therrien, Ms. Richstone, Mr. Emerick, Mr. Khoury, Mr. Woodbury, and Mr. Grady.
The complaint alleges violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 against all defendants and
violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act against all individual defendants. The complaint seeks, inter alia,
damages, including interest, and plaintiff s costs. On December 13, 2006, the Court issued an order consolidating the
Shaw action with the Leech action described above and appointing a lead plaintiff and lead counsel. The lead plaintiff
has filed a Consolidated Amended Complaint. Motions to dismiss have been filed by all defendants in the case. In
partial response to defendants motions to dismiss, the lead plaintiff filed a motion to amend the complaint to add a
named plaintiff on May 10, 2007. Defendants filed their opposition to this motion. On June 26, 2007, the Court heard
argument on defendants motions to dismiss and lead plaintiff s motion to amend the complaint. The Court took the
motions under advisement.

On August 22, 2006, an action captioned as Mark Levy v. Robert J. Therrien and Brooks Automation, Inc., was
filed in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, seeking recovery, on behalf of the Company,
from Mr. Therrien under Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for alleged short-swing profits earned
by Mr. Therrien due to the loan and stock option exercise in November 1999 referenced above, and a sale by
Mr. Therrien of Brooks stock in March 2000. The Complaint seeks disgorgement of all profits earned by Mr. Therrien
on the transactions, attorneys fees and other expenses. On February 20, 2007, a second Section 16(b) action,
concerning the same loan and stock option exercise in November 1999 discussed above and seeking the same remedy,
was filed in the United States District Court of the District of Delaware, captioned Aron Rosenberg v. Robert J.
Therrien and Brooks Automation, Inc. On April 4, 2007, the Court issued an order consolidating the Levy and
Rosenberg actions. Defendants have filed motions to dismiss.

We are aware of additional proposed class actions, posted on the websites of various law firms. We are not yet
aware of the filing of any such actions and have not been served with a complaint or any other process in any of these
matters.

Matter to which the Company is Not a Party

Jenoptik-Asyst Litigation

We acquired certain assets, including a transport system known as IridNet, from the Infab division of Jenoptik
AG on September 30, 1999. Asyst Technologies, Inc. had previously filed suit against Jenoptik AG and other
defendants, or collectively, the defendants, in the Northern District of California charging that products of the
defendants, including IridNet, infringe Asyst s U.S. Patent Nos. 4,974,166, or the 166 patent, and 5,097,421, or the 421
patent. Asyst later withdrew its claims related to the 166 patent from the case. Summary judgment of noninfringement
was granted in that case by the District Court and judgment was issued in favor of Jenoptik on the ground that the
product at issue did not infringe the asserted claims of the 421 patent. Following certain rulings and findings adverse
to Jenoptik, on August 3, 2007 the District Court issued final judgment in favor of Jenoptik. We do not know whether
Asyst will appeal this judgment.

We had received notice that Asyst might amend its complaint in this Jenoptik litigation to name us as an additional
defendant, but no such action was ever taken. Based on our investigation of Asyst s allegations, we do not believe we
are infringing any claims of Asyst s patents. Asyst may decide to seek to prohibit us from developing, marketing and
using the IridNet product without a license. We cannot guarantee that a license would be available to us on reasonable
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may incur in this action.
30

Table of Contents

47



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following risk factors are a summary of the risk factors disclosed in our Annual report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.
Factors That May Affect Future Results
You should carefully consider the risks described below and the other information in this report before deciding to
invest in shares of our common stock. These are the risks and uncertainties we believe are most important for you to
consider. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us, which we currently deem immaterial or which
are similar to those faced by other companies in our industry or business in general, may also impair our business
operations. If any of the following risks or uncertainties actually occurs, our business, financial condition and
operating results would likely suffer. In that event, the market price of our common stock could decline and you could
lose all or part of your investment.
Risks Relating to Our Industry
Due in part to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor manufacturing industry and related industries, we have
incurred substantial operating losses in past years and may have future losses.

We face substantial competition which may lead to price pressure and otherwise adversely affect our sales.
Risks Relating to Brooks
Our operating results could fluctuate significantly, which could negatively impact our business.

Delays and technical difficulties in our products and operations may result in lost revenue, lost profit, delayed
or limited market acceptance or product liability claims.

If we do not continue to introduce new products and services that reflect advances in technology in a timely
and effective manner, our products and services will become obsolete and our operating results will suffer.

The global nature of our business exposes us to multiple risks. As we increase the number of manufacturing
facilities that we operate in other countries, there is an increased risk that we will experience delays in
production, which could in turn have an adverse impact on the timing of deliveries to customers and on the
ability of customers to meet their own delivery requirements.

Our business could be materially harmed if we fail to adequately integrate the operations of the businesses that
we have acquired or may acquire.

Failure to retain key personnel could impair our ability to execute our business strategy.

We face risks related to the restatement of our financial statements and the pending SEC and US Attorney
investigations regarding our past practices with respect to equity incentives.

We face litigation risks relating to our past practices with respect to equity incentives that could have a material
adverse effect on the Company.
Risks Relating to Our Customers
Because we rely on a limited number of customers for a large portion of our revenues, the loss of one or more of
these customers could materially harm our business.

Because of the lengthy sales cycles of many of our products, we may incur significant expenses before we
generate any revenues related to those products.
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Customers generally do not make long term commitments to purchase our products and our customers may cease
purchasing our products at any time.
Other Risks
We may be subject to claims of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights, or demands that we
license third-party technology, which could result in significant expense and prevent us from using our
technology.

Jenoptik-Asyst Litigation

We acquired certain assets, including a transport system known as IridNet, from the Infab division of Jenoptik AG
on September 30, 1999. Asyst Technologies, Inc. had previously filed suit against Jenoptik AG and other defendants,
or collectively, the defendants, in the Northern District of California charging that products of the defendants,
including IridNet, infringe Asyst s U.S. Patent Nos. 4,974,166, or the 166 patent, and 5,097,421, or the 421 patent.
Asyst later withdrew its claims related to the 166 patent from the case. Summary judgment of noninfringement was
granted in that case by the District Court and judgment was issued in favor of Jenoptik on the ground that the product
at issue did not infringe the asserted claims of the 421 patent. Following certain rulings and findings adverse to
Jenoptik, on August 3, 2007 the District Court issued final judgment in favor of Jenoptik. We do not know whether
Asyst will appeal this judgment.

We had received notice that Asyst might amend its complaint in this Jenoptik litigation to name Brooks as an
additional defendant, but no such action was ever taken. Based on our investigation of Asyst s allegations, we do not
believe we are infringing any claims of Asyst s patents. Asyst may decide to seek to prohibit us from developing,
marketing and using the IridNet product without a license. We cannot guarantee that a license would be available to us
on reasonable terms, if at all. In any case, we could face litigation with Asyst. Jenoptik has agreed to indemnify us for
any loss we may incur in this action.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property could adversely affect our future operations.

If the site of the majority of our manufacturing operations were to experience a significant disruption in
operations, our business could be materially harmed.

Our business could be materially harmed if one or more key suppliers fail to deliver key components.

We are exposed to potential risks and we will continue to incur costs as a result of the internal control testing and
evaluation process mandated by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Our stock price is volatile.

Provisions in our organizational documents and contracts may make it difficult for someone to acquire control of
us.

We will incur significant stock-based compensation charges related to certain stock options and restricted stock in
future periods.
Item 6. Exhibits
The following exhibits are included herein:

Exhibit No. Description

31.01 Rule 13a-14(a), 15d-14(a) Certification
31.02 Rule 13a-14(a), 15d-14(a) Certification
32 Section 1350 Certifications
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BROOKS AUTOMATION, INC.

DATE: August 9, 2007 /s EDWARD C. GRADY
Edward C. Grady
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

DATE: August 9, 2007 /s/ ROBERT W. WOODBURY, JR.
Robert W. Woodbury, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No. Description
31.01 Rule 13a-14(a), 15d-14(a) Certification
31.02 Rule 13a-14(a), 15d-14(a) Certification
32 Section 1350 Certifications
34

d by the global security for all purposes under the applicable indenture. Except as provided below, owners of
beneficial interests in a global security:

will not be entitled to have any of the underlying debt securities registered in their names;

will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of any of the underlying debt securities in definitive form; and

will not be considered the owners or holders under the indenture relating to those debt securities.
Payments of the principal of, any premium on and any interest on individual debt securities represented by a global security registered in the
name of a depositary or its nominee will be made to the depositary or its nominee as the registered owner of the global security representing
such debt securities. Neither we, the trustee for the debt securities, any paying agent nor the registrar for the debt securities will be responsible
for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made by the depositary or any participants on account of beneficial interests in the global
security.

We expect that the depositary or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of principal, any premium or interest relating to a global security
representing any series of debt securities, immediately will credit participants accounts with the payments. Those payments will be credited in
amounts proportional to the respective beneficial interests of the participants in the principal amount of the global security as shown on the
records of the depositary or its nominee. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in the global security
held through those participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices. This is now the case with securities held for
the accounts of customers registered in street name. Those payments will be the sole responsibility of those participants.

If the depositary for a series of debt securities is at any time unwilling, unable or ineligible to continue as depositary and we do not appoint a
successor depositary within 90 days, we will issue individual debt securities of that series in exchange for the global security or securities
representing that series. In addition, we may at any time in our sole discretion determine not to have any debt securities of a series represented
by one or more global securities. In that event, we will issue individual debt securities of that series in exchange for the global security or
securities. Furthermore, if we specify, an owner of a beneficial interest in a global security may, on terms acceptable to us, the trustee and the
applicable depositary, receive individual debt securities of that series in exchange for those beneficial interests. The foregoing is subject to any
limitations described in the applicable prospectus supplement. In any such instance, the owner of the beneficial interest will be entitled to
physical delivery of individual debt securities equal in principal amount to the beneficial interest and to have the debt securities registered in its
name. Those individual debt securities will be issued in any authorized denominations.

Governing Law
Each indenture and the debt securities will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.
Information Concerning the Trustee

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association will be the trustee under the indentures. A successor trustee may be appointed in accordance with the
terms of the indentures.
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The indentures and the provisions of the Trust Indenture Act incorporated by reference therein will contain certain limitations on the rights of the
trustee, should it become a creditor of us, to obtain payment of claims in certain cases, or to realize on certain property received in respect of any
such claim as security or otherwise. The trustee will be permitted to engage in other transactions; however, if it acquires any conflicting interest
(within the meaning of the Trust Indenture Act), it must eliminate such conflicting interest or resign.

A single banking or financial institution may act as trustee with respect to both the subordinated indenture and the senior indenture. If this
occurs, and should a default occur with respect to either the subordinated debt securities or the senior debt securities, such banking or financial
institution would be required to resign as trustee under one of the indentures within 90 days of such default, pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act,
unless such default were cured, duly waived or otherwise eliminated.
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DESCRIPTION OF GUARANTEES OF DEBT SECURITIES

Our subsidiaries may issue unconditional guarantees on an unsecured, unsubordinated basis with respect to senior debt securities that we offer in
any prospectus supplement and may issue unconditional guarantees on an unsecured, subordinated basis with respect to subordinated debt
securities that we offer in any prospectus supplement. The guarantee of senior debt securities will rank equally in right of payment with all of the
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of such subsidiary or subsidiaries. The guarantee of the subordinated debt securities will be
subordinated in right of payment to all such subsidiary s or subsidiaries existing and future senior indebtedness (as defined in the related
prospectus supplement), including any guarantee of senior debt securities, to the same extent and in the same manner as the subordinated debt
securities are subordinated to our senior indebtedness (as defined in the related prospectus supplement). Each guarantee will be issued under a
supplement to an indenture. The prospectus supplement relating to a particular issue of guarantees will describe the terms of those guarantees,
including the following:

the series of debt securities to which the guarantees apply;

whether the guarantees are secured or unsecured;

whether the guarantees are senior or subordinate to other guarantees or debt;

the terms under which the guarantees may be amended, modified, waived, released or otherwise terminated, if different from the
provisions applicable to the guaranteed debt securities; and

any additional terms of the guarantees.
The obligations of our subsidiaries under any such guarantee will be limited as necessary to prevent the guarantee from constituting a fraudulent
conveyance or fraudulent transfer under applicable law.

THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

The following is a summary of the material provisions of our partnership agreement. Our partnership agreement is incorporated by reference into
the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. We will provide prospective investors with a copy of our partnership agreement
upon request at no charge.

We summarize the following provisions of our partnership agreement elsewhere in this prospectus:

with regard to distributions of available cash, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy;

with regard to the transfer of common units, please read Description of the Common Units  Transfer of Common Units; and

with regard to allocations of taxable income and taxable loss, please read Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences.
Organization and Duration

We were organized in August 2009 and have a perpetual existence.

Purpose
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Our purpose under our partnership agreement is limited to any business activities that are approved by our general partner and in any event that
lawfully may be conducted by a limited partnership organized under Delaware law; provided that our general partner may not cause us to
engage, directly or indirectly, in any business activity that our general partner determines would cause us to be treated as an association taxable
as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for federal income tax purposes.

Although our general partner has the power to cause us, our operating company and its subsidiaries to engage in activities other than the business
of gathering, compressing, treating and transporting natural gas, our general partner has no current plans to do so and may decline to do so free
of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or the limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us or
the limited partners. Our general partner is generally authorized to perform all acts it determines to be necessary or appropriate to carry out our
purposes and to conduct our business.
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Cash Distributions

Our partnership agreement specifies the manner in which we will make cash distributions to holders of our common units and other partnership
securities as well as to our general partner in respect of its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights. For a description of these

cash distribution provisions, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy.

Capital Contributions

Unitholders are not obligated to make additional capital contributions, except as described below under

Limited Liability.

For a discussion of our general partner s right to contribute capital to maintain its 2.0% general partner interest if we issue additional units, please

read Issuance of Additional Securities.

Voting Rights

The following is a summary of the unitholder vote required for approval of the matters specified below. Matters that require the approval of a

unit majority require:

during the subordination period, the approval of a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding those common units held by
our general partner and its affiliates, and a majority of the outstanding subordinated units, voting as separate classes; and

after the subordination period, the approval of a majority of the outstanding common units.
By virtue of the exclusion of those common units held by our general partner and its affiliates from the required vote, and by their ownership of
all of the subordinated units, during the subordination period our general partner and its affiliates do not have the ability to ensure passage of, but
do have the ability to ensure defeat of, any amendment that requires a unit majority.

In voting their common and subordinated units, our general partner and its affiliates will have no fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or
our limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us and our limited partners.

Issuance of additional units

Amendment of our partnership agreement

Merger of our partnership or the sale of all or substantially all of our
assets

Dissolution of our partnership
Continuation of our business upon dissolution

Withdrawal of our general partner

Removal of our general partner

Table of Contents

No approval right.

Certain amendments may be made by our general partner without the
approval of the unitholders. Other amendments generally require the
approval of a unit majority. Please read =~ Amendment of Our
Partnership Agreement.

Unit majority in certain circumstances. Please read
Other Disposition of Assets.

Merger, Sale or

Unit majority. Please read =~ Termination and Dissolution.

Unit majority. Please read ~ Termination and Dissolution.

Under most circumstances, the approval of a majority of the common
units, excluding common units held by our general partner and its
affiliates, is required for the withdrawal of our general partner prior to
June 30, 2021 in a manner that would cause a dissolution of our
partnership. Please read =~ Withdrawal or Removal of Our General
Partner.

Not less than 66 %/,% of the outstanding units, voting as a single class,
including units held by our general partner and its affiliates. Please
read  Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Partner.
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Transfer of our general partner interest Our general partner may transfer all, but not less than all, of its
general partner interest in us without a vote of our unitholders
to an affiliate or another person in connection with its merger,
consolidation or conversion with or into, or sale of all or
substantially all of its assets to, such person. The approval of a
majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common
units held by our general partner and its affiliates, is required in
other circumstances for a transfer of the general partner interest
to a third party prior to June 30, 2020. Please read ~ Transfer
of General Partner Interest.

Transfer of incentive distribution rights No approval right. Please read ~ Transfer of Subordinated Units and
Incentive Distribution Rights.

Transfer of ownership interests in our general partner No approval required at any time. Please read ~ Transfer of Ownership
Interests in Our General Partner.
Limited Liability

Assuming that a limited partner does not participate in the control of our business within the meaning of the Delaware Act and that it otherwise
acts in conformity with the provisions of our partnership agreement, its liability under the Delaware Act will be limited, subject to possible
exceptions, to the amount of capital it is obligated to contribute to us for its common units plus its share of any undistributed profits and assets. If
it were determined, however, that the right of, or exercise of the right by, the limited partners as a group:

to remove or replace our general partner;

to approve some amendments to our partnership agreement; or

to take other action under our partnership agreement;
constituted participation in the control of our business for the purposes of the Delaware Act, then the limited partners could be held personally
liable for our obligations under the laws of Delaware, to the same extent as our general partner. This liability would extend to persons who
transact business with us who reasonably believe that a limited partner is a general partner. Neither our partnership agreement nor the Delaware
Act specifically provides for legal recourse against our general partner if a limited partner were to lose limited liability through any fault of our
general partner. While this does not mean that a limited partner could not seek legal recourse, we know of no precedent for such a claim in
Delaware case law.

Under the Delaware Act, a limited partnership may not make a distribution to a partner if, after the distribution, all liabilities of the limited
partnership, other than liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interests and liabilities for which the recourse of creditors is limited
to specific property of the partnership, would exceed the fair value of the assets of the limited partnership. For the purpose of determining the
fair value of the assets of a limited partnership, the Delaware Act provides that the fair value of property subject to liability for which recourse of
creditors is limited shall be included in the assets of the limited partnership only to the extent that the fair value of that property exceeds the
nonrecourse liability. The Delaware Act provides that a limited partner who receives a distribution and knew at the time of the distribution that
the distribution was in violation of the Delaware Act shall be liable to the limited partnership for the amount of the distribution for three years.
Under the Delaware Act, a substituted limited partner of a limited partnership is liable for the obligations of its assignor to make contributions to
the partnership, except that such person is not obligated for liabilities unknown to it at the time it became a limited partner and that could not be
ascertained from the partnership agreement.

Our subsidiaries conduct business primarily in five states and we may have subsidiaries that conduct business in other states in the future.
Maintenance of our limited liability as a member of our operating company may require compliance with legal requirements in the jurisdictions
in which our operating company conducts business, including qualifying our subsidiaries to do business there.
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Limitations on the liability of members or limited partners for the obligations of a limited liability company or limited partnership have not been
clearly established in many jurisdictions. If, by virtue of our ownership interest in our operating company or otherwise, it were determined that
we were conducting business in any state without compliance with the applicable limited partnership or limited liability company statute, or that
the right or exercise of the right by the limited partners as a group to remove or replace our general partner, to approve some amendments to our
partnership agreement, or to take other action under our partnership agreement constituted participation in the control of our business for
purposes of the statutes of any relevant jurisdiction, then the limited partners could be held personally liable for our obligations under the law of
that jurisdiction to the same extent as our general partner under the circumstances. We will operate in a manner that our general partner
considers reasonable and necessary or appropriate to preserve the limited liability of the limited partners.

Issuance of Additional Securities

Our partnership agreement authorizes us to issue an unlimited number of additional partnership securities for the consideration and on the terms
and conditions determined by our general partner without the approval of our limited partners.

It is possible that we will fund acquisitions through the issuance of additional common units, subordinated units or other partnership securities.
Holders of any additional common units we issue will be entitled to share equally with the then-existing holders of common units in our
distributions of available cash. In addition, the issuance of additional common units or other partnership securities may dilute the value of the
interests of the then-existing holders of common units in our net assets.

In accordance with Delaware law and the provisions of our partnership agreement, we may also issue additional partnership securities that, as
determined by our general partner, may have rights to distributions or special voting rights to which the common units are not entitled. In
addition, our partnership agreement does not prohibit our subsidiaries from issuing equity securities, which may effectively rank senior to the
common units.

Upon issuance of additional partnership securities, our general partner will be entitled, but not required, to make additional capital contributions
to the extent necessary to maintain its 2.0% general partner interest in us. Our general partner s 2.0% interest in us will be reduced if we issue
additional units in the future and our general partner does not contribute a proportionate amount of capital to us to maintain its 2.0% general
partner interest. Moreover, our general partner will have the right, which it may from time to time assign in whole or in part to any of its
affiliates, to purchase common units, subordinated units or other partnership securities whenever, and on the same terms that, we issue those
securities to persons other than our general partner and its affiliates, to the extent necessary to maintain the percentage interest of the general
partner and its affiliates, including such interest represented by common and subordinated units, that existed immediately prior to each issuance.
The holders of common units will not have preemptive rights under our partnership agreement to acquire additional common units or other
partnership securities.

Amendment of Our Partnership Agreement
General

Amendments to our partnership agreement may be proposed only by our general partner. However, our general partner will have no duty or
obligation to propose any amendment and may decline to do so free of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or our limited partners,
including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us or our limited partners. In order to adopt a proposed amendment, other than
the amendments discussed below, our general partner must seek written approval of the holders of the number of units required to approve the
amendment or call a meeting of the limited partners to consider and vote upon the proposed amendment. Except as described below, an
amendment must be approved by a unit majority.

Prohibited Amendments

No amendment may be made that would:

enlarge the obligations of any limited partner without its consent, unless approved by at least a majority of the type or class of limited
partner interests so affected; or
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enlarge the obligations of, restrict in any way any action by or rights of, or reduce in any way the amounts distributable, reimbursable
or otherwise payable by us to our general partner or any of its affiliates without the consent of our general partner, which consent
may be given or withheld at its option.
The provision of our partnership agreement preventing the amendments having the effects described in the clauses above can be amended upon
the approval of the holders of at least 90.0% of the outstanding units, voting as a single class (including units owned by our general partner and
its affiliates). As of September 7, 2012, affiliates of our general partner own approximately 58.7% of the outstanding common and subordinated
units.

No Unitholder Approval

Our general partner may generally make amendments to our partnership agreement without the approval of any limited partner to reflect:

a change in our name, the location of our principal place of business, our registered agent or our registered office;

the admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of partners in accordance with our partnership agreement;

a change that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for us to qualify or to continue our qualification as a
limited partnership or a partnership in which the limited partners have limited liability under the laws of any state or to ensure that
neither we, our operating company, nor its subsidiaries will be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxed as
an entity for federal income tax purposes;

a change in our fiscal year or taxable period and related changes;

an amendment that is necessary, in the opinion of our counsel, to prevent us or our general partner or its directors, officers, agents, or
trustees from in any manner being subjected to the provisions of the Investment Company Act of 1940, the Investment Advisors Act
of 1940 or plan asset regulations adopted under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, whether or not
substantially similar to plan asset regulations currently applied or proposed;

any amendment expressly permitted in our partnership agreement to be made by our general partner acting alone;

an amendment effected, necessitated, or contemplated by a merger agreement that has been approved under the terms of our
partnership agreement;

any amendment that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for the formation by us of, or our investment in,
any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or other entity, as otherwise permitted by our partnership
agreement;

mergers with, conveyances to or conversions into another limited liability entity that is newly formed and has no assets, liabilities or
operations at the time of the merger, conveyance or conversion other than those it receives by way of the merger, conveyance or
conversion; or

any other amendments substantially similar to any of the matters described above.
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In addition, our general partner may make amendments to our partnership agreement without the approval of any limited partner if our general
partner determines that those amendments:

do not adversely affect in any material respect the limited partners considered as a whole or any particular class of partnership
interests as compared to other classes of partnership interests;

are necessary or appropriate to satisfy any requirements, conditions, or guidelines contained in any opinion, directive, order, ruling,
or regulation of any federal or state agency or judicial authority or contained in any federal or state statute;

are necessary or appropriate to facilitate the trading of units or to comply with any rule, regulation, guideline, or requirement of any
securities exchange on which the units are or will be listed for trading;
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are necessary or appropriate for any action taken by our general partner relating to splits or combinations of units under the
provisions of our partnership agreement; or

are required to effect the intent expressed in this prospectus or the intent of the provisions of our partnership agreement or are
otherwise contemplated by our partnership agreement.
Opinion of Counsel and Limited Partner Approval

Our general partner will not be required to obtain an opinion of counsel that an amendment will not result in a loss of limited liability to the

limited partners or result in our being treated as an entity for federal income tax purposes in connection with any of the amendments described

above under  No Unitholder Approval. No other amendments to our partnership agreement will become effective without the approval of holders
of at least 90.0% of the outstanding units voting as a single class unless we first obtain an opinion of counsel to the effect that the amendment

will not affect the limited liability under applicable law of any of our limited partners.

In addition to the above restrictions, any amendment that would have a material adverse effect on the rights or preferences of any type or class of
outstanding units in relation to other classes of units will require the approval of at least a majority of the type or class of units so affected. Any
amendment that reduces the voting percentage required to take any action must be approved by the affirmative vote of limited partners whose
aggregate outstanding units constitute not less than the voting requirement sought to be reduced.

Merger, Sale or Other Disposition of Assets

A merger, consolidation or conversion of us requires the prior consent of our general partner. However, our general partner will have no duty or
obligation to consent to any merger, consolidation or conversion and may decline to do so free of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to
us or the limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interest of us or our limited partners.

In addition, our partnership agreement generally prohibits our general partner, without the prior approval of the holders of a unit majority, from
causing us to, among other things, sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our and our subsidiaries assets in a single
transaction or a series of related transactions, including by way of merger, consolidation, other combination or sale of ownership interests of our
subsidiaries. Our general partner may, however, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, or grant a security interest in all or substantially all of our and
our subsidiaries assets without that approval. Our general partner may also sell all or substantially all of our and our subsidiaries assets under a
foreclosure or other realization upon those encumbrances without that approval. Finally, our general partner may consummate any merger
without the prior approval of our unitholders if we are the surviving entity in the transaction, our general partner has received an opinion of
counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters, the transaction would not result in a material amendment to the partnership agreement (other
than an amendment that the general partner could adopt without the consent of the limited partners), each of our units will be an identical unit of
our partnership following the transaction and the partnership securities to be issued do not exceed 20.0% of our outstanding partnership
securities immediately prior to the transaction.

If the conditions specified in our partnership agreement are satisfied, our general partner may merge us or any of our subsidiaries into, or convey
all of our assets to, a newly formed limited liability entity, if the sole purpose of that merger or conveyance is to effect a mere change in our
legal form into another limited liability entity, our general partner has received an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters
and the governing instruments of the new entity provide the limited partners and our general partner with the same rights and obligations as
contained in our partnership agreement. Our unitholders are not entitled to dissenters rights of appraisal under our partnership agreement or
applicable Delaware law in the event of a merger, consolidation or conversion, a sale of substantially all of our assets or any other similar
transaction or event.

Termination and Dissolution

We will continue as a limited partnership until dissolved under our partnership agreement. We will dissolve upon:

the withdrawal or removal of our general partner or any other event that results in its ceasing to be our general partner other
than by reason of a transfer of its general partner interest in accordance with our partnership agreement or withdrawal or
removal following the approval and admission of a successor general partner;
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the election of our general partner to dissolve us, if approved by the holders of units representing a unit majority;

the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of our partnership; or

there being no limited partners, unless we are continued without dissolution in accordance with the Delaware Act.
Upon a dissolution under the first clause above, the holders of a unit majority may also elect, within specific time limitations, to continue our
business on the same terms and conditions described in our partnership agreement and appoint as a successor general partner an entity approved
by the holders of units representing a unit majority, subject to our receipt of an opinion of counsel to the effect that:

the action would not result in the loss of limited liability of any limited partner; and

neither we nor any of our subsidiaries would be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise be taxable as an entity
for federal income tax purposes upon the exercise of that right to continue (to the extent not already so treated or taxed).
Liquidation and Distribution of Proceeds

Upon our dissolution, unless we are continued as a limited partnership, the liquidator authorized to wind up our affairs will, acting with all of the
powers of our general partner that are necessary or appropriate, liquidate our assets and apply the proceeds of the liquidation as described in

Provisions of Our Partnership Agreement Relating to Cash Distributions  Distributions of Cash Upon Liquidation. The liquidator may defer
liquidation or distribution of our assets for a reasonable period of time if it determines that an immediate sale or distribution would be
impractical or would cause undue loss to our partners. The liquidator may distribute our assets, in whole or in part, in kind if it determines that a
sale would be impractical or would cause undue loss to the partners.

Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Partner

Except as described below, our general partner has agreed not to withdraw voluntarily as our general partner prior to June 30, 2021 without
obtaining the approval of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common units held by the general partner
and its affiliates, and furnishing an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters. On or after June 30, 2021, our general partner
may withdraw as general partner without first obtaining approval of any unitholder by giving at least 90 days advance notice, and that

withdrawal will not constitute a violation of our partnership agreement. Notwithstanding the information above, our general partner may

withdraw without unitholder approval upon 90 days notice to the limited partners if at least 50.0% of the outstanding common units are held or
controlled by one person and its affiliates, other than our general partner and its affiliates. In addition, our partnership agreement permits our
general partner in some instances to sell or otherwise transfer all of its general partner interest and incentive distribution rights in us without the
approval of the unitholders. Please read  Transfer of General Partner Interest and  Transfer of Subordinated Units and Incentive Distribution
Rights.

Upon withdrawal of our general partner under any circumstances, other than as a result of a transfer by our general partner of all or a part of its
general partner interest in us, the holders of a unit majority may select a successor to that withdrawing general partner. If a successor is not
elected, or is elected but an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters cannot be obtained, we will be dissolved, wound up
and liquidated, unless within a specified period of time after that withdrawal, the holders of a unit majority agree in writing to continue our
business and to appoint a successor general partner. Please read ~ Termination and Dissolution.

Our general partner may not be removed unless that removal is approved by the vote of the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of all outstanding
units, voting together as a single class, including units held by our general partner and its affiliates, and we receive an opinion of counsel
regarding limited liability and tax matters. Any removal of our general partner is also subject to the approval of a successor general partner by
the vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding common units, and a majority of the outstanding subordinated units, voting as a single
class. The ownership of more than 33 2/3% of the outstanding units by our general partner and its affiliates gives them the ability to prevent our
general partner s removal. As of September 7, 2012, affiliates of our general partner own 58.7% of the outstanding common and subordinated
units.

Table of Contents 64



Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

32

65



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

Our partnership agreement also provides that if our general partner is removed as our general partner under circumstances where cause does not
exist and units held by our general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that removal:

the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units will immediately and automatically convert into common
units on a one-for-one basis;

any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units will be extinguished; and

our general partner will have the right to convert its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights into common units or

to receive cash in exchange for those interests based on the fair market value of the interests at the time.
In the event of removal of our general partner under circumstances where cause exists or withdrawal of our general partner where that
withdrawal violates our partnership agreement, a successor general partner will have the option to purchase the general partner interest and
incentive distribution rights of the departing general partner for a cash payment equal to the fair market value of those interests. Under all other
circumstances where our general partner withdraws or is removed by the limited partners, the departing general partner will have the option to
require the successor general partner to purchase the general partner interest of the departing general partner and its incentive distribution rights
for their fair market value. In each case, this fair market value will be determined by agreement between the departing general partner and the
successor general partner. If no agreement is reached, an independent investment banking firm or other independent expert selected by the
departing general partner and the successor general partner will determine the fair market value. Or, if the departing general partner and the
successor general partner cannot agree upon an expert, then an expert chosen by agreement of the experts selected by each of them will
determine the fair market value.

If the option described above is not exercised by either the departing general partner or the successor general partner, the departing general
partner s general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights will automatically convert into common units equal to the fair market value
of those interests as determined by an investment banking firm or other independent expert selected in the manner described in the preceding
paragraph.

In addition, we will be required to reimburse the departing general partner for all amounts due to it, including, without limitation, all
employee-related liabilities, including severance liabilities, incurred in connection with the termination of any employees employed by the
departing general partner or its affiliates for our benefit.

Transfer of General Partner Interest

Except for transfer by our general partner of all, but not less than all, of its general partner interest to:

an affiliate of our general partner (other than an individual); or

another entity as part of the merger, consolidation or conversion of our general partner with or into another entity or the transfer by
our general partner of all or substantially all of its assets to another entity.

our general partner may not transfer all or any of its general partner interest to another person prior to June 30, 2021 without the
approval of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common units held by our general partner
and its affiliates. As a condition of this transfer, the transferee must, among other things, assume the rights and duties of our general
partner, agree to be bound by the provisions of our partnership agreement and furnish an opinion of counsel regarding limited
liability and tax matters.
Our general partner and its affiliates may, at any time, transfer common units or subordinated units to one or more persons, without unitholder
approval, except that they may not transfer subordinated units to us.
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Transfer of Ownership Interests in Our General Partner

At any time, the owners of our general partner may sell or transfer all or part of their ownership interests in our general partner to an affiliate or a
third party without the approval of our unitholders.
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Transfer of Subordinated Units and Incentive Distribution Rights

By transfer of subordinated units or incentive distribution rights in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of subordinated
units or incentive distribution rights will be admitted as a limited partner with respect to the subordinated units or incentive distribution rights
transferred when such transfer and admission is reflected in our books and records. Each transferee:

represents that the transferee has the capacity, power and authority to become bound by our partnership agreement;

automatically becomes bound by the terms and conditions of our partnership agreement; and

gives the consents, waivers and approvals contained in our partnership agreement, such as the approval of all transactions and
agreements we entered into in connection with our formation and the initial public.
We mays, at our discretion, treat the nominee holder of subordinated units or incentive distribution rights as the absolute owner. In that case, the
beneficial holder s rights are limited solely to those that it has against the nominee holder as a result of any agreement between the beneficial
owner and the nominee holder.

Subordinated units or incentive distribution rights are securities and any transfers are subject to the laws governing transfer of securities. In
addition to other rights acquired upon transfer, the transferor gives the transferee the right to become a limited partner for the transferred
subordinated units or incentive distribution rights.

Until a subordinated unit or incentive distribution right has been transferred on our books, we and the transfer agent may treat the record holder
of the unit or right as the absolute owner for all purposes, except as otherwise required by law or stock exchange regulations.

Change of Management Provisions

Our partnership agreement contains specific provisions that are intended to discourage a person or group from attempting to remove our general
partner or otherwise change our management. If any person or group, other than our general partner and its affiliates, acquires beneficial
ownership of 20.0% or more of any class of units, that person or group loses voting rights on all of its units. This loss of voting rights does not
apply to any person or group that acquires the units directly from our general partner or its affiliates or any transferee of that person or group that
is approved by our general partner or to any person or group who acquires the units with the prior approval of the board of directors of our
general partner.

Our partnership agreement also provides that if our general partner is removed as our general partner under circumstances where cause does not
exist and units held by our general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that removal:

the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units will immediately and automatically convert into common
units on a one-for-one basis;

any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units will be extinguished; and

our general partner will have the right to convert its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights into common units or
to receive cash in exchange for those interests based on the fair market value of the interests at the time.
Limited Call Right

If at any time our general partner and its affiliates own more than 80.0% of the then-issued and outstanding limited partner interests of any class,
our general partner will have the right, which it may assign in whole or in part to any of its affiliates or to us, to acquire all, but not less than all,
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of the remaining limited partner interests of the class held by unaffiliated persons as of a record date to be selected by our general partner, on at
least 10, but not more than 60, days notice. The purchase price in the event of this purchase is the greater of:

the highest price paid by our general partner or any of its affiliates for any limited partner interests of the class purchased within the
90 days preceding the date on which our general partner first mails notice of its election to purchase those limited partner interests;
and

the average of the daily closing prices of the partnership securities of such class for the 20 consecutive trading days preceding the
date three days before the date the notice is mailed.
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As a result of our general partner s right to purchase outstanding limited partner interests, a holder of limited partner interests may have his
limited partner interests purchased at an undesirable time or price. The tax consequences to a unitholder of the exercise of this call right are the
same as a sale by that unitholder of his common units in the market. Please read Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences Disposition
of Common Units.

Meetings; Voting

Except as described below regarding a person or group owning 20.0% or more of any class of units then outstanding, unitholders who are record
holders of units on the record date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, meetings of our limited partners and to act upon matters for which
approvals may be solicited.

Our general partner does not anticipate that any meeting of unitholders will be called in the foreseeable future. Any action that is required or
permitted to be taken by the unitholders may be taken either at a meeting of the unitholders or without a meeting if consents in writing
describing the action so taken are signed by holders of the number of units necessary to authorize or take that action at a meeting. Meetings of
the unitholders may be called by our general partner or by unitholders owning at least 20.0% of the outstanding units of the class for which a
meeting is proposed. Unitholders may vote either in person or by proxy at meetings. The holders of a majority of the outstanding units of the
class or classes for which a meeting has been called, represented in person or by proxy, will constitute a quorum unless any action by the
unitholders requires approval by holders of a greater percentage of the units, in which case the quorum will be the greater percentage. The units
representing the general partner interest are units for distribution and allocation purposes, but do not entitle our general partner to any vote other
than its rights as general partner under our partnership agreement, will not be entitled to vote on any action required or permitted to be taken by
the unitholders and will not count toward or be considered outstanding when calculating required votes, determining the presence of a quorum,
or for similar purposes.

Each record holder of a unit has a vote according to its percentage interest in us, although additional limited partner interests having special

voting rights could be issued. Please read ~ Issuance of Additional Securities. However, if at any time any person or group, other than our general
partner and its affiliates, or a direct or subsequently approved transferee of our general partner or its affiliates, acquires, in the aggregate,

beneficial ownership of 20.0% or more of any class of units then outstanding, that person or group will lose voting rights on all of its units and

the units may not be voted on any matter and will not be considered to be outstanding when sending notices of a meeting of unitholders,

calculating required votes, determining the presence of a quorum, or for other similar purposes. Common units held in nominee or street name
account will be voted by the broker or other nominee in accordance with the instruction of the beneficial owner unless the arrangement between

the beneficial owner and its nominee provides otherwise. Except as our partnership agreement otherwise provides, subordinated units will vote
together with common units as a single class.

Any notice, demand, request, report or proxy material required or permitted to be given or made to record holders of common units under our
partnership agreement will be delivered to the record holder by us or by the transfer agent.

Status as Limited Partner

By transfer of common units in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of common units will be admitted as a limited
partner with respect to the common units transferred when such transfer and admission are reflected in our books and records. Except as
described above under ~ Limited Liability, the common units will be fully paid, and unitholders will not be required to make additional
contributions.

Non-Citizen Assignees; Redemption

To avoid any adverse effect on the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us under Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
regulations, or in order to reverse an adverse determination that has occurred regarding such maximum applicable rate, our partnership
agreement provides our general partner the power to amend the agreement. If our general partner, with the advice of counsel, determines that our
not being treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, coupled with
the tax status (or lack of proof thereof) of one or more of our limited partners, has, or is reasonably likely to have, a material adverse effect on
the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us, then our general partner may adopt such amendments to our partnership agreement
as it determines necessary or advisable to:

obtain proof of the U.S. federal income tax status of our member (and their owners, to the extent relevant); and
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permit us to redeem the units held by any person whose tax status has or is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
maximum applicable rates or who fails to comply with the procedures instituted by our general partner to obtain proof of the U.S.
federal income tax status. The redemption price in the case of such a redemption will be the average of the daily closing prices per
unit for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date set for redemption.

A non-taxpaying assignee will not have the right to direct the voting of his units and may not receive distributions in kind upon our liquidation.

Non-Taxpaying Assignees; Redemption

In the event any rates that we charge our customers become regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, to avoid any adverse
effect on the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us, or in order to reverse an adverse determination that has occurred
regarding such maximum rate, our partnership agreement provides our general partner the power to amend the agreement. If our general partner,
with the advice of counsel, determines that our not being treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, coupled with the tax status (or lack of proof thereof) of one or more of our limited partners, has, or is
reasonably likely to have, a material adverse effect on the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us, then our general partner
may adopt such amendments to our partnership agreement as it determines necessary or advisable to:

obtain proof of the U.S. federal income tax status of our member (and their owners, to the extent relevant); and

permit us to redeem the units held by any person whose tax status has or is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
maximum applicable rates or who fails to comply with the procedures instituted by our general partner to obtain proof of the U.S.
federal income tax status. The redemption price in the case of such a redemption will be the average of the daily closing prices per
unit for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date set for redemption.

Indemnification

Under our partnership agreement, we will indemnify the following persons, in most circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from
and against all losses, claims, damages or similar events:

our general partner;

any departing general partner;

any person who is or was an affiliate of our general partner or any departing general partner;

any person who is or was a member, manager, partner, director, officer, fiduciary or trustee of our partnership, our subsidiaries, our
general partner, any departing general partner or any of their affiliates;

any person who is or was serving at the request of the general partner or any departing general partner as an officer, director,
member, manager, partner, fiduciary or trustee of another person; and

any person designated by our general partner.
Any indemnification under these provisions will only be out of our assets. Unless it otherwise agrees, our general partner will not be personally
liable for, or have any obligation to contribute or loan funds or assets to us to enable us to effectuate, indemnification. We may purchase
insurance against liabilities asserted against and expenses incurred by persons for our activities, regardless of whether we would have the power
to indemnify the person against liabilities under our partnership agreement.
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Reimbursement of Expenses

Our partnership agreement requires us to reimburse our general partner for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs or payments it makes on our
behalf and all other expenses allocable to us or otherwise incurred by our general partner in connection with operating our business. These
expenses include salary, bonus, incentive compensation and other amounts paid to persons who perform services for us or on our behalf and
expenses allocated to our general partner by its affiliates. Our general partner is entitled to determine in good faith the expenses that are allocable
to us.
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Books and Reports

Our general partner is required to keep or cause to be kept appropriate books and records of our business at our principal offices. The books will
be maintained for both tax and financial reporting purposes on an accrual basis. For fiscal and tax reporting purposes, we use the calendar year.

We will furnish or make available (by posting on our website or other reasonable means) to record holders of common units, within 120 days
after the close of each fiscal year, an annual report containing audited financial statements and a report on those financial statements by our
independent public accountants, including a balance sheet and statements of operations, and our equity and cash flows. Except for our fourth
quarter, we will also furnish or make available summary financial information within 90 days after the close of each quarter.

As soon as practicable, but in no event later than 90 days after the close of each quarter except the last quarter of each fiscal year, our general
partner will mail or make available to each record holder of a unit a report containing our unaudited financial statements and such other
information as may be required by applicable law, regulation or rule. This information is expected to be furnished in summary form so that some
complex calculations normally required of partners can be avoided. Our ability to furnish this summary information to unitholders will depend
on the cooperation of unitholders in supplying us with specific information. Every unitholder will receive information to assist him in
determining its federal and state tax liability and filing its federal and state income tax returns, regardless of whether he supplies us with
information.

Right to Inspect Our Books and Records

Our partnership agreement provides that a limited partner can, for a purpose reasonably related to its interest as a limited partner, upon
reasonable demand and at its own expense, have furnished to him:

a current list of the name and last known business, residence or mailing address of each record holder;

copies of our partnership agreement, the certificate of limited partnership of the partnership, related amendments, and powers of
attorney under which they have been executed;

information regarding the status of our business and financial condition; and

any other information regarding our affairs as is just and reasonable.

Our general partner may, and intends to, keep confidential from the limited partners trade secrets or other information the disclosure
of which our general partner believes in good faith is not in our best interests or that we are required by law or by agreements with
third parties to keep confidential.

Registration Rights

Under our partnership agreement, we have agreed to register for resale under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws any common
units, subordinated units, or other partnership securities proposed to be sold by our general partner or any of its affiliates, other than individuals,
or their assignees if an exemption from the registration requirements is not otherwise available. These registration rights continue for two years
and for so long thereafter as is required for the holder to sell its partnership securities following any withdrawal or removal of American
Midstream GP as our general partner. We are obligated to pay all expenses incidental to the registration, excluding underwriting discounts and
commissions.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

This section is a summary of the material tax considerations that may be relevant to prospective unitholders who are individual citizens or
residents of the U.S. and, unless otherwise noted in the following discussion, is the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP insofar as it relates to legal

Table of Contents 74



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

conclusions with respect to matters of U.S. federal income tax law. This section is based upon current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the Internal Revenue Code ), existing and proposed Treasury regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code
(the Treasury Regulations ) and current administrative rulings and court decisions, all of which are subject to change. Later changes in these
authorities may cause the tax consequences to vary substantially from the consequences described below. Unless the context otherwise requires,
references in this section to us or we are references to American Midstream Partners, LP and our operating subsidiaries.
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The following discussion does not comment on all U.S. federal income tax matters affecting us or our unitholders. Moreover, the discussion
focuses on unitholders who are individual citizens or residents of the U.S. and has only limited application to corporations, estates, entities
treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes, trusts, nonresident aliens, U.S. expatriates and former citizens or long-term
residents of the United States or other unitholders subject to specialized tax treatment, such as banks, insurance companies and other financial
institutions, tax-exempt institutions, non-U.S. persons (including, without limitation, controlled foreign corporations, passive foreign investment
companies and non-U.S. persons eligible for the benefits of an applicable income tax treaty with the United States), IRAs, real estate investment
trusts (REITs) or mutual funds, dealers in securities or currencies, traders in securities, U.S. persons whose functional currency is not the U.S.
dollar, persons holding their units as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion transaction or other risk reduction transaction, and persons deemed to
sell their units under the constructive sale provisions of the Code. In addition, the discussion only comments to a limited extent on state, local,
and non-U.S. tax consequences. Accordingly, we encourage each prospective unitholder to consult his own tax advisor in analyzing the state,
local and non-U.S. tax consequences particular to him of the ownership or disposition of common units.

No ruling has been or will be requested from the IRS regarding any matter affecting us or prospective unitholders. Instead, we will rely on
opinions of Andrews Kurth LLP. Unlike a ruling, an opinion of counsel represents only that counsel s best legal judgment and does not bind the
IRS or the courts. Accordingly, the opinions and statements made herein may not be sustained by a court if contested by the IRS. Any contest of
this sort with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for the common units and the prices at which common units trade. In
addition, the costs of any contest with the IRS, principally legal, accounting and related fees, will result in a reduction in cash available for
distribution to our unitholders and our general partner and thus will be borne indirectly by our unitholders and our general partner. Furthermore,
the tax treatment of us, or of an investment in us, may be significantly modified by future legislative or administrative changes or court
decisions. Any modifications may or may not be retroactively applied.

All statements as to matters of U.S. federal income tax law and legal conclusions with respect thereto, but not as to factual matters, contained in
this section, unless otherwise noted, are the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP and are based on the accuracy of the representations made by us.

For the reasons described below, Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion with respect to the following specific federal income tax

issues: (i) the treatment of a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of common units (please read Tax
Consequences of Unit Ownership Treatment of Short Sales ); (ii) whether our monthly convention for allocating taxable income and losses is
permitted by existing Treasury Regulations (please read  Disposition of Common Units  Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees ); and
(iii) whether our method for depreciating Section 743 adjustments is sustainable in certain cases (please read  Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Section 754 Election and  Uniformity of Units ).

Partnership Status

A partnership is not a taxable entity and incurs no federal income tax liability. Instead, each partner of a partnership is required to take into
account his share of items of income, gain, loss and deduction of the partnership in computing his federal income tax liability, regardless of
whether cash distributions are made to him by the partnership. Distributions by a partnership to a partner are generally not taxable to the partner
unless the amount of cash distributed to him is in excess of the partner s adjusted basis in his partnership interest. Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code provides that publicly traded partnerships will, as a general rule, be taxed as corporations. However, an exception, referred to as
the Qualifying Income Exception, exists with respect to publicly traded partnerships of which 90% or more of the gross income for every taxable
year consists of qualifying income. Qualifying income includes income and gains derived from the transportation, processing, storage and
marketing of crude oil, natural gas and products thereof. Other types of qualifying income include interest (other than from a financial business),
dividends, gains from the sale of real property and gains from the sale or other disposition of capital assets held for the production of income that
otherwise constitutes qualifying income. We estimate that less than 5% of our current gross income is not qualifying income; however, this
estimate could change from time to time. Based upon and subject to this estimate, the factual representations made by us and our general partner
and a review of the applicable legal authorities, Andrews Kurth LLP is of the opinion that at least 90% of our current gross income constitutes
qualifying income. The portion of our income that is qualifying income may change from time to time.
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No ruling has been or will be sought from the IRS regarding, and the IRS has made no determination as to, our status or the status of our
operating subsidiaries for federal income tax purposes or whether our operations generate qualifying income under Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Instead, we will rely on the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP on such matters. It is the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP that, based
upon the Internal Revenue Code, its regulations, published revenue rulings and court decisions and the representations described below that:

We are classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes; and

Each of our operating subsidiaries is disregarded as an entity separate from us for federal income tax purposes.
In rendering its opinion, Andrews Kurth LLP has relied on factual representations made by us or is treated as a partnership and our general
partner. The representations made by us and our general partner upon which Andrews Kurth LLP has relied include:

Neither we nor our operating subsidiaries have elected or will elect to be treated as a corporation; and

For each taxable year, more than 90% of our gross income has been and will be income of the type that Andrews Kurth LLP has
opined or will opine is qualifying income within the meaning of Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.
We believe that these representations have been true in the past and expect that these representations will continue to be true in the future.

If we fail to meet the Qualifying Income Exception, other than a failure that is determined by the IRS to be inadvertent and that is cured within a
reasonable time after discovery (in which case the IRS may also require us to make adjustments with respect to our unitholders or pay other
amounts), we will be treated as if we had transferred all of our assets, subject to liabilities, to a newly formed corporation, on the first day of the
year in which we fail to meet the Qualifying Income Exception, in return for stock in that corporation, and then distributed that stock to the
unitholders in liquidation of their interests in us. This deemed contribution and liquidation should be tax-free to unitholders and us so long as we,
at that time, do not have liabilities in excess of the tax basis of our assets. Thereafter, we would be treated as a corporation for federal income tax
purposes.

If we were taxed as a corporation in any taxable year, either as a result of a failure to meet the Qualifying Income Exception or otherwise, our
items of income, gain, loss and deduction would be reflected only on our tax return rather than being passed through to our unitholders, and our
net income would be taxed to us at corporate rates. In addition, any distribution made to a unitholder would be treated as taxable dividend

income, to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits, or, in the absence of earnings and profits, a nontaxable return of

capital, to the extent of the unitholder s tax basis in his common units, or taxable capital gain, after the unitholder s tax basis in his common units
is reduced to zero. Accordingly, taxation as a corporation would result in a material reduction in a unitholder s cash flow and after-tax return and
thus would likely result in a substantial reduction of the value of the units.

The discussion below is based on Andrews Kurth LLP s opinion that we will be classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.
Limited Partner Status

Unitholders of American Midstream Partners, LP will be treated as partners of American Midstream Partners, LP for federal income tax
purposes. Also, unitholders whose common units are held in street name or by a nominee and who have the right to direct the nominee in the
exercise of all substantive rights attendant to the ownership of their common units will be treated as partners of American Midstream Partners,
LP for federal income tax purposes.

A beneficial owner of common units whose units have been transferred to a short seller to complete a short sale would appear to lose his status
as a partner with respect to those units for federal income tax purposes. Please read  Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Treatment of Short
Sales.

Income, gain, deductions or losses would not appear to be reportable by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal income tax purposes, and
any cash distributions received by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal income tax purposes would therefore appear to be fully taxable as
ordinary income. These holders are urged to consult their tax advisors with respect to their tax consequences of holding common units in
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Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership
Flow-Through of Taxable Income

Subject to the discussion below under  Entity-Level Collections, we will not pay any federal income tax. Instead, each unitholder will be
required to report on his income tax return his share of our income, gains, losses and deductions without regard to whether we make cash
distributions to him. Consequently, we may allocate income to a unitholder even if he has not received a cash distribution. Each unitholder will
be required to include in income his allocable share of our income, gains, losses and deductions for our taxable year ending with or within his
taxable year. Our taxable year ends on December 31.

Treatment of Distributions

Distributions made by us to a unitholder generally will not be taxable to the unitholder for federal income tax purposes, except to the extent the
amount of any such cash distribution exceeds his tax basis in his common units immediately before the distribution. Cash distributions made by

us to a unitholder in an amount in excess of a unitholder s tax basis generally will be considered to be gain from the sale or exchange of the

common units, taxable in accordance with the rules described under ~ Disposition of Common Units. Any reduction in a unitholder s share of our
liabilities for which no partner, including the general partner, bears the economic risk of loss, known as nonrecourse liabilities, will be treated as

a distribution by us of cash to that unitholder. To the extent our distributions cause a unitholder s at-risk amount to be less than zero at the end of
any taxable year, he must recapture any losses deducted in previous years. Please read  Limitations on Deductibility of Losses.

A decrease in a unitholder s percentage interest in us because of our issuance of additional common units will decrease his share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, and thus will result in a corresponding deemed distribution of cash. This deemed distribution may constitute a non-pro

rata distribution. A non-pro rata distribution of money or property may result in ordinary income to a unitholder, regardless of his tax basis in his
common units, if the distribution reduces the unitholder s share of our unrealized receivables, including depreciation recapture, depletion
recapture and/or substantially appreciated inventory items, each as defined in the Internal Revenue Code, and collectively, Section 751 Assets.
To that extent, the unitholder will be treated as having been distributed his proportionate share of the Section 751 Assets and then having
exchanged those assets with us in return for the non-pro rata portion of the actual distribution made to him. This latter deemed exchange will
generally result in the unitholder s realization of ordinary income, which will equal the excess of (i) the non-pro rata portion of that distribution
over (ii) the unitholder s tax basis (generally zero) for the share of Section 751 Assets deemed relinquished in the exchange.

Basis of Common Units

A unitholder s initial tax basis for his common units will be the amount he paid for the common units plus his share of our nonrecourse liabilities.
That basis will be increased by his share of our income and by any increases in his share of our nonrecourse liabilities. That basis will be
decreased, but not below zero, by distributions from us, by the unitholder s share of our losses, by any decreases in his share of our nonrecourse
liabilities and by his share of our expenditures that are not deductible in computing taxable income and are not required to be capitalized. A
unitholder will have no share of our debt that is recourse to our general partner to the extent of the general partner s net value as defined in
regulations under Section 752 of the Internal Revenue Code, but will have a share, generally based on his share of profits, of our nonrecourse
liabilities. Please read  Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Limitations on Deductibility of Losses

The deduction by a unitholder of his share of our losses will be limited to the tax basis in his units and, in the case of an individual unitholder,
estate, trust, or corporate unitholder (if more than 50% of the value of the corporate unitholder s stock is owned directly or indirectly by or for

five or fewer individuals or some tax-exempt organizations) to the amount for which the unitholder is considered to be at risk with respect to our
activities, if that is less than his tax basis. A common unitholder subject to these limitations must recapture losses deducted in previous years to

the extent that distributions cause his at-risk amount to be less than zero at the end of any taxable year. Losses disallowed to a unitholder or
recaptured as a result of these limitations will carry forward and will be allowable as a deduction to the extent that his at-risk amount is
subsequently increased, provided such losses do not exceed such common unitholder s tax basis in his common units. Upon the taxable
disposition of a unit, any gain recognized by a unitholder can be offset by losses that were previously suspended by the at-risk limitation but may
not be offset by losses suspended by the basis limitation. Any loss previously suspended by the at-risk limitation in excess of that gain would no
longer be utilizable.
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In general, a unitholder will be at risk to the extent of the tax basis of his units, excluding any portion of that basis attributable to his share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, reduced by (i) any portion of that basis representing amounts otherwise protected against loss because of a guarantee,
stop loss agreement or other similar arrangement and (ii) any amount of money he borrows to acquire or hold his units, if the lender of those
borrowed funds owns an interest in us, is related to the unitholder or can look only to the units for repayment. A unitholder s at-risk amount will
increase or decrease as the tax basis of the unitholder s units increases or decreases, other than tax basis increases or decreases attributable to
increases or decreases in his share of our nonrecourse liabilities.

In addition to the basis and at-risk limitations on the deductibility of losses, the passive loss limitations generally provide that individuals,

estates, trusts and some closely-held corporations and personal service corporations can deduct losses from passive activities, which are
generally trade or business activities in which the taxpayer does not materially participate, only to the extent of the taxpayer s income from those
passive activities. The passive loss limitations are applied separately with respect to each publicly traded partnership. Consequently, any passive
losses we generate will only be available to offset our passive income generated in the future and will not be available to offset income from
other passive activities or investments, including our investments or a unitholder s investments in other publicly traded partnerships, or salary or
active business income. Passive losses that are not deductible because they exceed a unitholder s share of income we generate may be deducted
in full when he disposes of his entire investment in us in a fully taxable transaction with an unrelated party. The passive loss limitations are
applied after other applicable limitations on deductions, including the at-risk rules and the basis limitation.

A unitholder s share of our net income may be offset by any of our suspended passive losses, but it may not be offset by any other current or
carryover losses from other passive activities, including those attributable to other publicly traded partnerships.

Limitations on Interest Deductions

The deductibility of a non-corporate taxpayer s investment interest expense is generally limited to the amount of that taxpayer s net investment
income. Investment interest expense includes:

interest on indebtedness properly allocable to property held for investment;

our interest expense attributed to portfolio income; and

the portion of interest expense incurred to purchase or carry an interest in a passive activity to the extent attributable to portfolio

income.
The computation of a unitholder s investment interest expense will take into account interest on any margin account borrowing or other loan
incurred to purchase or carry a unit. Net investment income includes gross income from property held for investment and amounts treated as
portfolio income under the passive loss rules, less deductible expenses, other than interest, directly connected with the production of investment
income, but generally does not include gains attributable to the disposition of property held for investment or (if applicable) qualified dividend
income. The IRS has indicated that the net passive income earned by a publicly traded partnership will be treated as investment income to its
unitholders. In addition, the unitholder s share of our portfolio income will be treated as investment income.

Entity-Level Collections

If we are required or elect under applicable law to pay any federal, state, local or foreign income tax on behalf of any unitholder or our general
partner or any former unitholder, we are authorized to pay those taxes from our funds. That payment, if made, will be treated as a distribution of
cash to the unitholder on whose behalf the payment was made. If the payment is made on behalf of a person whose identity cannot be
determined, we are authorized to treat the payment as a distribution to all current unitholders. We are authorized to amend our partnership
agreement in the manner necessary to maintain uniformity of intrinsic tax characteristics of units and to adjust later distributions, so that after
giving effect to these distributions, the priority and characterization of distributions otherwise applicable under our partnership agreement is
maintained as nearly as is practicable. Payments by us as described above could give rise to an overpayment of tax on behalf of an individual
unitholder in which event the unitholder would be required to file a claim in order to obtain a credit or refund.
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Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction

In general, if we have a net profit, our items of income, gain, loss and deduction will be allocated among our general partner and the unitholders
in accordance with their percentage interests in us. At any time that distributions are made to the common units in excess of distributions to the
subordinated units, or incentive distributions are made to our general partner, gross income will be allocated to the recipients to the extent of
these distributions. If we have a net loss, that loss will be allocated first to our general partner and the unitholders in accordance with their
percentage interests in us to the extent of their positive capital accounts and, second, to our general partner.

Specified items of our income, gain, loss and deduction will be allocated to account for (i) any difference between the tax basis and fair market
value of our assets at the time of an offering and (ii) any difference between the tax basis and fair market value of any property contributed to us
by the general partner and its affiliates that exists at the time of such contribution, together referred to in this discussion as the Contributed
Property. The effect of these allocations, referred to as Section 704(c) Allocations, to a unitholder purchasing common units from us in an
offering will be essentially the same as if the tax bases of our assets were equal to their fair market values at the time of the offering. In the event
we issue additional common units or engage in certain other transactions in the future, reverse Section 704(c) Allocations, similar to the
Section 704(c) Allocations described above, will be made to the general partner and all of our unitholders immediately prior to such issuance or
other transactions to account for the difference between the book basis for purposes of maintaining capital accounts and the fair market value of
all property held by us at the time of such issuance or future transaction. In addition, items of recapture income will be allocated to the extent
possible to the unitholder who was allocated the deduction giving rise to the treatment of that gain as recapture income in order to minimize the
recognition of ordinary income by some unitholders. Finally, although we do not expect that our operations will result in the creation of negative
capital accounts, if negative capital accounts nevertheless result, items of our income and gain will be allocated in an amount and manner
sufficient to eliminate the negative balance as quickly as possible.

An allocation of items of our income, gain, loss or deduction, other than an allocation required by the Internal Revenue Code to eliminate the

difference between a partner s book capital account, credited with the fair market value of Contributed Property, and tax capital account, credited
with the tax basis of Contributed Property, referred to in this discussion as the Book-Tax Disparity, will generally be given effect for federal

income tax purposes in determining a partner s share of an item of income, gain, loss or deduction only if the allocation has substantial economic
effect. In any other case, a partner s share of an item will be determined on the basis of his interest in us, which will be determined by taking into
account all the facts and circumstances, including:

his relative contributions to us;

the interests of all the partners in profits and losses;

the interest of all the partners in cash flow; and

the rights of all the partners to distributions of capital upon liquidation.
Andrews Kurth LLP is of the opinion that, with the exception of the issues described in ~ Section 754 Election and  Disposition of Common Units
Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees, allocations under our partnership agreement will be given effect for federal income tax
purposes in determining a partner s share of an item of income, gain, loss or deduction.

Treatment of Short Sales

A unitholder whose units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of units may be considered as having disposed of those units. If so, he
would no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect to those units during the period of the loan and may recognize gain or loss
from the disposition. As a result, during this period:

any of our income, gain, loss or deduction with respect to those units would not be reportable by the unitholder;
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any cash distributions received by the unitholder as to those units would be fully taxable; and

all of these distributions would appear to be ordinary income.
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Because there is no direct or indirect controlling authority on the issue relating to partnership interests, Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an
opinion regarding the tax treatment of a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of common units;
therefore, unitholders desiring to assure their status as partners and avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan to a short seller are urged to
modify any applicable brokerage account agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing and loaning their units. The IRS has previously
announced that it is studying issues relating to the tax treatment of short sales of partnership interests. Please also read  Disposition of Common
Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Alternative Minimum Tax

Each unitholder will be required to take into account his distributive share of any items of our income, gain, loss or deduction for purposes of the
alternative minimum tax. The current minimum tax rate for noncorporate taxpayers is 26% on the first $175,000 of alternative minimum taxable
income in excess of the exemption amount and 28% on any additional alternative minimum taxable income. Prospective unitholders are urged to
consult with their tax advisors as to the impact of an investment in units on their liability for the alternative minimum tax.

Tax Rates

Under current law, the highest marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to ordinary income of individuals is 35% and the highest
marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to long-term capital gains (generally, capital gains on certain assets held for more than twelve
months) of individuals is 15%. These rates are scheduled to sunset after December 31, 2012, and, thereafter, about new legislation, the U.S.
federal income tax rates on both ordinary income and long-term capital gains will increase. Further, such rates are subject to change by new
legislation at any time.

A 3.8% Medicare tax on certain net investment income earned by individuals, estates and trusts will apply for taxable years beginning after
December 31, 2012. For these purposes, net investment income generally includes a unitholder s allocable share of our income and gain realized
by a unitholder from a sale of units. In the case of an individual, the tax will be imposed on the lesser of (i) the unitholder s net investment
income or (ii) the amount by which the unitholder s modified adjusted gross income exceeds $250,000 (if the unitholder is married and filing
jointly or a surviving spouse), $125,000 (if the unitholder is married and filing separately) or $200,000 (in any other case). In the case of an
estate or trust, the tax will be imposed on the lesser of (i) undistributed net investment income, or (ii) the excess adjusted gross income over the
dollar amount at which the highest income tax bracket applicable to an estate or trust begins.

Section 754 Election

We have made the election permitted by Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code. That election is irrevocable without the consent of the IRS

unless there is a constructive termination of the partnership. Please read  Disposition of Common Units Constructive Termination. The election
will generally permit us to adjust a common unit purchaser s tax basis in our assets ( inside basis ) under Section 743(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code to reflect his purchase price. This election does not apply with respect to a person who purchases common units directly from us. The

Section 743(b) adjustment belongs to the purchaser and not to other unitholders. For purposes of this discussion, the inside basis in our assets

with respect to a unitholder will be considered to have two components: (i) his share of our tax basis in our assets ( common basis ) and (ii) his
Section 743(b) adjustment to that basis.

We have adopted the remedial allocation method as to all our properties. Where the remedial allocation method is adopted, the Treasury
Regulations under Section 743 of the Internal Revenue Code require a portion of the Section 743(b) adjustment that is attributable to recovery
property that is subject to depreciation under Section 168 of the Internal Revenue Code and whose book basis is in excess of its tax basis to be
depreciated over the remaining cost recovery period for the property s unamortized Book-Tax Disparity. Under Treasury Regulation

Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6), a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to property subject to depreciation under Section 167 of the Internal Revenue
Code, rather than cost recovery deductions under Section 168, is generally required to be depreciated using either the straight-line method or the
150% declining balance method. Under our partnership agreement, our general partner is authorized to take a position to preserve the uniformity
of units even if that position is not consistent with these and any other Treasury Regulations. Please read ~ Uniformity of Units.

We depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to unrealized appreciation in the value of Contributed Property, to the
extent of any unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, using a rate of depreciation or
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amortization derived from the depreciation or amortization method and useful life applied to the property s unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, or
treat that portion as non-amortizable to the extent attributable to property which is not amortizable. This method is consistent with the methods
employed by other publicly traded partnerships but is arguably inconsistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6), which is not
expected to directly apply to a material portion of our assets. To the extent this Section 743(b) adjustment is attributable to appreciation in value
in excess of the unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, we will apply the rules described in the Treasury Regulations and legislative history. If we
determine that this position cannot reasonably be taken, we may take a depreciation or amortization position under which all purchasers

acquiring units in the same month would receive depreciation or amortization, whether attributable to common basis or a Section 743(b)
adjustment, based upon the same applicable rate as if they had purchased a direct interest in our assets. This kind of aggregate approach may
result in lower annual depreciation or amortization deductions than would otherwise be allowable to some unitholders. Please read ~ Uniformity
of Units. A unitholder s tax basis for his common units is reduced by his share of our deductions (whether or not such deductions were claimed
on an individual s income tax return) so that any position we take that understates deductions will overstate the common unitholder s basis in his
common units, which may cause the unitholder to understate gain or overstate loss on any sale of such units. Please read  Disposition of
Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss. Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion as to whether our method for depreciating
Section 743 adjustments is sustainable for property subject to depreciation under Section 167 of the Internal Revenue Code or if we use an
aggregate approach as described above, as there is no direct or indirect controlling authority addressing the validity of these positions. Moreover,
the IRS may challenge our position with respect to depreciating or amortizing the Section 743(b) adjustment we take to preserve the uniformity
of the units. If such a challenge were sustained, the gain from the sale of units might be increased without the benefit of additional deductions.

A Section 754 election is advantageous if the transferee s tax basis in his units is higher than the units share of the aggregate tax basis of our
assets immediately prior to the transfer. In that case, as a result of the election, the transferee would have, among other items, a greater amount

of depreciation deductions and his share of any gain or loss on a sale of our assets would be less. Conversely, a Section 754 election is
disadvantageous if the transferee s tax basis in his units is lower than those units share of the aggregate tax basis of our assets immediately prior
to the transfer. Thus, the fair market value of the units may be affected either favorably or unfavorably by the election. A basis adjustment is
required regardless of whether a Section 754 election is made in the case of a transfer of an interest in us if we have a substantial built-in loss
immediately after the transfer, or if we distribute property and have a substantial basis reduction. Generally, a built-in loss or a basis reduction is
substantial if it exceeds $250,000.

The calculations involved in the Section 754 election are complex and will be made on the basis of assumptions as to the value of our assets and
other matters. For example, the allocation of the Section 743(b) adjustment among our assets must be made in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Code. The IRS could seek to reallocate some or all of any Section 743(b) adjustment allocated by us to our tangible assets to goodwill
instead. Goodwill, as an intangible asset, is generally nonamortizable or amortizable over a longer period of time or under a less accelerated
method than our tangible assets. We cannot assure you that the determinations we make will not be successfully challenged by the IRS and that
the deductions resulting from them will not be reduced or disallowed altogether. Should the IRS require a different basis adjustment to be made,
and should, in our opinion, the expense of compliance exceed the benefit of the election, we may seek permission from the IRS to revoke our
Section 754 election. If permission is granted, a subsequent purchaser of units may be allocated more income than he would have been allocated
had the election not been revoked.

Tax Treatment of Operations
Accounting Method and Taxable Year

We use the year ending December 31 as our taxable year and the accrual method of accounting for federal income tax purposes. Each unitholder
will be required to include in income his share of our income, gain, loss and deduction for our taxable year ending within or with his taxable
year. In addition, a unitholder who has a taxable year ending on a date other than December 31 and who disposes of all of his units following the
close of our taxable year but before the close of his taxable year must include his share of our income, gain, loss and deduction in income for his
taxable year, with the result that he will be required to include in income for his taxable year his share of more than twelve months of our
income, gain, loss and deduction. Please read Disposition of Common Units  Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees.
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The tax basis of our assets will be used for purposes of computing depreciation and cost recovery deductions and, ultimately, gain or loss on the
disposition of these assets. The federal income tax burden associated with the difference between the fair market value of our assets and their tax
basis immediately prior to an offering will be borne by our unitholders holding interests in us prior to any such offering. Please read = Tax
Consequences of Unit Ownership  Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction.

To the extent allowable, we may elect to use the depreciation and cost recovery methods, including bonus depreciation to the extent available,
that will result in the largest deductions being taken in the early years after assets subject to these allowances are placed in service. Please read
Uniformity of Units. Property we subsequently acquire or construct may be depreciated using accelerated methods permitted by the Internal
Revenue Code.

If we dispose of depreciable property by sale, foreclosure or otherwise, all or a portion of any gain, determined by reference to the amount of
depreciation previously deducted and the nature of the property, may be subject to the recapture rules and taxed as ordinary income rather than
capital gain. Similarly, a unitholder who has taken cost recovery or depreciation deductions with respect to property we own will likely be

required to recapture some or all of those deductions as ordinary income upon a sale of his interest in us. Please read ~ Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction and  Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

The costs we incur in selling our units (called syndication expenses ) must be capitalized and cannot be deducted currently, ratably or upon our
termination. There are uncertainties regarding the classification of costs as organization expenses, which may be amortized by us, and as
syndication expenses, which may not be amortized by us. The underwriting discounts and commissions we incur will be treated as syndication
expenses.

Valuation and Tax Basis of Our Properties

The federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of units will depend in part on our estimates of the relative fair market
values, and the initial tax bases, of our assets. Although we may from time to time consult with professional appraisers regarding valuation
matters, we will make many of the relative fair market value estimates ourselves. These estimates and determinations of basis are subject to
challenge and will not be binding on the IRS or the courts. If the estimates of fair market value or basis are later found to be incorrect, the
character and amount of items of income, gain, loss or deductions previously reported by unitholders might change, and unitholders might be
required to adjust their tax liability for prior years and incur interest and penalties with respect to those adjustments.

Disposition of Common Units
Recognition of Gain or Loss

Gain or loss will be recognized on a sale of units equal to the difference between the amount realized and the unitholder s tax basis for the units
sold. A unitholder s amount realized will be measured by the sum of the cash or the fair market value of other property received by him plus his
share of our nonrecourse liabilities. Because the amount realized includes a unitholder s share of our nonrecourse liabilities, the gain recognized
on the sale of units could result in a tax liability in excess of any cash received from the sale.

Prior distributions from us that in the aggregate were in excess of cumulative net taxable income for a common unit and, therefore, decreased a
unitholder s tax basis in that common unit will, in effect, become taxable income if the common unit is sold at a price greater than the unitholder s
tax basis in that common unit, even if the price received is less than his original cost.

Except as noted below, gain or loss recognized by a unitholder, other than a dealer in units, on the sale or exchange of a unit will generally be
taxable as capital gain or loss. Capital gain recognized by an individual on the sale of units held for more than twelve months will generally be
taxed at the U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to long-term capital gains. However, a portion of this gain or loss, which will likely be
substantial, will be separately computed and taxed as ordinary income or loss under Section 751 of the Internal Revenue Code to the extent
attributable to assets giving rise to depreciation recapture or other unrealized receivables orto inventory items we own. The term unrealized
receivables includes potential recapture items, including depreciation recapture. Ordinary income attributable to unrealized receivables,

inventory items and depreciation recapture may exceed net taxable gain realized upon the sale of a unit and may be recognized even if there is a
net taxable loss realized on the sale of a unit. Thus, a unitholder may recognize both ordinary income and a capital loss upon a sale of units.
Capital losses may offset capital gains and no more than $3,000 of ordinary income each year, in the case of individuals, and may only be used

to offset capital gains in the case of corporations.
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The IRS has ruled that a partner who acquires interests in a partnership in separate transactions must combine those interests and maintain a
single adjusted tax basis for all those interests. Upon a sale or other disposition of less than all of those interests, a portion of that tax basis must
be allocated to the interests sold using an equitable apportionment method, which generally means that the tax basis allocated to the interest sold
equals an amount that bears the same relation to the partner s tax basis in his entire interest in the partnership as the value of the interest sold
bears to the value of the partner s entire interest in the partnership. Treasury Regulations under Section 1223 of the Internal Revenue Code allow
a selling unitholder who can identify common units transferred with an ascertainable holding period to elect to use the actual holding period of
the common units transferred. Thus, according to the ruling discussed above, a common unitholder will be unable to select high or low basis
common units to sell as would be the case with corporate stock, but, according to the Treasury Regulations, he may designate specific common
units sold for purposes of determining the holding period of units transferred. A unitholder electing to use the actual holding period of common
units transferred must consistently use that identification method for all subsequent sales or exchanges of common units. A unitholder
considering the purchase of additional units or a sale of common units purchased in separate transactions is urged to consult his tax advisor as to
the possible consequences of this ruling and application of the Treasury Regulations.

Specific provisions of the Internal Revenue Code affect the taxation of some financial products and securities, including partnership interests, by
treating a taxpayer as having sold an appreciated partnership interest, one in which gain would be recognized if it were sold, assigned or
terminated at its fair market value, if the taxpayer or related persons enter(s) into:

a short sale;

an offsetting notional principal contract; or

a futures or forward contract;
in each case, with respect to the partnership interest or substantially identical property.

Moreover, if a taxpayer has previously entered into a short sale, an offsetting notional principal contract or a futures or forward contract with
respect to the partnership interest, the taxpayer will be treated as having sold that position if the taxpayer or a related person then acquires the
partnership interest or substantially identical property. The Secretary of the Treasury is also authorized to issue regulations that treat a taxpayer
that enters into transactions or positions that have substantially the same effect as the preceding transactions as having constructively sold the
financial position.

Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees

In general, our taxable income and losses will be determined annually, will be prorated on a monthly basis and will be subsequently apportioned
among the unitholders in proportion to the number of units owned by each of them as of the opening of the applicable exchange on the first
business day of the month, which we refer to in this prospectus as the Allocation Date. However, gain or loss realized on a sale or other
disposition of our assets other than in the ordinary course of business will be allocated among the unitholders on the Allocation Date in the
month in which that gain or loss is recognized. As a result, a unitholder transferring units may be allocated income, gain, loss and deduction
realized after the date of transfer.

Although simplifying conventions are contemplated by the Internal Revenue Code and most publicly traded partnerships use similar simplifying
conventions, the use of this method may not be permitted under existing Treasury Regulations as there is no direct or indirect controlling
authority on this issue. The Department of the Treasury and the IRS have issued proposed Treasury Regulations that provide a safe harbor
pursuant to which a publicly traded partnership may use a similar monthly simplifying convention to allocate tax items among transferor and
transferee unitholders, although such tax items must be prorated on a daily basis. Nonetheless, the proposed regulations do not specifically
authorize the use of the proration method we have adopted. Existing publicly traded partnerships are entitled to rely on these proposed Treasury
Regulations; however, they are not binding on the IRS and are subject to change until final Treasury Regulations are issued. Accordingly,
Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion on the validity of this method of allocating income and deductions between transferor and
transferee unitholders because the issue has not been finally resolved by the IRS or the courts. If this method is not allowed under the Treasury
Regulations, or only applies to transfers of less than all of the unitholder s interest, our taxable
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income or losses might be reallocated among the unitholders. We are authorized to revise our method of allocation between transferor and
transferee unitholders, as well as unitholders whose interests vary during a taxable year, to conform to a method permitted under future Treasury
Regulations.

A unitholder who disposes of common units prior to the record date set for a cash distribution for any quarter will be allocated items of our
income, gain, loss and deductions attributable to the month of sale but will not be entitled to receive that cash distribution.

Notification Requirements

A unitholder who sells any of his units is generally required to notify us in writing of that sale within 30 days after the sale (or, if earlier,
January 15 of the year following the sale). A purchaser of units who purchases units from another unitholder is also generally required to notify
us in writing of that purchase within 30 days after the purchase. Upon receiving such notifications, we are required to notify the IRS of that
transaction and to furnish specified information to the transferor and transferee. Failure to notify us of a purchase may, in some cases, lead to the
imposition of penalties. However, these reporting requirements do not apply to a sale by an individual who is a citizen of the U.S. and who
effects the sale or exchange through a broker who will satisfy such requirements.

Constructive Termination

We will be considered to have terminated our tax partnership for federal income tax purposes if there are sales or exchanges which, in the
aggregate, constitute 50% or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period. For purposes of measuring
whether the 50% threshold is reached, multiple sales of the same interest are counted only once. A constructive termination results in the closing
of our taxable year for all unitholders. In the case of a unitholder reporting on a taxable year other than a fiscal year ending December 31, the
closing of our taxable year may result in more than twelve months of our taxable income or loss being includable in his taxable income for the
year of termination. A constructive termination occurring on a date other than December 31 will result in us filing two tax returns (and
unitholders could receive two Schedules K-1 if the relief discussed below is not available) for one fiscal year and the cost of the preparation of
these returns will be borne by all common unitholders. We would be required to make new tax elections after a termination, including a new
election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code, and a termination would result in a deferral of our deductions for depreciation. A
termination could also result in penalties if we were unable to determine that the termination had occurred. Moreover, a termination might either
accelerate the application of, or subject us to, any tax legislation enacted before the termination. The IRS has announced a publicly traded
partnership technical termination relief procedure whereby if a publicly traded partnership that has technically terminated requests publicly
traded partnership technical termination relief and the IRS grants such relief, among other things, the partnership will only have to provide one
Schedule K-1 to unitholders for the year notwithstanding two partnership tax years.

Uniformity of Units

Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of units, we must maintain uniformity of the economic and tax characteristics of the units
to a purchaser of these units. In the absence of uniformity, we may be unable to completely comply with a number of federal income tax
requirements, both statutory and regulatory. A lack of uniformity can result from a literal application of Treasury Regulation

Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6). Any non-uniformity could have a negative impact on the value of the units. Please read  Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Section 754 Election. We depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to unrealized appreciation in the value of
Contributed Property, to the extent of any unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, using a rate of depreciation or amortization derived from the
depreciation or amortization method and useful life applied to the property s unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, or treat that portion as
nonamortizable, to the extent attributable to property the common basis of which is not amortizable, consistent with the regulations under
Section 743 of the Internal Revenue Code, even though that position may be inconsistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6),
which is not expected to directly apply to a material portion of our assets. Please read = Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Section 754
Election. To the extent that the Section 743(b) adjustment is attributable to appreciation in value in excess of the unamortized Book-Tax
Disparity, we will apply the rules described in the Treasury Regulations and legislative history. If we determine that this position cannot
reasonably be taken, we may adopt a depreciation and amortization position under which all purchasers acquiring units in the same month would
receive depreciation and amortization deductions, whether attributable to common basis or a Section 743(b) adjustment, based upon the same
applicable rate as if they had purchased a direct interest in our assets. If this position is adopted, it may result in lower annual depreciation and
amortization deductions than would otherwise be allowable to some unitholders and risk the loss of depreciation and amortization deductions not
taken in the year that
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these deductions are otherwise allowable. This position will not be adopted if we determine that the loss of depreciation and amortization

deductions will have a material adverse effect on the unitholders. If we choose not to utilize this aggregate method, we may use any other

reasonable depreciation and amortization method to preserve the uniformity of the intrinsic tax characteristics of any units that would not have a
material adverse effect on the unitholders. In either case, and as stated above under Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership  Section 754 Election,
Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion with respect to these methods. Moreover, the IRS may challenge any method of depreciating

the Section 743(b) adjustment described in this paragraph. If this challenge were sustained, the uniformity of units might be affected, and the

gain from the sale of units might be increased without the benefit of additional deductions. Please read  Disposition of Common Units
Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Tax-Exempt Organizations and Other Investors

Ownership of units by employee benefit plans, other tax-exempt organizations, non-resident aliens, non-U.S. corporations and other non-U.S.
persons raises issues unique to those investors and, as described below to a limited extent, may have substantially adverse tax consequences to
them. If you are a tax-exempt entity or a non-U.S. person, you should consult your tax advisor before investing in our common units. Employee
benefit plans and most other organizations exempt from federal income tax, including individual retirement accounts and other retirement plans,
are subject to federal income tax on unrelated business taxable income. Virtually all of our income allocated to a unitholder that is a tax-exempt
organization will be unrelated business taxable income and will be taxable to it.

Non-resident aliens and non-U.S. corporations, trusts or estates that own units will be considered to be engaged in business in the U.S. because
of the ownership of units. As a consequence, they will be required to file federal tax returns to report their share of our income, gain, loss or
deduction and pay federal income tax at regular rates on their share of our net income or gain. Moreover, under rules applicable to publicly
traded partnerships, our quarterly distribution to non-U.S. unitholders will be subject to withholding at the highest applicable effective tax rate.
Each non-U.S. unitholder must obtain a taxpayer identification number from the IRS and submit that number to our transfer agent on a Form
W-8BEN or applicable substitute form in order to obtain credit for these withholding taxes. A change in applicable law may require us to change
these procedures.

In addition, because a non-U.S. corporation that owns units will be treated as engaged in a U.S. trade or business, that corporation may be
subject to the U.S. branch profits tax at a rate of 30%, in addition to regular federal income tax, on its share of our earnings and profits, as
adjusted for changes in the non-U.S. corporation s U.S. net equity, that is effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business. That
tax may be reduced or eliminated by an income tax treaty between the U.S. and the country in which the non-U.S. corporate unitholder is a
qualified resident. In addition, this type of unitholder is subject to special information reporting requirements under Section 6038C of the
Internal Revenue Code.

A non-U.S. unitholder who sells or otherwise disposes of a common unit will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gain realized from the sale
or disposition of that unit to the extent the gain is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the non-U.S. unitholder. Under a ruling
published by the IRS, interpreting the scope of effectively connected income, a non-U.S. unitholder would be considered to be engaged in a
trade or business in the U.S. by virtue of the U.S. activities of the partnership, and part or all of that unitholder s gain would be effectively
connected with that unitholder s indirect U.S. trade or business. Moreover, under the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act, a non-U.S.
unitholder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax upon the sale or disposition of a common unit if (i) he owned (directly or
constructively applying certain attribution rules) more than 5% of our common units at any time during the five-year period ending on the date
of such disposition and (ii) 50% or more of the fair market value of all of our assets consisted of U.S. real property interests at any time during
the shorter of the period during which such unitholder held the common units or the five-year period ending on the date of disposition.
Currently, we believe that more than 50% of our assets consist of U.S. real property interests and we do not expect that to change in the
foreseeable future. Therefore, non-U.S. unitholdolders may be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gain from the sale or disposition of their
units.

Administrative Matters
Information Returns and Audit Procedures

We intend to furnish to each unitholder, within 90 days after the close of each calendar year, specific tax information, including a Schedule K-1,
which describes his share of our income, gain, loss and deduction for our preceding taxable year. In preparing this information, which will not be
reviewed by counsel, we will take various
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accounting and reporting positions, some of which have been mentioned earlier, to determine each unitholder s share of income, gain, loss and
deduction. We cannot assure you that those positions will yield a result that conforms to the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code,
Treasury Regulations or administrative interpretations of the IRS. Neither we nor Andrews Kurth LLP can assure prospective unitholders that
the IRS will not successfully contend in court that those positions are impermissible. Any challenge by the IRS could negatively affect the value
of the units.

The IRS may audit our federal income tax information returns. Adjustments resulting from an IRS audit may require each unitholder to adjust a
prior year s tax liability, and possibly may result in an audit of his return.

Any audit of a unitholder s return could result in adjustments not related to our returns as well as those related to our returns.

Partnerships generally are treated as separate entities for purposes of federal tax audits, judicial review of administrative adjustments by the IRS
and tax settlement proceedings. The tax treatment of partnership items of income, gain, loss and deduction are determined in a partnership
proceeding rather than in separate proceedings with the partners. The Internal Revenue Code requires that one partner be designated as the Tax
Matters Partner for these purposes. Our partnership agreement names American Midstream GP, LLC as our Tax Matters Partner.

The Tax Matters Partner has made and will make some elections on our behalf and on behalf of unitholders. In addition, the Tax Matters Partner
can extend the statute of limitations for assessment of tax deficiencies against unitholders for items in our returns. The Tax Matters Partner may
bind a unitholder with less than a 1% profits interest in us to a settlement with the IRS unless that unitholder elects, by filing a statement with the
IRS, not to give that authority to the Tax Matters Partner. The Tax Matters Partner may seek judicial review, by which all the unitholders are
bound, of a final partnership administrative adjustment and, if the Tax Matters Partner fails to seek judicial review, judicial review may be
sought by any unitholder having at least a 1% interest in profits or by any group of unitholders having in the aggregate at least a 5% interest in
profits. However, only one action for judicial review will go forward, and each unitholder with an interest in the outcome may participate.

A unitholder must file a statement with the IRS identifying the treatment of any item on his federal income tax return that is not consistent with
the treatment of the item on our return. Intentional or negligent disregard of this consistency requirement may subject a unitholder to substantial
penalties.

Nominee Reporting

Persons who hold an interest in us as a nominee for another person are required to furnish to us:

the name, address and taxpayer identification number of the beneficial owner and the nominee;

whether the beneficial owner is:

a person that is not a U.S. person;

anon-U.S. government, an international organization or any wholly owned agency or instrumentality of either of the
foregoing; or

a tax-exempt entity;

the amount and description of units held, acquired or transferred for the beneficial owner; and
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specific information including the dates of acquisitions and transfers, means of acquisitions and transfers, and acquisition cost for
purchases, as well as the amount of net proceeds from dispositions.
Brokers and financial institutions are required to furnish additional information, including whether they are U.S. persons and specific
information on units they acquire, hold or transfer for their own account. A penalty of $100 per failure, up to a maximum of $1.5 million per
calendar year, is imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for failure to report that information to us. The nominee is required to supply the
beneficial owner of the units with the information furnished to us.

Accuracy-Related Penalties

An additional tax equal to 20% of the amount of any portion of an underpayment of tax that is attributable to one or more specified causes,
including negligence or disregard of rules or regulations, substantial understatements of income tax and substantial valuation misstatements, is
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. No penalty will be imposed, however, for any portion of an underpayment if it is shown that there was a
reasonable cause for that portion and that the taxpayer acted in good faith regarding that portion.
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For individuals, a substantial understatement of income tax in any taxable year exists if the amount of the understatement exceeds the greater of
10% of the tax required to be shown on the return for the taxable year or $5,000 ($10,000 for most corporations). The amount of any
understatement subject to penalty generally is reduced if any portion is attributable to a position adopted on the return:

for which there is, or was, substantial authority ; or

as to which there is a reasonable basis and the pertinent facts of that position are disclosed on the return.
If any item of income, gain, loss or deduction included in the distributive shares of unitholders might result in that kind of an understatement of
income for which no substantial authority exists, we must disclose the pertinent facts on our return. In addition, we will make a reasonable effort
to furnish sufficient information for unitholders to make adequate disclosure on their returns and to take other actions as may be appropriate to
permit unitholders to avoid liability for this penalty. More stringent rules apply to tax shelters, which we do not believe includes us, or any of our
investments, plans or arrangements.

A substantial valuation misstatement exists if (a) the value of any property, or the adjusted basis of any property, claimed on a tax return is 150%
or more of the amount determined to be the correct amount of the valuation or adjusted basis, (b) the price for any property or services (or for the
use of property) claimed on any such return with respect to any transaction between persons described in Internal Revenue Code Section 482 is
200% or more (or 50% or less) of the amount determined under Section 482 to be the correct amount of such price, or (c) the net Internal
Revenue Code Section 482 transfer price adjustment for the taxable year exceeds the lesser of $5 million or 10% of the taxpayer s gross receipts.
No penalty is imposed unless the portion of the underpayment attributable to a substantial valuation misstatement exceeds $5,000 ($10,000 for
most corporations). If the valuation claimed on a return is 200% or more than the correct valuation or certain other thresholds are met, the
penalty imposed increases to 40%. We do not anticipate making any valuation misstatements.

In addition, the 20% accuracy-related penalty also applies to any portion of an underpayment of tax that is attributable to transactions lacking
economic substance. To the extent that such transactions are not disclosed, the penalty imposed is increased to 40%. Additionally, there is no
reasonable cause defense to the imposition of this penalty to such transactions.

Reportable Transactions.

If we were to engage ina reportable transaction, we (and possibly you and others) would be required to make a detailed disclosure of the
transaction to the IRS. A transaction may be a reportable transaction based upon any of several factors, including the fact that it is a type of tax
avoidance transaction publicly identified by the IRS as a listed transaction or that it produces certain kinds of losses for partnerships, individuals,
S corporations, and trusts in excess of $2 million in any single year, or $4 million in any combination of six successive tax years. Our

participation in a reportable transaction could increase the likelihood that our federal income tax information return (and possibly your tax

return) would be audited by the IRS. Please read  Information Returns and Audit Procedures.

Moreover, if we were to participate in a reportable transaction with a significant purpose to avoid or evade tax, or in any listed transaction, you
may be subject to the following additional consequences:

accuracy-related penalties with a broader scope, significantly narrower exceptions, and potentially greater amounts than described
above at Accuracy-Related Penalties ;

for those persons otherwise entitled to deduct interest on federal tax deficiencies, nondeductibility of interest on any resulting tax
liability; and

in the case of a listed transaction, an extended statute of limitations.
We do not expect to engage in any reportable transactions.
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by administrative, legislative or judicial interpretation at any time. For example,
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from time to time, members of the U.S. Congress propose and consider substantive changes to the existing federal income tax laws that affect
publicly traded partnerships. Currently, one such legislative proposal would eliminate the qualifying income tax exception upon which we rely
for our treatment as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Please read  Partnership Status. We are unable to predict whether any
such changes will ultimately be enacted. However, it is possible that a change in law could affect us and may be applied retroactively. Any such
changes could negatively impact the value of an investment in our units.

State, Local and Other Tax Considerations

In addition to federal income taxes, you likely will be subject to other taxes, such as state and local income taxes, unincorporated business taxes,
and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that may be imposed by the various jurisdictions in which we conduct business or own property or in
which you are a resident. We currently conduct business or own property in several states, most of which impose personal income taxes on
individuals. Most of these states also impose an income or other entity-level tax on corporations and other entities. Moreover, we may also do
business or own property in other states in the future that impose income or similar taxes on individuals, corporations and other entities.
Although an analysis of those various taxes is not presented here, each prospective unitholder should consider their potential impact on his
investment in us. A unitholder may be required to file income tax returns and to pay income taxes in many of these jurisdictions in which we
conduct business or own property and may be subject to penalties for failure to comply with those requirements. In some jurisdictions, tax losses
may not produce a tax benefit in the year incurred and may not be available to offset income in subsequent taxable years. Some of the
jurisdictions may require us, or we may elect, to withhold a percentage of income from amounts to be distributed to a unitholder who is not a
resident of the jurisdiction. Withholding, the amount of which may be greater or less than a particular unitholder s income tax liability to the
jurisdiction, generally does not relieve a nonresident unitholder from the obligation to file an income tax return. Amounts withheld will be
treated as if distributed to unitholders for purposes of determining the amounts distributed by us. Please read =~ Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Entity-Level Collections. Based on current law and our estimate of our future operations, our general partner anticipates that any
amounts required to be withheld will not be material.

It is the responsibility of each unitholder to investigate the legal and tax consequences, under the laws of pertinent states and localities,
of his investment in us. Accordingly, each prospective unitholder is urged to consult his own tax counsel or other advisor with regard to
those matters. Further, it is the responsibility of each unitholder to file all state, local and non-U.S., as well as U.S. federal tax returns,
that may be required of him. Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion on the state, local or non-U.S. tax consequences of an
investment in us.

Tax Consequences of Ownership of Debt Securities

Because the terms and corresponding tax consequences of various debt issuances may differ significantly, descriptions of the material U.S.
federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of debt securities will be set forth in the prospectus supplement
relating to the offering of any such debt securities.

INVESTMENT IN THE PARTNERSHIP BY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

An investment in us by an employee benefit plan is subject to additional considerations because the investments of these plans are subject to the
fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and restrictions imposed by Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code.
For these purposes, the term employee benefit plan includes, but is not limited to, qualified pension, profit-sharing and stock bonus plans, Keogh
plans, simplified employee pension plans and tax deferred annuities or IRAs established or maintained by an employer or employee

organization. Among other things, the person with investment discretion with respect to the assets of an employee benefit plan, often called a
fiduciary, should consider:

whether the investment is prudent under Section 404(a)(1)(B) of ERISA;

whether in making the investment, that plan will satisfy the diversification requirements of Section 404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA; and

whether the investment will result in recognition of unrelated business taxable income by the plan and, if so, the potential after-tax
investment return.

Table of Contents 97



Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

51

98



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

A plan fiduciary should determine whether an investment in us is authorized by the appropriate governing instrument and is a proper investment
for the plan.

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code prohibits employee benefit plans, and IRAs that are not considered part of
an employee benefit plan, from engaging in specified transactions involving plan assets with parties that are parties in interest under ERISA or
disqualified persons under the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the plan.

In addition to considering whether the purchase of common units is a prohibited transaction, a fiduciary of an employee benefit plan should
consider whether the plan will, by investing in us, be deemed to own an undivided interest in our assets, with the result that the Partnership also
would be a fiduciary of the plan and our operations would be subject to the regulatory restrictions of ERISA, including its prohibited transaction
rules, as well as the prohibited transaction rules of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Department of Labor regulations and Section 3(42) of ERISA provide guidance with respect to whether the assets of an entity in which
employee benefit plans acquire equity interests would be deemed plan assets under some circumstances. Under these rules, an entity s assets
would not be considered to be plan assets if, among other things:

the equity interests acquired by employee benefit plans are publicly offered securities i.e., the equity interests are widely held by 100
or more investors independent of the issuer and each other, freely transferable and registered under some provisions of the federal
securities laws;

the entity is an operating company, i.e., it is primarily engaged in the production or sale of a product or service other than the
investment of capital either directly or through a majority owned subsidiary or subsidiaries; or

there is no significant investment by benefit plan investors, which is defined to mean that less than 25% of the value of each class of
equity interest, disregarding some interests held by the Partnership, its affiliates, and some other persons, is held by employee benefit
plans subject to Part 4 of Title I of ERISA, IRAs and other plans subject to Section 4975 of the Code and any entity whose
underlying assets include plan assets by reason of such plan s investment in such entity.
Our assets should not be considered plan assets under these regulations because it is expected that the investment will satisfy the requirements in
the first bullet above.

Plan fiduciaries contemplating a purchase of our common units should consult with their own counsel regarding the consequences under ERISA
and the Internal Revenue Code in light of the serious penalties imposed on persons who engage in prohibited transactions or other violations.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
We may sell the securities being offered hereby directly to purchasers, through agents, through underwriters or through dealers.

We, or agents designated by us, may directly solicit, from time to time, offers to purchase the securities. Any such agent may be deemed to be an
underwriter as that term is defined in the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We will name the agents involved in the offer or sale of the
securities and describe any commissions payable by us to these agents in the prospectus supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in the
prospectus supplement, these agents will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of their appointment. The agents may be entitled under
agreements they may enter into with us to indemnification by us against specified civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. The agents may also be our customers or may engage in transactions with or perform services for us in the ordinary course of
business.

If we use any underwriters in the sale of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered, we will enter into an underwriting
agreement with those underwriters at the time of sale to them. We will set forth the names of the underwriters and the terms of the transaction in
a prospectus supplement, which will be used by the underwriters to make resales of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered
to the public. We may indemnify the underwriters under the underwriting agreement against specified liabilities, including liabilities under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The underwriters may also be our customers or may engage in transactions with or perform services for us
in the ordinary course of business.
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Agents could makes sales in privately negotiated transactions and/or any other method permitted by law, including sales deemed to be an
at-the-market offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act, which includes sales made directly on or through the New
York Stock Exchange, the existing trading market for our common units, or sales made to or through a market maker other than on an exchange.

To the extent that we make sales through one or more underwriters or agents in at-the-market offerings, we will do so pursuant to the terms of a
sales agency financing agreement or other at-the-market offering arrangement between us and the underwriters or agents. If we engage in
at-the-market sales pursuant to any such agreement, we will issue and sell common units through one or more underwriters or agents, which may
act on an agency basis or on a principal basis. During the term of any such agreement, we may sell common units on a daily basis in exchange
transactions or otherwise as we agree with the underwriters or agents. The agreement will provide that any common units sold will be sold at
prices related to the then prevailing market prices for such securities. Therefore, exact figures regarding proceeds that will be raised or
commissions to be paid cannot be determined at this time. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, we also may agree to sell, and the relevant
underwriters or agents may agree to solicit offers to purchase, blocks of common units. The terms of each such agreement will be set forth in
more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement and any related free writing prospectus. In the event that any underwriter or agent acts as
principal, or any broker-dealer acts as underwriter, it may engage in certain transactions that stabilize, maintain, or otherwise affect the price of
common units. We will describe any such activities in the prospectus supplement or any related free writing prospectus relating to the
transaction.

If we use a dealer in the sale of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered, we will sell those securities to the dealer, as
principal. The dealer may then resell those securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale. We may
indemnify the dealers against specified liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The dealers may also be our
customers or may engage in transactions with, or perform services for us in the ordinary course of business.

We also may sell common units and debt securities directly. In this case, no underwriters or agents would be involved. We may use electronic
media, including the Internet, to sell offered securities directly.

Because the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ( FINRA ) views our common units as interests in a direct participation program, any
offering of common units under the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part will be made in compliance with Rule 2310 of
the FINRA Conduct Rules.

To the extent required, this prospectus may be amended or supplemented from time to time to describe a particular plan of distribution. The
place and time of delivery for the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered will be set forth in the accompanying prospectus
supplement.

In connection with offerings of securities under the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part and in compliance with
applicable law, underwriters, brokers or dealers may engage in transactions that stabilize or maintain the market price of the securities at levels
above those that might otherwise prevail in the open market. Specifically, underwriters, brokers or dealers may over-allot in connection with
offerings, creating a short position in the securities for their own accounts. For the purpose of covering a syndicate short position or stabilizing
the price of the securities, the underwriters, brokers or dealers may place bids for the securities or effect purchases of the securities in the open
market. Finally, the underwriters may impose a penalty whereby selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or other brokers or dealers
for distribution of the securities in offerings may be reclaimed by the syndicate if the syndicate repurchases previously distributed securities in
transactions to cover short positions, in stabilization transactions or otherwise. These activities may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the
market price of the securities, which may be higher than the price that might otherwise prevail in the open market, and, if commenced, may be
discontinued at any time.

In compliance with FINRA guidelines, the maximum consideration or discount to be received by any FINRA member or independent broker
dealer may not exceed 8% of the aggregate amount of the securities offered pursuant to this prospectus and any applicable prospectus
supplement.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the securities will be passed upon for us by Andrews Kurth LLP, Houston, Texas. If certain legal
matters in connection with an offering of the securities made by this prospectus and a related prospectus supplement are passed on by counsel
for the underwriters of such offering, that counsel will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement related to that offering.
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EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, which contains an explanatory
paragraph relating to significant transactions with related parties as described in Note 17 to the financial statements, an independent registered
public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The audited historical i) statement of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at November 1, 2011 and ii) statement of revenues in excess of
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010 of the 50% undivided interest in the Burns Point Processing Plant, included in Exhibit 99.2 of
the American Midstream Partners, LP s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated February 9, 2012 have been so incorporated in reliance on the
report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in
auditing and accounting.

The audited historical financial statements of Chatom Assets, included in Exhibit 99.2 of the American Midstream Partners, LP s Current Report
on Form 8-K/A dated September 11, 2012 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, that registers the offer and sale of the
securities covered by this prospectus. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about
us. In addition, we file annual, quarterly and other reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file
with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the SEC s Public Reference Room. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Our SEC filings are
available on the SEC s web site at http://www.sec.gov. You also can obtain information about us at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange,
20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we have filed with the SEC. This means that we can disclose important
information to you without actually including the specific information in this prospectus by referring you to other documents filed separately

with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus. Information that we later provide to the SEC,

and which is deemed to be filed with the SEC, will automatically update information previously filed with the SEC, and may replace information
in this prospectus and information previously filed with the SEC.

We incorporate by reference in this prospectus the following documents that we have previously filed with the SEC:

Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35257) for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed on March 19, 2012;

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35257) for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 filed on May 14, 2012 and for the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 filed on August 14, 2012;

Current Reports on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35257) filed on December 6, 2011, as amended by the Form 8-K/A filed on February 10,
2012, April 16, 2012, May 29, 2012, June 1, 2012, June 7, 2012, as amended by the Form 8-K/A filed on June 11, 2012, July 2,
2012, July 9, 2012, as amended by the 8-K/A filed on September 11, 2012, and July 17, 2012; and

The description of our common units contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A (File No. 001-35257) filed on July 26,
2011.
All documents that we file pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, after the date of
this prospectus and until our offerings hereunder are completed will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus and will be a
part of this prospectus from the date of filing of the document. Nothing in this prospectus shall be deemed to incorporate information furnished
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to, but not filed with, the SEC pursuant to Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K (or corresponding information furnished under Item 9.01 or
included as an exhibit).

We make available free of charge on or through our Internet website, http.//www.americanmindstream.com, our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Information
contained on our Internet website is not part of this prospectus.
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You may obtain any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus from the SEC through the SEC s website at the address
provided above. You also may request a copy of any document incorporated by reference in this prospectus (excluding any exhibits to those
documents, unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference in this document), at no cost, by visiting our Internet website at
http://www.americanmindstream.com, or by writing or calling us at the following address:

Investor Relations
American Midstream Partners, LP
1614 15th Street, Suite 300
Denver, Colorado 80202
Telephone: (720) 457-6060
ir@americanmidstream.com

You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone else to
provide you with any information. You should not assume that the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus is
accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of each document.
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The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting
an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED September 11, 2012

PROSPECTUS

725,120

Common Units Representing Limited Partner Interests

This prospectus relates to 725,120 common units representing limited partner interests in American Midstream Partners, LP that may be offered
and sold by the selling unitholder named in this prospectus. The selling unitholder acquired the common units in connection with our initial
public offering occurring in July 2011. We are not selling any common units under this prospectus and will not receive any proceeds from the
sale of common units by the selling unitholder. The common units to which this prospectus relates may be offered and sold from time to time
directly from the selling unitholder or alternatively through underwriters or broker-dealers or agents. The selling unitholder may sell the
common units in one or more transactions, at fixed prices, at prevailing market prices at the time of sale or at negotiated prices. Because all of
the common units being offered under this prospectus are being offered by the selling unitholder, we cannot currently determine the price or
prices at which our common units may be sold under this prospectus.

Our common units are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol AMID.

Each time the selling unitholder offers to sell securities under the prospectus, the selling unitholder will provide a prospectus supplement that

will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement also may add, update or change information

contained in this prospectus. This prospectus may be used to offer and sell common units only if accompanied by a prospectus supplement. You

should read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement carefully before you invest. You should also read the documents we refer to in the
Where You Can Find More Information section of this prospectus for information on us and our financial statements.

Investing in our securities involves risks. See _Risk Factors beginning on page 1.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or
passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information.
If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. You should assume that the information appearing in
this prospectus is accurate as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus only. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects may have changed since that date.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a

shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration process, the selling unitholder named in this prospectus or in any supplement to this
prospectus may sell the common units described in this prospectus in one or more offerings. This prospectus provides you with a general
description of us and the common units the selling unitholder may offer under this prospectus.

Each time the selling unitholder sells common units under this prospectus, the selling unitholder will provide a prospectus supplement that will
contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement also may add to, update, or change information in this
prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, you should rely on the
information in the prospectus supplement. You should read carefully this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the additional information
described below under the heading Where You Can Find More Information.

References in this prospectus to American Midstream Partners, we, our, us, AMID or like terms refer to American Midstream Partners, LP &
its subsidiaries. References in this prospectus to the selling unitholder refer to the unitholder named in the table under Selling Unitholder.

ABOUT AMERICAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, LP

We are a growth-oriented Delaware limited partnership that was formed by American Infrastructure MLP Fund, L.P. ( AIM ) in August 2009 to
own, operate, develop and acquire a diversified portfolio of natural gas midstream energy assets. We are engaged in the business of gathering,
treating, processing and transporting natural gas through our ownership and operation of gathering systems, processing facilities, interstate
pipelines and intrastate pipelines. Our primary assets, which, as of December 31, 2012, are strategically located in Alabama, Louisiana,
Mississippi, Tennessee and Texas, provide critical infrastructure that links producers and suppliers of natural gas to diverse natural gas markets,
including various interstate and intrastate pipelines, as well as utility, industrial and other commercial customers.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1614 15th Street, Suite 300, Denver, Colorado 80202, and our telephone number is

(720) 457-6060. Our website is located at http://www.americanmindstream.com. We make our periodic reports and other information filed with
or furnished to the SEC available, free of charge, through our website, as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports and other information
are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. Information on our website or any other website is not incorporated by reference into this
prospectus and does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

RISK FACTORS

Limited partner interests are inherently different from capital stock of a corporation, although many of the business risks to which we are subject
are similar to those that would be faced by a corporation engaged in a similar business. You should carefully consider the risk factors discussed
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K, together with all of the other
information included in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents we have incorporated by reference herein and therein in
evaluating an investment in our securities. The described risks could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition or results
of operation. If any of the described risks actually were to occur, we may not be able to pay quarterly distributions to our unitholders or make
principal or interest payments on any debt securities, the trading price of our common units or any debt securities could decline and you could
lose part or all of your investment in our company. If applicable, we will include in any prospectus supplement a description of these significant
factors that could make the offering described in this prospectus speculative or risky.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Our reports, filings and other public announcements, including without limitation this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, may from time

to time contain statements that do not directly or exclusively relate to historical facts. Such statements are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You can typically identify forward-looking statements by the use of

forward-looking words, such as may, could, project, believe, anticipate, expect, estimate, potential, plan, forecast and other si
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All statements that are not statements of historical facts, including statements regarding our future financial position, business strategy, budgets,
projected costs and plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements reflect our intentions, plans, expectations, assumptions and beliefs about future events and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors, many of which are outside our control. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
the expectations expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements include known and unknown risks. These risks and uncertainties, many
of which are beyond our control, include, but are not limited to, the risks set forth under Risk Factors and described in the documents
incorporated by reference into this prospectus and any prospectus supplement as well as the following risks and uncertainties:

our ability to access the debt and equity markets, which will depend on general market conditions and the credit ratings for our debt
obligations;

the amount of collateral required to be posted from time to time in our transactions;

our success in risk management activities, including the use of derivative financial instruments to hedge commodity and interest rate
risks;

the level of creditworthiness of counterparties to transactions;

changes in laws and regulations, particularly with regard to taxes, safety and protection of the environment;

the timing and extent of changes in natural gas, natural gas liquids and other commodity prices, interest rates and demand for our
services;

weather and other natural phenomena;

industry changes, including the impact of consolidations and changes in competition;

our ability to obtain necessary licenses, permits and other approvals;

the level and success of crude oil and natural gas drilling around our assets and our success in connecting natural gas supplies to our
gathering and processing systems;

our ability to grow through acquisitions or internal growth projects and the successful integration and future performance of such
assets; and

general economic, market and business conditions.
Although we believe that the assumptions underlying our forward-looking statements are reasonable as of the time they are made, any of the
assumptions could be inaccurate, and, therefore, we cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements included in this prospectus and any
prospectus supplement will prove to be accurate. Some of these and other risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
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materially from such forward-looking statements are more fully described in Risk Factors and in the documents incorporated by reference into
this prospectus and any prospectus supplement. Except as may be required by applicable law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or
advise of any change in any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of common units offered under this prospectus. Any proceeds from the sale of common units
offered under this prospectus will be received by the selling unitholder.
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OUR CASH DISTRIBUTION POLICY
Distributions of Available Cash
General

Our partnership agreement requires that, within 45 days after the end of each quarter, we distribute all of our available cash to unitholders of
record on the applicable record date.

Definition of Available Cash

Available cash generally means, for any quarter, all cash and cash equivalents on hand at the end of that quarter:

less the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner at the date of determination of available cash for that quarter to:

provide for the proper conduct of our business (including reserves for our future capital expenditures, anticipated future credit
needs and refunds of collected rates reasonably likely to be refunded as a result of a settlement or hearing related to FERC
rate proceedings or rate proceedings under applicable law subsequent to that quarter);

comply with applicable law, any of our debt instruments or other agreements; or

provide funds for distributions to our unitholders and to our general partner for any one or more of the next four quarters
(provided that our general partner may not establish cash reserves for common and subordinated units unless it determines
that the establishment of reserves will not prevent us from distributing the minimum quarterly distribution on all common
units and any cumulative arrearages on such common units for the current quarter and the next four quarters);

plus, if our general partner so determines, all or any portion of the cash on hand on the date of determination of available cash for the

quarter resulting from working capital borrowings made subsequent to the end of such quarter.
The purpose and effect of the last bullet point above is to allow our general partner, if it so decides, to use cash from working capital borrowings
made after the end of the quarter but on or before the date of determination of available cash for that quarter to pay distributions to unitholders.
Under our partnership agreement, working capital borrowings are generally borrowings that are made under a credit facility, commercial paper
facility or similar financing arrangement, and in all cases are used solely for working capital purposes or to pay distributions to partners, and
with the intent of the borrower to repay such borrowings within 12 months with funds other than from additional working capital borrowings.
The proceeds of working capital borrowings increase operating surplus and repayments of working capital borrowings are generally operating
expenditures (as described below) and thus reduce operating surplus when repayments are made. However, if working capital borrowings, which
increase operating surplus, are not repaid during the 12-month period following the borrowing, they will be deemed repaid at the end of such
period, thus decreasing operating surplus at such time. When such working capital borrowings are in fact repaid, they will not be treated as a
further reduction in operating surplus because operating surplus will have been previously reduced by the deemed repayment.

Intent to Distribute the Minimum Quarterly Distribution

We intend to make a minimum quarterly distribution to the holders of our common units and subordinated units of $0.4125 per unit (our
minimum quarterly distribution), or $1.65 on an annualized basis, to the extent we have sufficient cash from our operations after the
establishment of cash reserves and the payment of costs and expenses, including reimbursements of expenses to our general partner. However,
there is no guarantee that we will pay the minimum quarterly distribution on our units in any quarter. Even if our cash distribution policy is not
modified or revoked, the amount of distributions paid under our policy and the decision to make any distribution is determined by our general
partner, taking into consideration the terms of our partnership agreement.
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Operating Surplus and Capital Surplus
General

All cash distributed to unitholders is characterized as either being paid from operating surplus or capital surplus. We treat distributions of
available cash from operating surplus differently than distributions of available cash from capital surplus.
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Operating Surplus

We define operating surplus as:

$11.5 million (as described below); plus

all of our cash receipts since the closing of our initial public offering, excluding cash from interim capital transactions (as defined
below); plus

working capital borrowings made after the end of a quarter but on or before the date of determination of operating surplus for that
quarter; plus

cash distributions paid on equity issued to finance all or a portion of the construction, acquisition, development or improvement of a
capital improvement or replacement of a capital asset (such as equipment or facilities) in respect of the period beginning on the date
that we enter into a binding obligation to commence the construction, acquisition, development or improvement of a capital
improvement or replacement of a capital asset and ending on the earlier to occur of the date the capital improvement or capital asset
commences commercial service and the date that it is abandoned or disposed of; plus

cash distributions paid on equity issued to pay the construction-period interest on debt incurred, or to pay construction-period
distributions on equity issued, to finance the capital improvements or capital assets referred to above; less

all of our operating expenditures (as defined below) since the closing of our initial public offering; less

the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner to provide funds for future operating expenditures; less

all working capital borrowings not repaid within 12 months after having been incurred, or repaid within such 12-month period with
the proceeds of additional working capital borrowings; less

any cash loss realized on disposition of an investment capital expenditure.
As described above, operating surplus does not reflect actual cash on hand that is available for distribution to our unitholders and is not limited
to cash generated by operations. For example, it includes a provision that will enable us, if we choose, to distribute as operating surplus up to
$11.5 million of cash we receive from non-operating sources such as asset sales, issuances of securities and long-term borrowings that would
otherwise be distributed as capital surplus.

We define interim capital transactions as (i) borrowings, refinancings or refundings of indebtedness (other than working capital borrowings and
items purchased on open account or for a deferred purchase price in the ordinary course of business) and sales of debt securities, (ii) sales of
equity securities, (iii) sales or other dispositions of assets, other than sales or other dispositions of inventory, accounts receivable and other assets
in the ordinary course of business and sales or other dispositions of assets as part of normal asset retirements or replacements, (iv) the
termination of commodity hedge contracts or interest rate hedge contracts prior to the termination date specified therein (provided that cash
receipts from any such termination will be included in operating surplus in equal quarterly installments over the remaining scheduled life of the
contract), (v) capital contributions received and (vi) corporate reorganizations or restructurings.
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We define operating expenditures as all of our cash expenditures, including, but not limited to, taxes, reimbursements of expenses of our general
partner and its affiliates, interest payments, payments made in the ordinary course of business under interest rate hedge contracts and commodity
hedge contracts (provided that payments made in connection with the termination of any interest rate hedge contract or commodity hedge
contract prior to the expiration of its stipulated settlement or termination date will be included in operating expenditures in equal quarterly
installments over the remaining scheduled life of such interest rate hedge contract or commodity hedge contract), estimated maintenance capital
expenditures (as discussed in further detail below), director and officer compensation, repayment of working capital borrowings and non-pro rata
repurchases of our units; provided, however, that operating expenditures will not include:

repayments of working capital borrowings where such borrowings have previously been deemed to have been repaid (as described
above);

payments (including prepayments and prepayment penalties) of principal of and premium on indebtedness other than working capital
borrowings;

expansion capital expenditures;
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actual maintenance capital expenditures;

investment capital expenditures;

payment of transaction expenses (including, but not limited to, taxes) relating to interim capital transactions;

distributions to our partners;

non-pro rata purchases of any class of our units made with the proceeds of an interim capital transaction; or

any other payments made in connection with our initial public offering that are described in Use of Proceeds.
Capital Surplus

Capital surplus is defined in our partnership agreement as any distribution of available cash in excess of our cumulative operating surplus.
Accordingly, except as described above, capital surplus would generally be generated by:

borrowings other than working capital borrowings;

sales of our equity and debt securities; and

sales or other dispositions of assets, other than inventory, accounts receivable and other assets sold in the ordinary course of business
or as part of ordinary course retirement or replacement of assets.
Characterization of Cash Distributions

Our partnership agreement requires that we treat all available cash distributed as coming from operating surplus until the sum of all available
cash distributed since the closing of our initial public offering equals the operating surplus from the closing of our initial public offering through
the end of the quarter immediately preceding that distribution. Our partnership agreement requires that we treat any amount distributed in excess
of operating surplus, regardless of its source, as capital surplus. We do not anticipate that we will make any distributions from capital surplus.

Capital Expenditures

Maintenance capital expenditures are cash expenditures (including expenditures for the addition or improvement to, or the replacement of, our
capital assets, for the acquisition of existing, or the construction or development of new, capital assets or for any integrity management program)
made to maintain our long-term operating income or operating capacity. We expect that a primary component of maintenance capital
expenditures will include expenditures for routine equipment and pipeline maintenance or replacement due to obsolescence. Maintenance capital
expenditures will also include interest (and related fees) on debt incurred and distributions on equity issued (including incremental distributions
on incentive distribution rights) to finance all or any portion of the construction or development of a replacement asset that is paid in respect of
the period that begins when we enter into a binding obligation to commence constructing or developing a replacement asset and ending on the
earlier to occur of the date that any such replacement asset commences commercial service and the date that it is abandoned or disposed of.

Because our maintenance capital expenditures can be irregular, the amount of our actual maintenance capital expenditures may differ
substantially from period to period, which could cause similar fluctuations in the amounts of operating surplus, adjusted operating surplus and
cash available for distribution to our unitholders if we subtracted actual maintenance capital expenditures from operating surplus.
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Our partnership agreement requires that an estimate of the average quarterly maintenance capital expenditures be subtracted from operating
surplus each quarter as opposed to the actual amounts spent. The amount of estimated maintenance capital expenditures deducted from operating
surplus for those periods will be determined by the board of directors of our general partner at least once a year, subject to approval by the
Conflicts Committee. The estimate will be made annually and whenever an event occurs that is likely to result in a material adjustment to the
amount of our maintenance capital expenditures on a long-term basis. For purposes of calculating operating surplus, any adjustment to this
estimate will be prospective only.
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The use of estimated maintenance capital expenditures in calculating operating surplus will have the following effects:

it will reduce the risk that maintenance capital expenditures in any one quarter will be large enough to render operating surplus less than the
minimum quarterly distribution to be paid on all the units for the quarter and subsequent quarters;

it will increase our ability to distribute as operating surplus cash we receive from non-operating sources;

it will be more difficult for us to raise our distribution above the minimum quarterly distribution and pay incentive distributions on
the incentive distribution rights held by our general partner; and

it will reduce the likelihood that a large actual maintenance capital expenditure in a period will prevent our general partner s affiliates

from being able to convert some or all of their subordinated units into common units since the effect of an estimate is to spread the

expected expense over several periods, thereby mitigating the effect of the actual payment of the expenditure on any single period.
Estimated maintenance capital expenditures reduce operating surplus, but expansion capital expenditures, investment capital expenditures and
actual maintenance capital expenditures do not.

Expansion capital expenditures are cash expenditures incurred for acquisitions or capital improvements that we expect will increase our
operating income or operating capacity over the long term. Expansion capital expenditures include interest payments (and related fees) on debt
incurred and distributions on equity issued to finance the construction, acquisition or development of an improvement to our capital assets and
paid in respect of the period beginning on the date that we enter into a binding obligation to commence construction, acquisition or development
of the capital improvement and ending on the earlier to occur of the date that such capital improvement commences commercial service and the
date that such capital improvement is abandoned or disposed of. Examples of expansion capital expenditures include the acquisition of
equipment, or the construction, development or acquisition of additional pipeline or treating capacity or new compression capacity.

Capital expenditures that are made in part for expansion capital purposes and in part for other purposes will be allocated between expansion
capital expenditures and expenditures for other purposes by our general partner (with the concurrence of the Conflicts Committee).

Investment capital expenditures are those capital expenditures that are neither maintenance capital expenditures nor expansion capital
expenditures. Investment capital expenditures largely will consist of capital expenditures made for investment purposes. Examples of investment
capital expenditures include traditional capital expenditures for investment purposes, such as purchases of securities, as well as other capital
expenditures that might be made in lieu of such traditional investment capital expenditures, such as the acquisition of a capital asset for
investment purposes or development of facilities that are in excess of the maintenance of our existing operating capacity or operating income,
but that are not expected to expand, for more than the short term, our operating capacity or operating income.

Subordination Period
General

Our partnership agreement provides that, during the subordination period (which we define below), the common units will have the right to
receive distributions of available cash from operating surplus each quarter in an amount equal to $0.4125 per common unit, which amount is
defined in our partnership agreement as the minimum quarterly distribution, plus any arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution on the common units from prior quarters, before any distributions of available cash from operating surplus may be made on the
subordinated units. These units are deemed subordinated because for a period of time, referred to as the subordination period, the subordinated
units will not be entitled to receive any distributions until the common units have received the minimum quarterly distribution plus any
arrearages from prior quarters. Furthermore, no arrearages will be paid on the subordinated units. The practical effect of the subordinated units is
to increase the likelihood that during the subordination period there will be available cash to be distributed on the common units.
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Subordination Period

Except as described below, the subordination period began on the closing date of our initial public offering and will extend until the first
business day of any quarter beginning after September 30, 2014, that each of the following tests are met:

distributions of available cash from operating surplus on each of the outstanding common and subordinated units equaled or
exceeded $1.65 (the annualized minimum quarterly distribution) and the corresponding distributions on our 2.0% general partner
interest and were made, in each case for each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding
that date;

the adjusted operating surplus (as defined below) generated during each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter
periods immediately preceding that date equaled or exceeded (i) the sum of $1.65 (the annualized minimum quarterly distribution)
on all of the outstanding common and subordinated units during those periods on a fully diluted basis and (ii) the corresponding
distribution on our 2.0% general partner interest; and

there are no arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units.
For purposes of determining whether sufficient adjusted operating surplus has been generated under the above conversion test, the Conflicts
Committee may adjust operating surplus upwards or downwards if it determines in good faith that the amount of estimated maintenance capital
expenditures used in the determination of adjusted operating surplus was materially incorrect, based on the circumstances prevailing at the time
of the original estimate, for any one or more of the preceding two four-quarter periods.

Early Termination of Subordination Period

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the subordination period will automatically terminate on the first business day of any quarter beginning after
September 30, 2012, that each of the following tests are met:

distributions of available cash from operating surplus on each of the outstanding common units and subordinated units equaled or
exceeded $2.475 (150.0% of the annualized minimum quarterly distribution), and the corresponding distribution on our general
partner s 2.0% interest and the incentive distribution rights were made, in each case, for the four-quarter period immediately
preceding that date;

the adjusted operating surplus (as defined below) generated during the four-quarter period immediately preceding that date equaled
or exceeded the sum of (i) $2.475 per unit (150.0% of the annualized minimum quarterly distribution) on all of the outstanding
common units and subordinated units during that period on a fully diluted basis and (ii) the distributions made on our 2.0% general
partner interest and the incentive distribution rights;

distributions of available cash from operating surplus on each of the outstanding common units and subordinated units equaled or
exceeded the minimum quarterly distribution of $0.4125, and we made the corresponding distribution on our 2.0% general partner
interest, for each quarter during the four-quarter period immediately preceding that date; and

there are no arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distributions on the common units.
Expiration of the Subordination Period

When the subordination period ends, each outstanding subordinated unit will convert into one common unit and will thereafter participate pro
rata with the other common units in distributions of available cash. In addition, if the unitholders remove our general partner other than for cause
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and no units held by our general partner and its affiliates are voted in favor of such removal:

the subordination period will end and each subordinated unit will immediately and automatically convert into one common unit;

any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units will be extinguished; and

our general partner will have the right to convert its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights into common units or
to receive cash in exchange for those interests.
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Adjusted Operating Surplus

Adjusted operating surplus is intended to reflect the cash generated from operations during a particular period and therefore excludes net
drawdowns of reserves of cash established in prior periods. Adjusted operating surplus for a period consists of:

operating surplus generated with respect to that period (excluding any amounts attributable to the item described in the first bullet
point under the caption =~ Operating Surplus and Capital Surplus  Operating Surplus above); less

any net increase in working capital borrowings with respect to that period; less

any net decrease in cash reserves for operating expenditures with respect to that period not relating to an operating expenditure made
with respect to that period; plus

any net decrease in working capital borrowings with respect to that period; plus

any net decrease made in subsequent periods to cash reserves for operating expenditures initially established with respect to that
period to the extent such decrease results in a reduction in adjusted operating surplus in subsequent periods; plus

any net increase in cash reserves for operating expenditures with respect to that period required by any debt instrument for the
repayment of principal, interest or premium.
Distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus during the Subordination Period

We will make distributions of available cash from operating surplus for any quarter during the subordination period in the following manner:

first, 98.0% to the common unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we distribute for each outstanding common
unit an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter;

second, 98.0% to the common unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we distribute for each outstanding
common unit an amount equal to any arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units for any prior
quarters during the subordination period;

third, 98.0% to the subordinated unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we distribute for each outstanding
subordinated unit an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter; and

thereafter, in the manner described in ~ General Partner Interest and Incentive Distribution Rights below.
The preceding discussion is based on the assumptions that our general partner maintains its 2.0% general partner interest and that we do not
issue additional classes of equity securities.

Distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus after the Subordination Period
We will make distributions of available cash from operating surplus for any quarter after the subordination period in the following manner:
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first, 98.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we distribute for each outstanding unit an amount equal
to the minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter; and

thereafter, in the manner described in ~ General Partner Interest and Incentive Distribution Rights below.
The preceding discussion is based on the assumptions that our general partner maintains its 2.0% general partner interest and that we do not
issue additional classes of equity securities.

General Partner Interest and Incentive Distribution Rights

Our partnership agreement provides that our general partner initially is entitled to 2.0% of all distributions that we make prior to our liquidation.
Our general partner has the right, but not the obligation, to contribute a proportionate amount of capital to us in order to maintain its 2.0%

general partner interest if we issue additional units. Our general partner s 2.0% interest, and the percentage of our cash distributions to which it is
entitled from such 2.0% interest, will be proportionately reduced if we issue additional units in the future and our general partner
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does not contribute a proportionate amount of capital to us in order to maintain its 2.0% general partner interest. Our partnership agreement does
not require that our general partner fund its capital contribution with cash. It may instead fund its capital contribution by the contribution to us of
common units or other property.

Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an increasing percentage (13.0%, 23.0% and 48.0%) of quarterly distributions of
available cash from operating surplus after the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels have been achieved. Our general
partner currently holds the incentive distribution rights, but may transfer these rights separately from its general partner interest, subject to
restrictions in our partnership agreement.

The following discussion assumes that our general partner maintains its 2.0% general partner interest, that there are no arrearages on common
units and that our general partner continues to own the incentive distribution rights.

If for any quarter:

we have distributed available cash from operating surplus to the common and subordinated unitholders in an amount equal
to the minimum quarterly distribution; and

we have distributed available cash from operating surplus on outstanding common units in an amount necessary to eliminate any
cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;
then, we will distribute any additional available cash from operating surplus for that quarter among the unitholders and our general partner in the
following manner:

first, 98.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives a total of $0.47438 per unit for
that quarter (the first target distribution );

second, 85.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 15.0% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives a total of $0.51563 per
unit for that quarter (the second target distribution );

third, 75.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 25.0% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives a total of $0.61875 per unit
for that quarter (the third target distribution ); and

thereafter, 50.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 50.0% to our general partner.
Percentage Allocations of Available Cash from Operating Surplus

The following table illustrates the percentage allocations of available cash from operating surplus between the unitholders and our general
partner based on the specified target distribution levels. The amounts set forth under Marginal Percentage Interest in Distributions are the
percentage interests of our general partner and the unitholders in any available cash from operating surplus we distribute up to and including the
corresponding amount in the column Total Quarterly Distribution Per Unit Target Amount. The percentage interests shown for our unitholders
and our general partner for the minimum quarterly distribution are also applicable to quarterly distribution amounts that are less than the
minimum quarterly distribution. The percentage interests set forth below for our general partner include its 2.0% general partner interest and
assume that our general partner has contributed any additional capital necessary to maintain its 2.0% general partner interest, our general partner
has not transferred its incentive distribution rights and that there are no arrearages on common units.
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Total Quarterly Distribution per Unit Target

Minimum Quarterly Distribution
First Target Distribution

Second Target Distribution
Third Target Distribution
Thereafter

Table of Contents

above $
above $

Amount

0.47438
0.51563

$
upto $
upto $
upto $
above $

0.41250
0.47438
0.51563
0.61875
0.61875

Marginal Percentage
Interest in Distributions

Unitholders

98.0%
98.0%
85.0%
75.0%
50.0%

General

Partner
2.0%
2.0%
15.0%
25.0%
50.0%
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General Partner s Right to Reset Incentive Distribution Levels

Our general partner, as the initial holder of our incentive distribution rights, has the right under our partnership agreement to elect to relinquish
the right to receive incentive distribution payments based on the initial target distribution levels and to reset, at higher levels, the minimum
quarterly distribution amount and target distribution levels upon which the incentive distribution payments to our general partner would be set. If
our general partner transfers all or a portion of our incentive distribution rights in the future, then the holder or holders of a majority of our
incentive distribution rights will be entitled to exercise this right. The following discussion assumes that our general partner holds all of the
incentive distribution rights at the time that a reset election is made. Our general partner s right to reset the minimum quarterly distribution
amount and the target distribution levels upon which the incentive distributions payable to our general partner are based may be exercised,
without approval of our unitholders or the Conflicts Committee, at any time when there are no subordinated units outstanding and we have made
cash distributions to the holders of the incentive distribution rights at the highest level of incentive distribution for each of the four consecutive
fiscal quarters immediately preceding such time. If our general partner and its affiliates are not the holders of a majority of the incentive
distribution rights at the time an election is made to reset the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels, then the
proposed reset will be subject to the prior written concurrence of the general partner that the conditions described above have been satisfied. The
reset minimum quarterly distribution amount and target distribution levels will be higher than the minimum quarterly distribution amount and
the target distribution levels prior to the reset such that our general partner will not receive any incentive distributions under the reset target
distribution levels until cash distributions per unit following this event increase as described below. We anticipate that our general partner would
exercise this reset right in order to facilitate acquisitions or internal growth projects that would otherwise not be sufficiently accretive to cash
distributions per common unit, taking into account the existing levels of incentive distribution payments being made to our general partner.

In connection with the resetting of the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels and the corresponding
relinquishment by our general partner of incentive distribution payments based on the target distributions prior to the reset, our general partner
will be entitled to receive a number of newly issued common units and general partner units based on a predetermined formula described below
that takes into account the cash parity value of the average cash distributions related to the incentive distribution rights received by our general
partner for the two quarters immediately preceding the reset event as compared to the average cash distributions per common unit during that
two-quarter period. Our general partner will be issued the number of general partner units necessary to maintain our general partner s interest in
us immediately prior to the reset election.

The number of common units that our general partner would be entitled to receive from us in connection with a resetting of the minimum
quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels then in effect would be equal to the quotient determined by dividing (x) the
average aggregate amount of cash distributions received by our general partner in respect of its incentive distribution rights during the two
consecutive fiscal quarters ended immediately prior to the date of such reset election by (y) the average of the amount of cash distributed per
common unit during each of these two quarters.

Following a reset election, the minimum quarterly distribution amount will be reset to an amount equal to the average cash distribution amount
per unit for the two fiscal quarters immediately preceding the reset election (which amount we refer to as the reset minimum quarterly
distribution ) and the target distribution levels will be reset to be correspondingly higher such that we would distribute all of our available cash
from operating surplus for each quarter thereafter as follows:

first, 98.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives an amount equal to 115.0% of
the reset minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter;

second, 85.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 15.0% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives an amount per unit equal
to 125.0% of the reset minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter;

third, 75.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 25.0% to our general partner, until each unitholder receives an amount per unit equal to
150.0% of the reset minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter; and

thereafter, 50.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 50.0% to our general partner.
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The following table illustrates the percentage allocation of available cash from operating surplus between the unitholders and our general partner
at various cash distribution levels (i) pursuant to the cash distribution provisions of our partnership agreement currently in effect, as well as
(ii) following a hypothetical reset of the minimum
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quarterly distribution and target distribution levels based on the assumption that the average quarterly cash distribution amount per common unit
during the two fiscal quarters immediately preceding the reset election was $0.65.

Marginal Percentage

L Quarterly
Interest Distributions Distributions
2.0% per Unit
General Incentive Following
Quarterly Distribution Partner  Distribution = Hypothetical
per Unit Prior to Reset Unitholders Interest Rights Reset
Minimum Quarterly Distribution $ 0.41250 98.0% 2.0% $ 0.6500
First Target Distribution upto $ 0.47438 98.0% 2.0% 0.7475
Second Target Distribution above $ 0.47438 up to $ 0.51563 85.0% 2.0% 13.0% 0.8125
Third Target Distribution above $ 0.51563 upto $ 0.61875 75.0% 2.0% 23.0% 0.9750
Thereafter above $ 0.61875 50.0% 2.0% 48.0% 0.9750

The following table illustrates the total amount of available cash from operating surplus that would be distributed to the unitholders and our
general partner, including in respect of incentive distribution rights, based on an average of the amounts distributed each quarter for the two
quarters immediately prior to the reset. The table assumes that immediately prior to the reset there would be 9,052,132 common units
outstanding, our general partner has maintained its 2.0% general partner interest and the average distribution to each common unit would be
$0.65 for the two quarters prior to the reset.

Cash Cash Distribution to General Partner
Distributions Prior to Reset
to Common 2.0%
Quarterly Unitholders General Incentive
Distribution per Prior to Partner  Distribution Total
Unit Prior to Reset Reset Interest Rights Total Distributions

Minimum Quarterly
Distribution $ 0.41250 $3,734,004 $ 76,204 $ $ 76,204 $3,810,209
First Target Distribution upto$  0.47438 560,101 11,431 11,431 571,531
Second Target Distribution above $ 0.47438 upto$  0.51563 373,400 8,786 57,108 65,894 439,295
Third Target Distribution ~ above $ 0.51563 upto$ 0.61875 933,501 24,893 286,274 311,167 1,244,668
Thereafter above $ 0.61875 282,879 11,315 271,564 282,879 565,758

$5,883,886 $132,629 $614,946 $747,575 $6,631,461

The following table illustrates the total amount of available cash from operating surplus that would be distributed to the unitholders and our
general partner, including in respect of incentive distribution rights, with respect to the quarter in which the reset occurs. The table reflects that,
as a result of the reset, there would be 9,998,203 common units outstanding, our general partner s 2.0% interest has been maintained, and the
average distribution to each common unit would be $0.65. The number of common units to be issued to our general partner upon the reset was
calculated by dividing (i) the average of the amounts received by our general partner in respect of its incentive distribution rights for the two
quarters prior to the reset as shown in the table above, or $614,946, by (ii) the average available cash distributed on each common unit for the
two quarters prior to the reset as shown in the table above, or $0.65.

Cash Distribution to General Partner After

Reset
Cash Common
Distributions Units
to Common Issued in 2.0% .
Quarterly Unitholders  Connection General Incentive
Distribution per Prior to With Partner Distribution Total
Unit Prior to Reset Reset Reset Interest Rights Total Distributions
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0.7475

0.8125

$
upto$
upto$
upto$

above $

0.6500

0.7475

0.8125

0.9750

0.9750

$5,883,886 $614,946 $132,629 $ $747,575 $ 6,631,461

$ 5,883,886 $614,946 $132,629 $ $ $ 6,631,461

Our general partner will be entitled to cause the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels to be reset on more
than one occasion, provided that it may not make a reset election except at a time when it has received incentive distributions for the
immediately preceding four consecutive fiscal quarters based on the highest level of incentive distributions that it is entitled to receive under our

partnership agreement.
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Distributions from Capital Surplus
How Distributions from Capital Surplus Will Be Made

We will make distributions of available cash from capital surplus, if any, in the following manner:

first, 98.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we distribute for each common unit that was issued in
our initial public, an amount of available cash from capital surplus equal to the initial public offering price of our common units;

second, 98.0% to the common unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we distribute for each outstanding
common unit, an amount of available cash from capital surplus equal to any unpaid arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution on the common units; and

thereaffter, as if they were from operating surplus.
The preceding discussion is based on the assumptions that our general partner maintains its 2.0% general partner interest and that we do not
issue additional classes of equity securities.

Effect of a Distribution from Capital Surplus

Our partnership agreement treats a distribution of capital surplus as the repayment of the initial unit price from our initial public offering, which
is a return of capital. The initial public offering price less any distributions of capital surplus per unit is referred to as the unrecovered initial unit
price. Each time a distribution of capital surplus is made, the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels will be reduced in
the same proportion as the corresponding reduction in the unrecovered initial unit price. Because distributions of capital surplus will reduce the
minimum quarterly distribution after any of these distributions are made, it may be easier for our general partner to receive incentive

distributions and for the subordinated units to convert into common units. However, any distribution of capital surplus before the unrecovered
initial unit price is reduced to zero cannot be applied to the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution or any arrearages.

Once we distribute capital surplus on a unit issued in our initial public offering in an amount equal to the initial unit price, we will reduce the
minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels to zero. We will then make all future distributions from operating surplus, with
50.0% being paid to the unitholders, pro rata, and 50.0% to our general partner. The percentage interests shown for our general partner include
its 2.0% general partner interest and assume that our general partner has not transferred the incentive distribution rights.

Adjustment to the Minimum Quarterly Distribution and Target Distribution Levels

In addition to adjusting the minimum quarterly distribution and target distribution levels to reflect a distribution of capital surplus, if we combine
our units into fewer units or subdivide our units into a greater number of units, we will proportionately adjust:

the minimum quarterly distribution;

the number of common units into which a subordinated unit is convertible;

target distribution levels;

the unrecovered initial unit price; and
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the number of general partner units comprising the general partner interest.
For example, if a two-for-one split of the common units should occur, the minimum quarterly distribution, the target distribution levels and the
unrecovered initial unit price would each be reduced to 50% of its initial level, and each subordinated unit would be convertible into two
common units. We will not make any adjustment by reason of the issuance of additional units for cash or property.

In addition, if legislation is enacted or if existing law is modified or interpreted by a governmental authority, so that we become taxable as a
corporation or otherwise subject to taxation as an entity for federal, state or local income tax purposes, our partnership agreement specifies that
the minimum quarterly distribution and the target

12
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distribution levels for each quarter may be reduced by multiplying each distribution level by a fraction, the numerator of which is available cash
for that quarter and the denominator of which is the sum of available cash for that quarter plus our general partner s estimate of our aggregate
liability for the quarter for such income taxes payable by reason of such legislation or interpretation. To the extent that the actual tax liability
differs from the estimated tax liability for any quarter, the difference will be accounted for in subsequent quarters.

Distributions of Cash Upon Liquidation
General

If we dissolve in accordance with our partnership agreement, we will sell or otherwise dispose of our assets in a process called liquidation. We
will first apply the proceeds of liquidation to the payment of our creditors. We will distribute any remaining proceeds to the unitholders and our
general partner, in accordance with their capital account balances, as adjusted to reflect any gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of our
assets in liquidation.

The allocations of gain and loss upon liquidation are intended, to the extent possible, to entitle the holders of outstanding common units to a
preference over the holders of outstanding subordinated units upon our liquidation, to the extent required to permit common unitholders to
receive their unrecovered initial unit price plus the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter during which liquidation occurs plus any
unpaid arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units. However, there may not be sufficient gain upon our
liquidation to enable the holders of common units to fully recover all of these amounts, even though there may be cash available for distribution
to the holders of subordinated units. Any further net gain recognized upon liquidation will be allocated in a manner that takes into account the
incentive distribution rights of our general partner.

Manner of Adjustments for Gain

The manner of the adjustment for gain is set forth in our partnership agreement. If our liquidation occurs before the end of the subordination
period, we will allocate any gain to our partners in the following manner:

first, to our general partner and the holders of units who have negative balances in their capital accounts to the extent of and in
proportion to those negative balances;

second, 98.0% to the common unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until the capital account for each common unit
is equal to the sum of: (1) the unrecovered initial unit price; (2) the amount of the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter
during which our liquidation occurs; and (3) any unpaid arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;

third, 98.0% to the subordinated unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until the capital account for each subordinated
unit is equal to the sum of: (1) the unrecovered initial unit price; and (2) the amount of the minimum quarterly distribution for the
quarter during which our liquidation occurs;

Sfourth, 98.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general partner, until we allocate under this paragraph an amount per unit
equal to: (1) the sum of the excess of the first target distribution per unit over the minimum quarterly distribution per unit for each
quarter of our existence; less (2) the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of available cash from operating surplus in
excess of the minimum quarterly distribution per unit that we distributed 98.0% to the unitholders, pro rata, and 2.0% to our general
partner, for each quarter of our existence;

fifth, 85.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 15.0% to our general partner, until we allocate under this paragraph an amount per unit
equal to: (1) the sum of the excess of the second target distribution per unit over the first target distribution per unit for each quarter
of our existence; less (2) the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of available cash from operating surplus in excess of the
first target distribution per unit that we distributed 85.0% to the unitholders, pro rata, and 15.0% to our general partner for each
quarter of our existence;
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sixth, 75.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 25.0% to our general partner, until we allocate under this paragraph an amount per unit
equal to: (1) the sum of the excess of the third target distribution per unit over the second target distribution per unit for each quarter
of our existence; less (2) the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of available cash from operating surplus in excess of the
second target distribution per unit that we distributed 75.0% to the unitholders, pro rata, and 25.0% to our general partner for each
quarter of our existence;
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thereafter, 50.0% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 50.0% to our general partner.
The percentages set forth above are based on the assumption that our general partner has not transferred its incentive distribution rights and that
we do not issue additional classes of equity securities.

If the liquidation occurs after the end of the subordination period, the distinction between common units and subordinated units will disappear,
so that clause (3) of the second bullet point above and all of the fourth bullet point above will no longer be applicable.

Manner of Adjustments for Losses

If our liquidation occurs before the end of the subordination period, after making allocations of loss to the general partner and the unitholders in
a manner intended to offset in reverse order the allocations of gains that have previously been allocated, we will generally allocate any loss to
our general partner and unitholders in the following manner:

first, 98.0% to the holders of subordinated units in proportion to the positive balances in their capital accounts and 2.0% to our
general partner, until the capital accounts of the subordinated unitholders have been reduced to zero;

second, 98.0% to the holders of common units in proportion to the positive balances in their capital accounts and 2.0% to our general
partner, until the capital accounts of the common unitholders have been reduced to zero; and

thereafter, 100.0% to our general partner.
If the liquidation occurs after the end of the subordination period, the distinction between common units and subordinated units will disappear,
so that all of the first bullet point above will no longer be applicable.

Adjustments to Capital Accounts

Our partnership agreement requires that we make adjustments to capital accounts upon the issuance of additional units. In this regard, our
partnership agreement specifies that we allocate any unrealized and, for tax purposes, unrecognized gain resulting from the adjustments to the
unitholders and the general partner in the same manner as we allocate gain upon liquidation. In the event that we make positive adjustments to
the capital accounts upon the issuance of additional units, our partnership agreement requires that we generally allocate any later negative
adjustments to the capital accounts resulting from the issuance of additional units or upon our liquidation in a manner which results, to the extent
possible, in the partners capital account balances equaling the amount which they would have been if no earlier positive adjustments to the
capital accounts had been made. In contrast to the allocations of gain, and except as provided above, we generally will allocate any unrealized
and unrecognized loss resulting from the adjustments to capital accounts upon the issuance of additional units to the unitholders and our general
partner based on their respective percentage ownership of us. In this manner, prior to the end of the subordination period, we generally will
allocate any such loss equally with respect to our common and subordinated units. If we make negative adjustments to the capital accounts as a
result of such loss, future positive adjustments resulting from the issuance of additional units will be allocated in a manner designed to reverse
the prior negative adjustments, and special allocations will be made upon liquidation in a manner that results, to the extent possible, in our
unitholders capital account balances equaling the amounts they would have been if no earlier adjustments for loss had been made.

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMMON UNITS
The Units

The common units represent limited partner interests in us. The holders of common units, along with the holders of subordinated units, are
entitled to participate in partnership distributions and are entitled to exercise the rights and privileges available to limited partners under our
partnership agreement. For a description of the relative rights and preferences of holders of common units and subordinated units in and to
partnership distributions, please read this section and Our Cash Distribution Policy. For a description of the rights and privileges of limited
partners under our partnership agreement, including voting rights, please read The Partnership Agreement.
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Transfer Agent and Registrar
Duties

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. will serve as the registrar and transfer agent for the common units. We will pay all fees charged by the
transfer agent for transfers of common units except the following that must be paid by our unitholders:

surety bond premiums to replace lost or stolen certificates, or to cover taxes and other governmental charges in connection therewith;

special charges for services requested by a holder of a common unit; and

other similar fees or charges.
There will be no charge to our unitholders for disbursements of our cash distributions. We will indemnify the transfer agent, its agents and each
of their respective stockholders, directors, officers and employees against all claims and losses that may arise out of acts performed or omitted
for its activities in that capacity, except for any liability due to any gross negligence or intentional misconduct of the indemnified person or
entity.

Resignation or Removal

The transfer agent may resign, by notice to us, or be removed by us. The resignation or removal of the transfer agent will become effective upon
our appointment of a successor transfer agent and registrar and its acceptance of the appointment. If no successor has been appointed and has
accepted the appointment within 30 days after notice of the resignation or removal, our general partner may act as the transfer agent and registrar
until a successor is appointed.

Transfer of Common Units

By transfer of common units in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of common units shall be admitted as a limited
partner with respect to the common units transferred when such transfer and admission are reflected in our books and records. Each transferee:

automatically agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of, and is deemed to have executed, our partnership agreement;

represents and warrants that the transferee has the right, power, authority and capacity to enter into our partnership agreement; and

gives the consents, waivers and approvals contained in our partnership agreement, such as the approval of all transactions and
agreements that we entered into in connection with our initial public offering.
Our general partner will cause any transfers to be recorded on our books and records no less frequently than quarterly.

We mays, at our discretion, treat the nominee holder of a common unit as the absolute owner. In that case, the beneficial holder s rights are limited
solely to those that it has against the nominee holder as a result of any agreement between the beneficial owner and the nominee holder.

Common units are securities and are transferable according to the laws governing the transfer of securities. In addition to other rights acquired
upon transfer, the transferor gives the transferee the right to become a substituted limited partner in our partnership for the transferred common
units.
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Until a common unit has been transferred on our books, we and the transfer agent may treat the record holder of the common unit as the absolute
owner for all purposes, except as otherwise required by law or stock exchange regulations.

THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

The following is a summary of the material provisions of our partnership agreement. Our partnership agreement is incorporated by reference into
the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. We will provide prospective investors with a copy of our partnership agreement
upon request at no charge.
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We summarize the following provisions of our partnership agreement elsewhere in this prospectus:

with regard to distributions of available cash, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy;
with regard to the transfer of common units, please read Description of the Common Units  Transfer of Common Units; and
with regard to allocations of taxable income and taxable loss, please read Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences.
Organization and Duration
We were organized in August 2009 and have a perpetual existence.

Purpose

Our purpose under our partnership agreement is limited to any business activities that are approved by our general partner and in any event that
lawfully may be conducted by a limited partnership organized under Delaware law; provided that our general partner may not cause us to
engage, directly or indirectly, in any business activity that our general partner determines would cause us to be treated as an association taxable
as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for federal income tax purposes.

Although our general partner has the power to cause us, our operating company and its subsidiaries to engage in activities other than the business
of gathering, compressing, treating and transporting natural gas, our general partner has no current plans to do so and may decline to do so free
of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or the limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us or
the limited partners. Our general partner is generally authorized to perform all acts it determines to be necessary or appropriate to carry out our
purposes and to conduct our business.

Cash Distributions

Our partnership agreement specifies the manner in which we will make cash distributions to holders of our common units and other partnership
securities as well as to our general partner in respect of its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights. For a description of these
cash distribution provisions, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy.

Capital Contributions
Unitholders are not obligated to make additional capital contributions, except as described below under ~ Limited Liability.

For a discussion of our general partner s right to contribute capital to maintain its 2.0% general partner interest if we issue additional units, please
read  Issuance of Additional Securities.

Voting Rights

The following is a summary of the unitholder vote required for approval of the matters specified below. Matters that require the approval of a
unit majority require:

during the subordination period, the approval of a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding those common units held by
our general partner and its affiliates, and a majority of the outstanding subordinated units, voting as separate classes; and

after the subordination period, the approval of a majority of the outstanding common units.
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By virtue of the exclusion of those common units held by our general partner and its affiliates from the required vote, and by their ownership of
all of the subordinated units, during the subordination period our general partner and its affiliates do not have the ability to ensure passage of, but
do have the ability to ensure defeat of, any amendment that requires a unit majority.

In voting their common and subordinated units, our general partner and its affiliates will have no fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or
our limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us and our limited partners.

Issuance of additional units No approval right.
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Amendment of our partnership agreement

Merger of our partnership or the sale of all or substantially all of our
assets

Dissolution of our partnership
Continuation of our business upon dissolution

Withdrawal of our general partner

Removal of our general partner

Transfer of our general partner interest

Transfer of incentive distribution rights

Transfer of ownership interests in our general partner

Limited Liability

Certain amendments may be made by our general partner without

the approval of the unitholders. Other amendments generally

require the approval of a unit majority. Please read =~ Amendment of
Our Partnership Agreement.

Unit majority in certain circumstances. Please read
Other Disposition of Assets.

Merger, Sale or

Unit majority. Please read ~ Termination and Dissolution.

Unit majority. Please read ~ Termination and Dissolution.

Under most circumstances, the approval of a majority of the

common units, excluding common units held by our general partner
and its affiliates, is required for the withdrawal of our general

partner prior to June 30, 2021 in a manner that would cause a
dissolution of our partnership. Please read =~ Withdrawal or Removal
of Our General Partner.

Not less than 66%/,% of the outstanding units, voting as a single
class, including units held by our general partner and its affiliates.
Please read ~ Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Partner.

Our general partner may transfer all, but not less than all, of its
general partner interest in us without a vote of our unitholders to an
affiliate or another person in connection with its merger,
consolidation or conversion with or into, or sale of all or
substantially all of its assets to, such person. The approval of a
majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common units
held by our general partner and its affiliates, is required in other
circumstances for a transfer of the general partner interest to a third
party prior to June 30, 2020. Please read ~ Transfer of General
Partner Interest.

No approval right. Please read ~ Transfer of Subordinated Units and

Incentive Distribution Rights.

No approval required at any time. Please read  Transfer of

Ownership Interests in Our General Partner.

Assuming that a limited partner does not participate in the control of our business within the meaning of the Delaware Act and that it otherwise
acts in conformity with the provisions of our partnership agreement, its liability under the Delaware Act will be limited, subject to possible
exceptions, to the amount of capital it is obligated to contribute to us for its common units plus its share of any undistributed profits and assets. If
it were determined, however, that the right of, or exercise of the right by, the limited partners as a group:

to remove or replace our general partner;

to approve some amendments to our partnership agreement; or

to take other action under our partnership agreement;
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constituted participation in the control of our business for the purposes of the Delaware Act, then the limited partners could be held personally
liable for our obligations under the laws of Delaware, to the same extent as our general partner. This liability would extend to persons who
transact business with us who reasonably believe that a limited partner is a general partner. Neither our partnership agreement nor the Delaware
Act specifically provides for legal recourse against our general partner if a limited partner were to lose limited liability through any fault of our
general partner. While this does not mean that a limited partner could not seek legal recourse, we know of no precedent for such a claim in
Delaware case law.

Under the Delaware Act, a limited partnership may not make a distribution to a partner if, after the distribution, all liabilities of the limited
partnership, other than liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interests and liabilities for which the recourse of creditors is limited
to specific property of the partnership, would exceed the fair value of the assets of the limited partnership. For the purpose of determining the
fair value of the assets of a limited partnership, the Delaware Act provides that the fair value of property subject to liability for which recourse of
creditors is limited shall be included in the assets of the limited partnership only to the extent that the fair value of that property exceeds the
nonrecourse liability. The Delaware Act provides that a limited partner who receives a distribution and knew at the time of the distribution that
the distribution was in violation of the Delaware Act shall be liable to the limited partnership for the amount of the distribution for three years.
Under the Delaware Act, a substituted limited partner of a limited partnership is liable for the obligations of its assignor to make contributions to
the partnership, except that such person is not obligated for liabilities unknown to it at the time it became a limited partner and that could not be
ascertained from the partnership agreement.

Our subsidiaries conduct business primarily in five states and we may have subsidiaries that conduct business in other states in the future.
Maintenance of our limited liability as a member of our operating company may require compliance with legal requirements in the jurisdictions
in which our operating company conducts business, including qualifying our subsidiaries to do business there.

Limitations on the liability of members or limited partners for the obligations of a limited liability company or limited partnership have not been
clearly established in many jurisdictions. If, by virtue of our ownership interest in our operating company or otherwise, it were determined that
we were conducting business in any state without compliance with the applicable limited partnership or limited liability company statute, or that
the right or exercise of the right by the limited partners as a group to remove or replace our general partner, to approve some amendments to our
partnership agreement, or to take other action under our partnership agreement constituted participation in the control of our business for
purposes of the statutes of any relevant jurisdiction, then the limited partners could be held personally liable for our obligations under the law of
that jurisdiction to the same extent as our general partner under the circumstances. We will operate in a manner that our general partner
considers reasonable and necessary or appropriate to preserve the limited liability of the limited partners.

Issuance of Additional Securities

Our partnership agreement authorizes us to issue an unlimited number of additional partnership securities for the consideration and on the terms
and conditions determined by our general partner without the approval of our limited partners.

It is possible that we will fund acquisitions through the issuance of additional common units, subordinated units or other partnership securities.
Holders of any additional common units we issue will be entitled to share equally with the then-existing holders of common units in our
distributions of available cash. In addition, the issuance of additional common units or other partnership securities may dilute the value of the
interests of the then-existing holders of common units in our net assets.

In accordance with Delaware law and the provisions of our partnership agreement, we may also issue additional partnership securities that, as
determined by our general partner, may have rights to distributions or special voting rights to which the common units are not entitled. In
addition, our partnership agreement does not prohibit our subsidiaries from issuing equity securities, which may effectively rank senior to the
common units.

Upon issuance of additional partnership securities, our general partner will be entitled, but not required, to make additional capital contributions
to the extent necessary to maintain its 2.0% general partner interest in us. Our general partner s 2.0% interest in us will be reduced if we issue
additional units in the future and our general partner does not contribute a proportionate amount of capital to us to maintain its 2.0% general
partner interest. Moreover, our general partner will have the right, which it may from time to time assign in whole or in part to any of its
affiliates, to purchase common units, subordinated units or other partnership securities whenever, and on the same
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terms that, we issue those securities to persons other than our general partner and its affiliates, to the extent necessary to maintain the percentage
interest of the general partner and its affiliates, including such interest represented by common and subordinated units, that existed immediately
prior to each issuance. The holders of common units will not have preemptive rights under our partnership agreement to acquire additional
common units or other partnership securities.

Amendment of Our Partnership Agreement
General

Amendments to our partnership agreement may be proposed only by our general partner. However, our general partner will have no duty or
obligation to propose any amendment and may decline to do so free of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or our limited partners,
including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us or our limited partners. In order to adopt a proposed amendment, other than
the amendments discussed below, our general partner must seek written approval of the holders of the number of units required to approve the
amendment or call a meeting of the limited partners to consider and vote upon the proposed amendment. Except as described below, an
amendment must be approved by a unit majority.

Prohibited Amendments

No amendment may be made that would:

enlarge the obligations of any limited partner without its consent, unless approved by at least a majority of the type or class of limited
partner interests so affected; or

enlarge the obligations of, restrict in any way any action by or rights of, or reduce in any way the amounts distributable, reimbursable
or otherwise payable by us to our general partner or any of its affiliates without the consent of our general partner, which consent
may be given or withheld at its option.
The provision of our partnership agreement preventing the amendments having the effects described in the clauses above can be amended upon
the approval of the holders of at least 90.0% of the outstanding units, voting as a single class (including units owned by our general partner and
its affiliates). As of September 7, 2012, affiliates of our general partner own approximately 58.7% of the outstanding common and subordinated
units.

No Unitholder Approval

Our general partner may generally make amendments to our partnership agreement without the approval of any limited partner to reflect:

a change in our name, the location of our principal place of business, our registered agent or our registered office;

the admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of partners in accordance with our partnership agreement;

a change that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for us to qualify or to continue our qualification as a
limited partnership or a partnership in which the limited partners have limited liability under the laws of any state or to ensure that
neither we, our operating company, nor its subsidiaries will be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxed as
an entity for federal income tax purposes;

a change in our fiscal year or taxable period and related changes;
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an amendment that is necessary, in the opinion of our counsel, to prevent us or our general partner or its directors, officers, agents, or
trustees from in any manner being subjected to the provisions of the Investment Company Act of 1940, the Investment Advisors Act
of 1940 or plan asset regulations adopted under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, whether or not
substantially similar to plan asset regulations currently applied or proposed;

any amendment expressly permitted in our partnership agreement to be made by our general partner acting alone;
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an amendment effected, necessitated, or contemplated by a merger agreement that has been approved under the terms of our
partnership agreement;

any amendment that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for the formation by us of, or our investment in,
any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or other entity, as otherwise permitted by our partnership
agreement;

mergers with, conveyances to or conversions into another limited liability entity that is newly formed and has no assets, liabilities or
operations at the time of the merger, conveyance or conversion other than those it receives by way of the merger, conveyance or
conversion; or

any other amendments substantially similar to any of the matters described above.
In addition, our general partner may make amendments to our partnership agreement without the approval of any limited partner if our general
partner determines that those amendments:

do not adversely affect in any material respect the limited partners considered as a whole or any particular class of partnership
interests as compared to other classes of partnership interests;

are necessary or appropriate to satisfy any requirements, conditions, or guidelines contained in any opinion, directive, order, ruling,
or regulation of any federal or state agency or judicial authority or contained in any federal or state statute;

are necessary or appropriate to facilitate the trading of units or to comply with any rule, regulation, guideline, or requirement of any
securities exchange on which the units are or will be listed for trading;

are necessary or appropriate for any action taken by our general partner relating to splits or combinations of units under the
provisions of our partnership agreement; or

are required to effect the intent expressed in this prospectus or the intent of the provisions of our partnership agreement or are
otherwise contemplated by our partnership agreement.
Opinion of Counsel and Limited Partner Approval

Our general partner will not be required to obtain an opinion of counsel that an amendment will not result in a loss of limited liability to the

limited partners or result in our being treated as an entity for federal income tax purposes in connection with any of the amendments described

above under  No Unitholder Approval. No other amendments to our partnership agreement will become effective without the approval of holders
of at least 90.0% of the outstanding units voting as a single class unless we first obtain an opinion of counsel to the effect that the amendment

will not affect the limited liability under applicable law of any of our limited partners.

In addition to the above restrictions, any amendment that would have a material adverse effect on the rights or preferences of any type or class of
outstanding units in relation to other classes of units will require the approval of at least a majority of the type or class of units so affected. Any
amendment that reduces the voting percentage required to take any action must be approved by the affirmative vote of limited partners whose
aggregate outstanding units constitute not less than the voting requirement sought to be reduced.

Merger, Sale or Other Disposition of Assets

Table of Contents 143



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

A merger, consolidation or conversion of us requires the prior consent of our general partner. However, our general partner will have no duty or
obligation to consent to any merger, consolidation or conversion and may decline to do so free of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to
us or the limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interest of us or our limited partners.

In addition, our partnership agreement generally prohibits our general partner, without the prior approval of the holders of a unit majority, from
causing us to, among other things, sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our and our subsidiaries assets in a single
transaction or a series of related transactions, including by way of merger, consolidation, other combination or sale of ownership interests of our
subsidiaries. Our general partner may, however, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, or grant a security interest in all or substantially all of our and
our subsidiaries assets without that approval. Our general partner may also sell all or substantially all of our and our subsidiaries assets under a
foreclosure or other realization upon those encumbrances without that approval. Finally, our general partner may consummate any merger
without the prior approval of our unitholders if we are the
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surviving entity in the transaction, our general partner has received an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters, the
transaction would not result in a material amendment to the partnership agreement (other than an amendment that the general partner could
adopt without the consent of the limited partners), each of our units will be an identical unit of our partnership following the transaction and the
partnership securities to be issued do not exceed 20.0% of our outstanding partnership securities immediately prior to the transaction.

If the conditions specified in our partnership agreement are satisfied, our general partner may merge us or any of our subsidiaries into, or convey
all of our assets to, a newly formed limited liability entity, if the sole purpose of that merger or conveyance is to effect a mere change in our
legal form into another limited liability entity, our general partner has received an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters
and the governing instruments of the new entity provide the limited partners and our general partner with the same rights and obligations as
contained in our partnership agreement. Our unitholders are not entitled to dissenters rights of appraisal under our partnership agreement or
applicable Delaware law in the event of a merger, consolidation or conversion, a sale of substantially all of our assets or any other similar
transaction or event.

Termination and Dissolution

We will continue as a limited partnership until dissolved under our partnership agreement. We will dissolve upon:

the withdrawal or removal of our general partner or any other event that results in its ceasing to be our general partner other
than by reason of a transfer of its general partner interest in accordance with our partnership agreement or withdrawal or
removal following the approval and admission of a successor general partner;

the election of our general partner to dissolve us, if approved by the holders of units representing a unit majority;

the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of our partnership; or

there being no limited partners, unless we are continued without dissolution in accordance with the Delaware Act.
Upon a dissolution under the first clause above, the holders of a unit majority may also elect, within specific time limitations, to continue our
business on the same terms and conditions described in our partnership agreement and appoint as a successor general partner an entity approved
by the holders of units representing a unit majority, subject to our receipt of an opinion of counsel to the effect that:

the action would not result in the loss of limited liability of any limited partner; and

neither we nor any of our subsidiaries would be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise be taxable as an entity
for federal income tax purposes upon the exercise of that right to continue (to the extent not already so treated or taxed).
Liquidation and Distribution of Proceeds

Upon our dissolution, unless we are continued as a limited partnership, the liquidator authorized to wind up our affairs will, acting with all of the
powers of our general partner that are necessary or appropriate, liquidate our assets and apply the proceeds of the liquidation as described in

Provisions of Our Partnership Agreement Relating to Cash Distributions  Distributions of Cash Upon Liquidation. The liquidator may defer
liquidation or distribution of our assets for a reasonable period of time if it determines that an immediate sale or distribution would be
impractical or would cause undue loss to our partners. The liquidator may distribute our assets, in whole or in part, in kind if it determines that a
sale would be impractical or would cause undue loss to the partners.

Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Partner
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Except as described below, our general partner has agreed not to withdraw voluntarily as our general partner prior to June 30, 2021 without
obtaining the approval of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common units held by the general partner
and its affiliates, and furnishing an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters. On or after June 30, 2021, our general partner
may withdraw as general partner without first obtaining approval of any unitholder by giving at least 90 days advance notice, and that
withdrawal will not constitute a violation of our partnership agreement. Notwithstanding the information above, our
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general partner may withdraw without unitholder approval upon 90 days notice to the limited partners if at least 50.0% of the outstanding

common units are held or controlled by one person and its affiliates, other than our general partner and its affiliates. In addition, our partnership
agreement permits our general partner in some instances to sell or otherwise transfer all of its general partner interest and incentive distribution
rights in us without the approval of the unitholders. Please read ~ Transfer of General Partner Interest and  Transfer of Subordinated Units and
Incentive Distribution Rights.

Upon withdrawal of our general partner under any circumstances, other than as a result of a transfer by our general partner of all or a part of its
general partner interest in us, the holders of a unit majority may select a successor to that withdrawing general partner. If a successor is not
elected, or is elected but an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters cannot be obtained, we will be dissolved, wound up
and liquidated, unless within a specified period of time after that withdrawal, the holders of a unit majority agree in writing to continue our
business and to appoint a successor general partner. Please read ~ Termination and Dissolution.

Our general partner may not be removed unless that removal is approved by the vote of the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of all outstanding
units, voting together as a single class, including units held by our general partner and its affiliates, and we receive an opinion of counsel
regarding limited liability and tax matters. Any removal of our general partner is also subject to the approval of a successor general partner by
the vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding common units, and a majority of the outstanding subordinated units, voting as a single
class. The ownership of more than 33 2/3% of the outstanding units by our general partner and its affiliates gives them the ability to prevent our
general partner s removal. As of September 7, 2012, affiliates of our general partner own 58.7% of the outstanding common and subordinated
units.

Our partnership agreement also provides that if our general partner is removed as our general partner under circumstances where cause does not
exist and units held by our general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that removal:

the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units will immediately and automatically convert into common
units on a one-for-one basis;

any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units will be extinguished; and

our general partner will have the right to convert its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights into common units or

to receive cash in exchange for those interests based on the fair market value of the interests at the time.
In the event of removal of our general partner under circumstances where cause exists or withdrawal of our general partner where that
withdrawal violates our partnership agreement, a successor general partner will have the option to purchase the general partner interest and
incentive distribution rights of the departing general partner for a cash payment equal to the fair market value of those interests. Under all other
circumstances where our general partner withdraws or is removed by the limited partners, the departing general partner will have the option to
require the successor general partner to purchase the general partner interest of the departing general partner and its incentive distribution rights
for their fair market value. In each case, this fair market value will be determined by agreement between the departing general partner and the
successor general partner. If no agreement is reached, an independent investment banking firm or other independent expert selected by the
departing general partner and the successor general partner will determine the fair market value. Or, if the departing general partner and the
successor general partner cannot agree upon an expert, then an expert chosen by agreement of the experts selected by each of them will
determine the fair market value.

If the option described above is not exercised by either the departing general partner or the successor general partner, the departing general
partner s general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights will automatically convert into common units equal to the fair market value
of those interests as determined by an investment banking firm or other independent expert selected in the manner described in the preceding
paragraph.

In addition, we will be required to reimburse the departing general partner for all amounts due to it, including, without limitation, all
employee-related liabilities, including severance liabilities, incurred in connection with the termination of any employees employed by the
departing general partner or its affiliates for our benefit.
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Transfer of General Partner Interest

Except for transfer by our general partner of all, but not less than all, of its general partner interest to:

an affiliate of our general partner (other than an individual); or

another entity as part of the merger, consolidation or conversion of our general partner with or into another entity or the transfer by
our general partner of all or substantially all of its assets to another entity.

our general partner may not transfer all or any of its general partner interest to another person prior to June 30, 2021 without the
approval of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common units held by our general partner
and its affiliates. As a condition of this transfer, the transferee must, among other things, assume the rights and duties of our general
partner, agree to be bound by the provisions of our partnership agreement and furnish an opinion of counsel regarding limited
liability and tax matters.
Our general partner and its affiliates may, at any time, transfer common units or subordinated units to one or more persons, without unitholder
approval, except that they may not transfer subordinated units to us.

Transfer of Ownership Interests in Our General Partner

At any time, the owners of our general partner may sell or transfer all or part of their ownership interests in our general partner to an affiliate or a
third party without the approval of our unitholders.

Transfer of Subordinated Units and Incentive Distribution Rights

By transfer of subordinated units or incentive distribution rights in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of subordinated
units or incentive distribution rights will be admitted as a limited partner with respect to the subordinated units or incentive distribution rights
transferred when such transfer and admission is reflected in our books and records. Each transferee:

represents that the transferee has the capacity, power and authority to become bound by our partnership agreement;

automatically becomes bound by the terms and conditions of our partnership agreement; and

gives the consents, waivers and approvals contained in our partnership agreement, such as the approval of all transactions and
agreements we entered into in connection with our formation and the initial public.
We mays, at our discretion, treat the nominee holder of subordinated units or incentive distribution rights as the absolute owner. In that case, the
beneficial holder s rights are limited solely to those that it has against the nominee holder as a result of any agreement between the beneficial
owner and the nominee holder.

Subordinated units or incentive distribution rights are securities and any transfers are subject to the laws governing transfer of securities. In
addition to other rights acquired upon transfer, the transferor gives the transferee the right to become a limited partner for the transferred
subordinated units or incentive distribution rights.

Until a subordinated unit or incentive distribution right has been transferred on our books, we and the transfer agent may treat the record holder
of the unit or right as the absolute owner for all purposes, except as otherwise required by law or stock exchange regulations.

Change of Management Provisions
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Our partnership agreement contains specific provisions that are intended to discourage a person or group from attempting to remove our general
partner or otherwise change our management. If any person or group, other than our general partner and its affiliates, acquires beneficial
ownership of 20.0% or more of any class of units, that person or group loses voting rights on all of its units. This loss of voting rights does not
apply to any person or group that acquires the units directly from our general partner or its affiliates or any transferee of that person or group that
is approved by our general partner or to any person or group who acquires the units with the prior approval of the board of directors of our
general partner.
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Our partnership agreement also provides that if our general partner is removed as our general partner under circumstances where cause does not
exist and units held by our general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that removal:

the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units will immediately and automatically convert into common
units on a one-for-one basis;

any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units will be extinguished; and

our general partner will have the right to convert its general partner interest and its incentive distribution rights into common units or
to receive cash in exchange for those interests based on the fair market value of the interests at the time.
Limited Call Right

If at any time our general partner and its affiliates own more than 80.0% of the then-issued and outstanding limited partner interests of any class,
our general partner will have the right, which it may assign in whole or in part to any of its affiliates or to us, to acquire all, but not less than all,
of the remaining limited partner interests of the class held by unaffiliated persons as of a record date to be selected by our general partner, on at
least 10, but not more than 60, days notice. The purchase price in the event of this purchase is the greater of:

the highest price paid by our general partner or any of its affiliates for any limited partner interests of the class purchased within the
90 days preceding the date on which our general partner first mails notice of its election to purchase those limited partner interests;
and

the average of the daily closing prices of the partnership securities of such class for the 20 consecutive trading days preceding the
date three days before the date the notice is mailed.
As a result of our general partner s right to purchase outstanding limited partner interests, a holder of limited partner interests may have his
limited partner interests purchased at an undesirable time or price. The tax consequences to a unitholder of the exercise of this call right are the
same as a sale by that unitholder of his common units in the market. Please read Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences Disposition
of Common Units.

Meetings; Voting

Except as described below regarding a person or group owning 20.0% or more of any class of units then outstanding, unitholders who are record
holders of units on the record date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, meetings of our limited partners and to act upon matters for which
approvals may be solicited.

Our general partner does not anticipate that any meeting of unitholders will be called in the foreseeable future. Any action that is required or
permitted to be taken by the unitholders may be taken either at a meeting of the unitholders or without a meeting if consents in writing
describing the action so taken are signed by holders of the number of units necessary to authorize or take that action at a meeting. Meetings of
the unitholders may be called by our general partner or by unitholders owning at least 20.0% of the outstanding units of the class for which a
meeting is proposed. Unitholders may vote either in person or by proxy at meetings. The holders of a majority of the outstanding units of the
class or classes for which a meeting has been called, represented in person or by proxy, will constitute a quorum unless any action by the
unitholders requires approval by holders of a greater percentage of the units, in which case the quorum will be the greater percentage. The units
representing the general partner interest are units for distribution and allocation purposes, but do not entitle our general partner to any vote other
than its rights as general partner under our partnership agreement, will not be entitled to vote on any action required or permitted to be taken by
the unitholders and will not count toward or be considered outstanding when calculating required votes, determining the presence of a quorum,
or for similar purposes.

Each record holder of a unit has a vote according to its percentage interest in us, although additional limited partner interests having special
voting rights could be issued. Please read ~ Issuance of Additional Securities. However, if at any time any person or group, other than our general
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partner and its affiliates, or a direct or subsequently approved transferee of our general partner or its affiliates, acquires, in the aggregate,
beneficial ownership of 20.0% or more of any class of units then outstanding, that person or group will lose voting rights on all of its units and
the units may not be voted on any matter and will not be considered to be outstanding when sending notices of a meeting of unitholders,
calculating required votes, determining the presence of a quorum, or for other similar purposes. Common units held in nominee or street name
account will be voted by the broker or other nominee in accordance with the instruction of the beneficial owner unless the arrangement between
the beneficial owner and its nominee provides otherwise. Except as our partnership agreement otherwise provides, subordinated units will vote
together with common units as a single class.
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Any notice, demand, request, report or proxy material required or permitted to be given or made to record holders of common units under our
partnership agreement will be delivered to the record holder by us or by the transfer agent.

Status as Limited Partner

By transfer of common units in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of common units will be admitted as a limited
partner with respect to the common units transferred when such transfer and admission are reflected in our books and records. Except as
described above under ~ Limited Liability, the common units will be fully paid, and unitholders will not be required to make additional
contributions.

Non-Citizen Assignees; Redemption

To avoid any adverse effect on the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us under Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
regulations, or in order to reverse an adverse determination that has occurred regarding such maximum applicable rate, our partnership
agreement provides our general partner the power to amend the agreement. If our general partner, with the advice of counsel, determines that our
not being treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, coupled with
the tax status (or lack of proof thereof) of one or more of our limited partners, has, or is reasonably likely to have, a material adverse effect on
the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us, then our general partner may adopt such amendments to our partnership agreement
as it determines necessary or advisable to:

obtain proof of the U.S. federal income tax status of our member (and their owners, to the extent relevant); and

permit us to redeem the units held by any person whose tax status has or is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
maximum applicable rates or who fails to comply with the procedures instituted by our general partner to obtain proof of the U.S.
federal income tax status. The redemption price in the case of such a redemption will be the average of the daily closing prices per
unit for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date set for redemption.

A non-taxpaying assignee will not have the right to direct the voting of his units and may not receive distributions in kind upon our liquidation.

Non-Taxpaying Assignees; Redemption

In the event any rates that we charge our customers become regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, to avoid any adverse
effect on the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us, or in order to reverse an adverse determination that has occurred
regarding such maximum rate, our partnership agreement provides our general partner the power to amend the agreement. If our general partner,
with the advice of counsel, determines that our not being treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, coupled with the tax status (or lack of proof thereof) of one or more of our limited partners, has, or is
reasonably likely to have, a material adverse effect on the maximum applicable rates chargeable to customers by us, then our general partner
may adopt such amendments to our partnership agreement as it determines necessary or advisable to:

obtain proof of the U.S. federal income tax status of our member (and their owners, to the extent relevant); and

permit us to redeem the units held by any person whose tax status has or is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
maximum applicable rates or who fails to comply with the procedures instituted by our general partner to obtain proof of the U.S.
federal income tax status. The redemption price in the case of such a redemption will be the average of the daily closing prices per
unit for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date set for redemption.

Indemnification

Under our partnership agreement, we will indemnify the following persons, in most circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from
and against all losses, claims, damages or similar events:
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our general partner;

any departing general partner;
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any person who is or was an affiliate of our general partner or any departing general partner;

any person who is or was a member, manager, partner, director, officer, fiduciary or trustee of our partnership, our subsidiaries, our
general partner, any departing general partner or any of their affiliates;

any person who is or was serving at the request of the general partner or any departing general partner as an officer, director,
member, manager, partner, fiduciary or trustee of another person; and

any person designated by our general partner.
Any indemnification under these provisions will only be out of our assets. Unless it otherwise agrees, our general partner will not be personally
liable for, or have any obligation to contribute or loan funds or assets to us to enable us to effectuate, indemnification. We may purchase
insurance against liabilities asserted against and expenses incurred by persons for our activities, regardless of whether we would have the power
to indemnify the person against liabilities under our partnership agreement.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Our partnership agreement requires us to reimburse our general partner for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs or payments it makes on our
behalf and all other expenses allocable to us or otherwise incurred by our general partner in connection with operating our business. These
expenses include salary, bonus, incentive compensation and other amounts paid to persons who perform services for us or on our behalf and
expenses allocated to our general partner by its affiliates. Our general partner is entitled to determine in good faith the expenses that are allocable
to us.

Books and Reports

Our general partner is required to keep or cause to be kept appropriate books and records of our business at our principal offices. The books will
be maintained for both tax and financial reporting purposes on an accrual basis. For fiscal and tax reporting purposes, we use the calendar year.

We will furnish or make available (by posting on our website or other reasonable means) to record holders of common units, within 120 days
after the close of each fiscal year, an annual report containing audited financial statements and a report on those financial statements by our
independent public accountants, including a balance sheet and statements of operations, and our equity and cash flows. Except for our fourth
quarter, we will also furnish or make available summary financial information within 90 days after the close of each quarter.

As soon as practicable, but in no event later than 90 days after the close of each quarter except the last quarter of each fiscal year, our general
partner will mail or make available to each record holder of a unit a report containing our unaudited financial statements and such other
information as may be required by applicable law, regulation or rule. This information is expected to be furnished in summary form so that some
complex calculations normally required of partners can be avoided. Our ability to furnish this summary information to unitholders will depend
on the cooperation of unitholders in supplying us with specific information. Every unitholder will receive information to assist him in
determining its federal and state tax liability and filing its federal and state income tax returns, regardless of whether he supplies us with
information.

Right to Inspect Our Books and Records

Our partnership agreement provides that a limited partner can, for a purpose reasonably related to its interest as a limited partner, upon
reasonable demand and at its own expense, have furnished to him:

a current list of the name and last known business, residence or mailing address of each record holder;
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copies of our partnership agreement, the certificate of limited partnership of the partnership, related amendments, and powers of
attorney under which they have been executed;

information regarding the status of our business and financial condition; and

any other information regarding our affairs as is just and reasonable.

Our general partner may, and intends to, keep confidential from the limited partners trade secrets or other information the disclosure
of which our general partner believes in good faith is not in our best interests or that we are required by law or by agreements with
third parties to keep confidential.
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Under our partnership agreement, we have agreed to register for resale under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws any common
units, subordinated units, or other partnership securities proposed to be sold by our general partner or any of its affiliates, other than individuals,
or their assignees if an exemption from the registration requirements is not otherwise available. These registration rights continue for two years
and for so long thereafter as is required for the holder to sell its partnership securities following any withdrawal or removal of American
Midstream GP as our general partner. We are obligated to pay all expenses incidental to the registration, excluding underwriting discounts and
commissions.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

This section is a summary of the material tax considerations that may be relevant to prospective unitholders who are individual citizens or
residents of the U.S. and, unless otherwise noted in the following discussion, is the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP insofar as it relates to legal
conclusions with respect to matters of U.S. federal income tax law. This section is based upon current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the Internal Revenue Code ), existing and proposed Treasury regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code
(the Treasury Regulations ) and current administrative rulings and court decisions, all of which are subject to change. Later changes in these
authorities may cause the tax consequences to vary substantially from the consequences described below. Unless the context otherwise requires,
references in this sectionto us or we are references to American Midstream Partners, LP and our operating subsidiaries.

The following discussion does not comment on all U.S. federal income tax matters affecting us or our unitholders. Moreover, the discussion
focuses on unitholders who are individual citizens or residents of the U.S. and has only limited application to corporations, estates, entities
treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes, trusts, nonresident aliens, U.S. expatriates and former citizens or long-term
residents of the United States or other unitholders subject to specialized tax treatment, such as banks, insurance companies and other financial
institutions, tax-exempt institutions, non-U.S. persons (including, without limitation, controlled foreign corporations, passive foreign investment
companies and non-U.S. persons eligible for the benefits of an applicable income tax treaty with the United States), IRAs, real estate investment
trusts (REITs) or mutual funds, dealers in securities or currencies, traders in securities, U.S. persons whose functional currency is not the U.S.
dollar, persons holding their units as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion transaction or other risk reduction transaction, and persons deemed to
sell their units under the constructive sale provisions of the Code. In addition, the discussion only comments to a limited extent on state, local,
and non-U.S. tax consequences. Accordingly, we encourage each prospective unitholder to consult his own tax advisor in analyzing the state,
local and non-U.S. tax consequences particular to him of the ownership or disposition of common units.

No ruling has been or will be requested from the IRS regarding any matter affecting us or prospective unitholders. Instead, we will rely on
opinions of Andrews Kurth LLP. Unlike a ruling, an opinion of counsel represents only that counsel s best legal judgment and does not bind the
IRS or the courts. Accordingly, the opinions and statements made herein may not be sustained by a court if contested by the IRS. Any contest of
this sort with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for the common units and the prices at which common units trade. In
addition, the costs of any contest with the IRS, principally legal, accounting and related fees, will result in a reduction in cash available for
distribution to our unitholders and our general partner and thus will be borne indirectly by our unitholders and our general partner. Furthermore,
the tax treatment of us, or of an investment in us, may be significantly modified by future legislative or administrative changes or court
decisions. Any modifications may or may not be retroactively applied.

All statements as to matters of U.S. federal income tax law and legal conclusions with respect thereto, but not as to factual matters, contained in
this section, unless otherwise noted, are the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP and are based on the accuracy of the representations made by us.

For the reasons described below, Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion with respect to the following specific federal income tax

issues: (i) the treatment of a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of common units (please read Tax
Consequences of Unit Ownership Treatment of Short Sales ); (ii) whether our monthly convention for allocating taxable income and losses is
permitted by existing Treasury Regulations (please read  Disposition of Common Units  Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees ); and
(iii) whether our method for depreciating Section 743 adjustments is sustainable in certain cases (please read = Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Section 754 Election and  Uniformity of Units ).
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A partnership is not a taxable entity and incurs no federal income tax liability. Instead, each partner of a partnership is required to take into
account his share of items of income, gain, loss and deduction of the partnership in computing his federal income tax liability, regardless of
whether cash distributions are made to him by the partnership. Distributions by a partnership to a partner are generally not taxable to the partner
unless the amount of cash distributed to him is in excess of the partner s adjusted basis in his partnership interest. Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code provides that publicly traded partnerships will, as a general rule, be taxed as corporations. However, an exception, referred to as
the Qualifying Income Exception, exists with respect to publicly traded partnerships of which 90% or more of the gross income for every taxable
year consists of qualifying income. Qualifying income includes income and gains derived from the transportation, processing, storage and
marketing of crude oil, natural gas and products thereof. Other types of qualifying income include interest (other than from a financial business),
dividends, gains from the sale of real property and gains from the sale or other disposition of capital assets held for the production of income that
otherwise constitutes qualifying income. We estimate that less than 5% of our current gross income is not qualifying income; however, this
estimate could change from time to time. Based upon and subject to this estimate, the factual representations made by us and our general partner
and a review of the applicable legal authorities, Andrews Kurth LLP is of the opinion that at least 90% of our current gross income constitutes
qualifying income. The portion of our income that is qualifying income may change from time to time.

No ruling has been or will be sought from the IRS regarding, and the IRS has made no determination as to, our status or the status of our
operating subsidiaries for federal income tax purposes or whether our operations generate qualifying income under Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Instead, we will rely on the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP on such matters. It is the opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP that, based
upon the Internal Revenue Code, its regulations, published revenue rulings and court decisions and the representations described below that:

We are classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes; and

Each of our operating subsidiaries is disregarded as an entity separate from us or is treated as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes.
In rendering its opinion, Andrews Kurth LLP has relied on factual representations made by us and our general partner. The representations made
by us and our general partner upon which Andrews Kurth LLP has relied include:

Neither we nor our operating subsidiaries have elected or will elect to be treated as a corporation; and

For each taxable year, more than 90% of our gross income has been and will be income of the type that Andrews Kurth LLP has
opined or will opine is qualifying income within the meaning of Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.
We believe that these representations have been true in the past and expect that these representations will continue to be true in the future.

If we fail to meet the Qualifying Income Exception, other than a failure that is determined by the IRS to be inadvertent and that is cured within a
reasonable time after discovery (in which case the IRS may also require us to make adjustments with respect to our unitholders or pay other
amounts), we will be treated as if we had transferred all of our assets, subject to liabilities, to a newly formed corporation, on the first day of the
year in which we fail to meet the Qualifying Income Exception, in return for stock in that corporation, and then distributed that stock to the
unitholders in liquidation of their interests in us. This deemed contribution and liquidation should be tax-free to unitholders and us so long as we,
at that time, do not have liabilities in excess of the tax basis of our assets. Thereafter, we would be treated as a corporation for federal income tax
purposes.

If we were taxed as a corporation in any taxable year, either as a result of a failure to meet the Qualifying Income Exception or otherwise, our
items of income, gain, loss and deduction would be reflected only on our tax return rather than being passed through to our unitholders, and our
net income would be taxed to us at corporate rates. In addition, any distribution made to a unitholder would be treated as taxable dividend
income, to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits, or, in the absence of earnings and profits, a nontaxable return of
capital, to the extent of the unitholder s tax basis in his common units, or taxable capital gain, after the unitholder s
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tax basis in his common units is reduced to zero. Accordingly, taxation as a corporation would result in a material reduction in a unitholder s cash
flow and after-tax return and thus would likely result in a substantial reduction of the value of the units.

The discussion below is based on Andrews Kurth LLP s opinion that we will be classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.
Limited Partner Status

Unitholders of American Midstream Partners, LP will be treated as partners of American Midstream Partners, LP for federal income tax
purposes. Also, unitholders whose common units are held in street name or by a nominee and who have the right to direct the nominee in the
exercise of all substantive rights attendant to the ownership of their common units will be treated as partners of American Midstream Partners,
LP for federal income tax purposes.

A beneficial owner of common units whose units have been transferred to a short seller to complete a short sale would appear to lose his status
as a partner with respect to those units for federal income tax purposes. Please read = Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Treatment of Short
Sales.

Income, gain, deductions or losses would not appear to be reportable by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal income tax purposes, and
any cash distributions received by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal income tax purposes would therefore appear to be fully taxable as
ordinary income. These holders are urged to consult their tax advisors with respect to their tax consequences of holding common units in
American Midstream Partners, LP.

The references to unitholders in the discussion that follows are to persons who are treated as partners in American Midstream Partners, LP for
federal income tax purposes.

Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership
Flow-Through of Taxable Income

Subject to the discussion below under  Entity-Level Collections, we will not pay any federal income tax. Instead, each unitholder will be
required to report on his income tax return his share of our income, gains, losses and deductions without regard to whether we make cash
distributions to him. Consequently, we may allocate income to a unitholder even if he has not received a cash distribution. Each unitholder will
be required to include in income his allocable share of our income, gains, losses and deductions for our taxable year ending with or within his
taxable year. Our taxable year ends on December 31.

Treatment of Distributions

Distributions made by us to a unitholder generally will not be taxable to the unitholder for federal income tax purposes, except to the extent the
amount of any such cash distribution exceeds his tax basis in his common units immediately before the distribution. Cash distributions made by

us to a unitholder in an amount in excess of a unitholder s tax basis generally will be considered to be gain from the sale or exchange of the

common units, taxable in accordance with the rules described under ~ Disposition of Common Units. Any reduction in a unitholder s share of our
liabilities for which no partner, including the general partner, bears the economic risk of loss, known as nonrecourse liabilities, will be treated as

a distribution by us of cash to that unitholder. To the extent our distributions cause a unitholder s at-risk amount to be less than zero at the end of
any taxable year, he must recapture any losses deducted in previous years. Please read  Limitations on Deductibility of Losses.

A decrease in a unitholder s percentage interest in us because of our issuance of additional common units will decrease his share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, and thus will result in a corresponding deemed distribution of cash. This deemed distribution may constitute a non-pro

rata distribution. A non-pro rata distribution of money or property may result in ordinary income to a unitholder, regardless of his tax basis in his
common units, if the distribution reduces the unitholder s share of our unrealized receivables, including depreciation recapture, depletion
recapture and/or substantially appreciated inventory items, each as defined in the Internal Revenue Code, and collectively, Section 751 Assets.
To that extent, the unitholder will be treated as having been distributed his proportionate share of the Section 751 Assets and then having
exchanged those assets with us in return for the non-pro rata portion of the actual distribution made to him. This latter deemed exchange will
generally result in the unitholder s realization of ordinary income, which will equal the excess of (i) the non-pro rata portion of that distribution
over (ii) the unitholder s tax basis (generally zero) for the share of Section 751 Assets deemed relinquished in the exchange.
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Basis of Common Units

A unitholder s initial tax basis for his common units will be the amount he paid for the common units plus his share of our nonrecourse liabilities.
That basis will be increased by his share of our income and by any increases in his share of our nonrecourse liabilities. That basis will be
decreased, but not below zero, by distributions from us, by the unitholder s share of our losses, by any decreases in his share of our nonrecourse
liabilities and by his share of our expenditures that are not deductible in computing taxable income and are not required to be capitalized. A
unitholder will have no share of our debt that is recourse to our general partner to the extent of the general partner s net value as defined in
regulations under Section 752 of the Internal Revenue Code, but will have a share, generally based on his share of profits, of our nonrecourse
liabilities. Please read ~ Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Limitations on Deductibility of Losses

The deduction by a unitholder of his share of our losses will be limited to the tax basis in his units and, in the case of an individual unitholder,
estate, trust, or corporate unitholder (if more than 50% of the value of the corporate unitholder s stock is owned directly or indirectly by or for

five or fewer individuals or some tax-exempt organizations) to the amount for which the unitholder is considered to be at risk with respect to our
activities, if that is less than his tax basis. A common unitholder subject to these limitations must recapture losses deducted in previous years to

the extent that distributions cause his at-risk amount to be less than zero at the end of any taxable year. Losses disallowed to a unitholder or
recaptured as a result of these limitations will carry forward and will be allowable as a deduction to the extent that his at-risk amount is
subsequently increased, provided such losses do not exceed such common unitholder s tax basis in his common units. Upon the taxable
disposition of a unit, any gain recognized by a unitholder can be offset by losses that were previously suspended by the at-risk limitation but may
not be offset by losses suspended by the basis limitation. Any loss previously suspended by the at-risk limitation in excess of that gain would no
longer be utilizable.

In general, a unitholder will be at risk to the extent of the tax basis of his units, excluding any portion of that basis attributable to his share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, reduced by (i) any portion of that basis representing amounts otherwise protected against loss because of a guarantee,
stop loss agreement or other similar arrangement and (ii) any amount of money he borrows to acquire or hold his units, if the lender of those
borrowed funds owns an interest in us, is related to the unitholder or can look only to the units for repayment. A unitholder s at-risk amount will
increase or decrease as the tax basis of the unitholder s units increases or decreases, other than tax basis increases or decreases attributable to
increases or decreases in his share of our nonrecourse liabilities.

In addition to the basis and at-risk limitations on the deductibility of losses, the passive loss limitations generally provide that individuals,

estates, trusts and some closely-held corporations and personal service corporations can deduct losses from passive activities, which are
generally trade or business activities in which the taxpayer does not materially participate, only to the extent of the taxpayer s income from those
passive activities. The passive loss limitations are applied separately with respect to each publicly traded partnership. Consequently, any passive
losses we generate will only be available to offset our passive income generated in the future and will not be available to offset income from
other passive activities or investments, including our investments or a unitholder s investments in other publicly traded partnerships, or salary or
active business income. Passive losses that are not deductible because they exceed a unitholder s share of income we generate may be deducted
in full when he disposes of his entire investment in us in a fully taxable transaction with an unrelated party. The passive loss limitations are
applied after other applicable limitations on deductions, including the at-risk rules and the basis limitation.

A unitholder s share of our net income may be offset by any of our suspended passive losses, but it may not be offset by any other current or
carryover losses from other passive activities, including those attributable to other publicly traded partnerships.

Limitations on Interest Deductions

The deductibility of a non-corporate taxpayer s investment interest expense is generally limited to the amount of that taxpayer s net investment
income. Investment interest expense includes:

interest on indebtedness properly allocable to property held for investment;

our interest expense attributed to portfolio income; and

Table of Contents 162



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

30

Table of Contents 163



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

the portion of interest expense incurred to purchase or carry an interest in a passive activity to the extent attributable to portfolio

income.
The computation of a unitholder s investment interest expense will take into account interest on any margin account borrowing or other loan
incurred to purchase or carry a unit. Net investment income includes gross income from property held for investment and amounts treated as
portfolio income under the passive loss rules, less deductible expenses, other than interest, directly connected with the production of investment
income, but generally does not include gains attributable to the disposition of property held for investment or (if applicable) qualified dividend
income. The IRS has indicated that the net passive income earned by a publicly traded partnership will be treated as investment income to its
unitholders. In addition, the unitholder s share of our portfolio income will be treated as investment income.

Entity-Level Collections

If we are required or elect under applicable law to pay any federal, state, local or foreign income tax on behalf of any unitholder or our general
partner or any former unitholder, we are authorized to pay those taxes from our funds. That payment, if made, will be treated as a distribution of
cash to the unitholder on whose behalf the payment was made. If the payment is made on behalf of a person whose identity cannot be
determined, we are authorized to treat the payment as a distribution to all current unitholders. We are authorized to amend our partnership
agreement in the manner necessary to maintain uniformity of intrinsic tax characteristics of units and to adjust later distributions, so that after
giving effect to these distributions, the priority and characterization of distributions otherwise applicable under our partnership agreement is
maintained as nearly as is practicable. Payments by us as described above could give rise to an overpayment of tax on behalf of an individual
unitholder in which event the unitholder would be required to file a claim in order to obtain a credit or refund.

Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction

In general, if we have a net profit, our items of income, gain, loss and deduction will be allocated among our general partner and the unitholders
in accordance with their percentage interests in us. At any time that distributions are made to the common units in excess of distributions to the
subordinated units, or incentive distributions are made to our general partner, gross income will be allocated to the recipients to the extent of
these distributions. If we have a net loss, that loss will be allocated first to our general partner and the unitholders in accordance with their
percentage interests in us to the extent of their positive capital accounts and, second, to our general partner.

Specified items of our income, gain, loss and deduction will be allocated to account for (i) any difference between the tax basis and fair market
value of our assets at the time of an offering and (ii) any difference between the tax basis and fair market value of any property contributed to us
by the general partner and its affiliates that exists at the time of such contribution, together referred to in this discussion as the Contributed
Property. The effect of these allocations, referred to as Section 704(c) Allocations, to a unitholder purchasing common units from us in an
offering will be essentially the same as if the tax bases of our assets were equal to their fair market values at the time of the offering. In the event
we issue additional common units or engage in certain other transactions in the future, reverse Section 704(c) Allocations, similar to the
Section 704(c) Allocations described above, will be made to the general partner and all of our unitholders immediately prior to such issuance or
other transactions to account for the difference between the book basis for purposes of maintaining capital accounts and the fair market value of
all property held by us at the time of such issuance or future transaction. In addition, items of recapture income will be allocated to the extent
possible to the unitholder who was allocated the deduction giving rise to the treatment of that gain as recapture income in order to minimize the
recognition of ordinary income by some unitholders. Finally, although we do not expect that our operations will result in the creation of negative
capital accounts, if negative capital accounts nevertheless result, items of our income and gain will be allocated in an amount and manner
sufficient to eliminate the negative balance as quickly as possible.

An allocation of items of our income, gain, loss or deduction, other than an allocation required by the Internal Revenue Code to eliminate the

difference between a partner s book capital account, credited with the fair market value of Contributed Property, and tax capital account, credited
with the tax basis of Contributed Property, referred to in this discussion as the Book-Tax Disparity, will generally be given effect for federal

income tax purposes in determining a partner s share of an item of income, gain, loss or deduction only if the allocation has substantial economic
effect. In any other case, a partner s share of an item will be determined on the basis of his interest in us, which will be determined by taking into
account all the facts and circumstances, including:

his relative contributions to us;
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the interests of all the partners in profits and losses;

the interest of all the partners in cash flow; and

the rights of all the partners to distributions of capital upon liquidation.
Andrews Kurth LLP is of the opinion that, with the exception of the issues described in ~ Section 754 Election and  Disposition of Common Units
Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees, allocations under our partnership agreement will be given effect for federal income tax
purposes in determining a partner s share of an item of income, gain, loss or deduction.

Treatment of Short Sales

A unitholder whose units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of units may be considered as having disposed of those units. If so, he
would no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect to those units during the period of the loan and may recognize gain or loss
from the disposition. As a result, during this period:

any of our income, gain, loss or deduction with respect to those units would not be reportable by the unitholder;

any cash distributions received by the unitholder as to those units would be fully taxable; and

all of these distributions would appear to be ordinary income.
Because there is no direct or indirect controlling authority on the issue relating to partnership interests, Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an
opinion regarding the tax treatment of a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of common units;
therefore, unitholders desiring to assure their status as partners and avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan to a short seller are urged to
modify any applicable brokerage account agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing and loaning their units. The IRS has previously
announced that it is studying issues relating to the tax treatment of short sales of partnership interests. Please also read  Disposition of Common
Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Alternative Minimum Tax

Each unitholder will be required to take into account his distributive share of any items of our income, gain, loss or deduction for purposes of the
alternative minimum tax. The current minimum tax rate for noncorporate taxpayers is 26% on the first $175,000 of alternative minimum taxable
income in excess of the exemption amount and 28% on any additional alternative minimum taxable income. Prospective unitholders are urged to
consult with their tax advisors as to the impact of an investment in units on their liability for the alternative minimum tax.

Tax Rates

Under current law, the highest marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to ordinary income of individuals is 35% and the highest
marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to long-term capital gains (generally, capital gains on certain assets held for more than twelve
months) of individuals is 15%. These rates are scheduled to sunset after December 31, 2012, and, thereafter, about new legislation, the U.S.
federal income tax rates on both ordinary income and long-term capital gains will increase. Further, such rates are subject to change by new
legislation at any time.

A 3.8% Medicare tax on certain net investment income earned by individuals, estates and trusts will apply for taxable years beginning after
December 31, 2012. For these purposes, net investment income generally includes a unitholder s allocable share of our income and gain realized
by a unitholder from a sale of units. In the case of an individual, the tax will be imposed on the lesser of (i) the unitholder s net investment
income or (ii) the amount by which the unitholder s modified adjusted gross income exceeds $250,000 (if the unitholder is married and filing
jointly or a surviving spouse), $125,000 (if the unitholder is married and filing separately) or $200,000 (in any other case). In the case of an
estate or trust, the tax will be imposed on the lesser of (i) undistributed net investment income, or (ii) the excess adjusted gross income over the
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We have made the election permitted by Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code. That election is irrevocable without the consent of the IRS

unless there is a constructive termination of the partnership. Please read  Disposition of Common Units Constructive Termination. The election
will generally permit us to adjust a common unit purchaser s tax basis in our assets ( inside basis ) under Section 743(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code to reflect his purchase price. This election does not apply with respect to a person who purchases common units directly from us. The

Section 743(b) adjustment belongs to the purchaser and not to other unitholders. For purposes of this discussion, the inside basis in our assets

with respect to a unitholder will be considered to have two components: (i) his share of our tax basis in our assets ( common basis ) and (ii) his
Section 743(b) adjustment to that basis.

We have adopted the remedial allocation method as to all our properties. Where the remedial allocation method is adopted, the Treasury
Regulations under Section 743 of the Internal Revenue Code require a portion of the Section 743(b) adjustment that is attributable to recovery
property that is subject to depreciation under Section 168 of the Internal Revenue Code and whose book basis is in excess of its tax basis to be
depreciated over the remaining cost recovery period for the property s unamortized Book-Tax Disparity. Under Treasury Regulation

Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6), a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to property subject to depreciation under Section 167 of the Internal Revenue
Code, rather than cost recovery deductions under Section 168, is generally required to be depreciated using either the straight-line method or the
150% declining balance method. Under our partnership agreement, our general partner is authorized to take a position to preserve the uniformity
of units even if that position is not consistent with these and any other Treasury Regulations. Please read =~ Uniformity of Units.

We depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to unrealized appreciation in the value of Contributed Property, to the

extent of any unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, using a rate of depreciation or amortization derived from the depreciation or amortization

method and useful life applied to the property s unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, or treat that portion as non-amortizable to the extent
attributable to property which is not amortizable. This method is consistent with the methods employed by other publicly traded partnerships but
is arguably inconsistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6), which is not expected to directly apply to a material portion of our
assets. To the extent this Section 743(b) adjustment is attributable to appreciation in value in excess of the unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, we
will apply the rules described in the Treasury Regulations and legislative history. If we determine that this position cannot reasonably be taken,

we may take a depreciation or amortization position under which all purchasers acquiring units in the same month would receive depreciation or
amortization, whether attributable to common basis or a Section 743(b) adjustment, based upon the same applicable rate as if they had purchased
a direct interest in our assets. This kind of aggregate approach may result in lower annual depreciation or amortization deductions than would
otherwise be allowable to some unitholders. Please read ~ Uniformity of Units. A unitholder s tax basis for his common units is reduced by his
share of our deductions (whether or not such deductions were claimed on an individual s income tax return) so that any position we take that
understates deductions will overstate the common unitholder s basis in his common units, which may cause the unitholder to understate gain or
overstate loss on any sale of such units. Please read ~ Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss. Andrews Kurth LLP has not
rendered an opinion as to whether our method for depreciating Section 743 adjustments is sustainable for property subject to depreciation under
Section 167 of the Internal Revenue Code or if we use an aggregate approach as described above, as there is no direct or indirect controlling
authority addressing the validity of these positions. Moreover, the IRS may challenge our position with respect to depreciating or amortizing the
Section 743(b) adjustment we take to preserve the uniformity of the units. If such a challenge were sustained, the gain from the sale of units

might be increased without the benefit of additional deductions.

A Section 754 election is advantageous if the transferee s tax basis in his units is higher than the units share of the aggregate tax basis of our
assets immediately prior to the transfer. In that case, as a result of the election, the transferee would have, among other items, a greater amount

of depreciation deductions and his share of any gain or loss on a sale of our assets would be less. Conversely, a Section 754 election is
disadvantageous if the transferee s tax basis in his units is lower than those units share of the aggregate tax basis of our assets immediately prior
to the transfer. Thus, the fair market value of the units may be affected either favorably or unfavorably by the election. A basis adjustment is
required regardless of whether a Section 754 election is made in the case of a transfer of an interest in us if we have a substantial built-in loss
immediately after the transfer, or if we distribute property and have a substantial basis reduction. Generally, a built-in loss or a basis reduction is
substantial if it exceeds $250,000.

The calculations involved in the Section 754 election are complex and will be made on the basis of assumptions as to the value of our assets and
other matters. For example, the allocation of the Section 743(b) adjustment among
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our assets must be made in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code. The IRS could seek to reallocate some or all of any Section 743(b)
adjustment allocated by us to our tangible assets to goodwill instead. Goodwill, as an intangible asset, is generally nonamortizable or
amortizable over a longer period of time or under a less accelerated method than our tangible assets. We cannot assure you that the
determinations we make will not be successfully challenged by the IRS and that the deductions resulting from them will not be reduced or
disallowed altogether. Should the IRS require a different basis adjustment to be made, and should, in our opinion, the expense of compliance
exceed the benefit of the election, we may seek permission from the IRS to revoke our Section 754 election. If permission is granted, a
subsequent purchaser of units may be allocated more income than he would have been allocated had the election not been revoked.

Tax Treatment of Operations
Accounting Method and Taxable Year

We use the year ending December 31 as our taxable year and the accrual method of accounting for federal income tax purposes. Each unitholder
will be required to include in income his share of our income, gain, loss and deduction for our taxable year ending within or with his taxable
year. In addition, a unitholder who has a taxable year ending on a date other than December 31 and who disposes of all of his units following the
close of our taxable year but before the close of his taxable year must include his share of our income, gain, loss and deduction in income for his
taxable year, with the result that he will be required to include in income for his taxable year his share of more than twelve months of our
income, gain, loss and deduction. Please read Disposition of Common Units  Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees.

Initial Tax Basis, Depreciation and Amortization

The tax basis of our assets will be used for purposes of computing depreciation and cost recovery deductions and, ultimately, gain or loss on the
disposition of these assets. The federal income tax burden associated with the difference between the fair market value of our assets and their tax
basis immediately prior to an offering will be borne by our unitholders holding interests in us prior to any such offering. Please read = Tax
Consequences of Unit Ownership  Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction.

To the extent allowable, we may elect to use the depreciation and cost recovery methods, including bonus depreciation to the extent available,
that will result in the largest deductions being taken in the early years after assets subject to these allowances are placed in service. Please read
Uniformity of Units. Property we subsequently acquire or construct may be depreciated using accelerated methods permitted by the Internal

Revenue Code.

If we dispose of depreciable property by sale, foreclosure or otherwise, all or a portion of any gain, determined by reference to the amount of
depreciation previously deducted and the nature of the property, may be subject to the recapture rules and taxed as ordinary income rather than
capital gain. Similarly, a unitholder who has taken cost recovery or depreciation deductions with respect to property we own will likely be

required to recapture some or all of those deductions as ordinary income upon a sale of his interest in us. Please read ~ Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction and  Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

The costs we incur in selling our units (called syndication expenses ) must be capitalized and cannot be deducted currently, ratably or upon our
termination. There are uncertainties regarding the classification of costs as organization expenses, which may be amortized by us, and as
syndication expenses, which may not be amortized by us. The underwriting discounts and commissions we incur will be treated as syndication
expenses.

Valuation and Tax Basis of Our Properties

The federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of units will depend in part on our estimates of the relative fair market
values, and the initial tax bases, of our assets. Although we may from time to time consult with professional appraisers regarding valuation
matters, we will make many of the relative fair market value estimates ourselves. These estimates and determinations of basis are subject to
challenge and will not be binding on the IRS or the courts. If the estimates of fair market value or basis are later found to be incorrect, the
character and amount of items of income, gain, loss or deductions previously reported by unitholders might change, and unitholders might be
required to adjust their tax liability for prior years and incur interest and penalties with respect to those adjustments.
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Recognition of Gain or Loss

Gain or loss will be recognized on a sale of units equal to the difference between the amount realized and the unitholder s tax basis for the units
sold. A unitholder s amount realized will be measured by the sum of the cash or the fair market value of other property received by him plus his
share of our nonrecourse liabilities. Because the amount realized includes a unitholder s share of our nonrecourse liabilities, the gain recognized
on the sale of units could result in a tax liability in excess of any cash received from the sale.

Prior distributions from us that in the aggregate were in excess of cumulative net taxable income for a common unit and, therefore, decreased a
unitholder s tax basis in that common unit will, in effect, become taxable income if the common unit is sold at a price greater than the unitholder s
tax basis in that common unit, even if the price received is less than his original cost.

Except as noted below, gain or loss recognized by a unitholder, other than a dealer in units, on the sale or exchange of a unit will generally be
taxable as capital gain or loss. Capital gain recognized by an individual on the sale of units held for more than twelve months will generally be
taxed at the U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to long-term capital gains. However, a portion of this gain or loss, which will likely be
substantial, will be separately computed and taxed as ordinary income or loss under Section 751 of the Internal Revenue Code to the extent
attributable to assets giving rise to depreciation recapture or other unrealized receivables orto inventory items we own. The term unrealized
receivables includes potential recapture items, including depreciation recapture. Ordinary income attributable to unrealized receivables,

inventory items and depreciation recapture may exceed net taxable gain realized upon the sale of a unit and may be recognized even if there is a
net taxable loss realized on the sale of a unit. Thus, a unitholder may recognize both ordinary income and a capital loss upon a sale of units.
Capital losses may offset capital gains and no more than $3,000 of ordinary income each year, in the case of individuals, and may only be used

to offset capital gains in the case of corporations.

The IRS has ruled that a partner who acquires interests in a partnership in separate transactions must combine those interests and maintain a
single adjusted tax basis for all those interests. Upon a sale or other disposition of less than all of those interests, a portion of that tax basis must
be allocated to the interests sold using an equitable apportionment method, which generally means that the tax basis allocated to the interest sold
equals an amount that bears the same relation to the partner s tax basis in his entire interest in the partnership as the value of the interest sold
bears to the value of the partner s entire interest in the partnership. Treasury Regulations under Section 1223 of the Internal Revenue Code allow
a selling unitholder who can identify common units transferred with an ascertainable holding period to elect to use the actual holding period of
the common units transferred. Thus, according to the ruling discussed above, a common unitholder will be unable to select high or low basis
common units to sell as would be the case with corporate stock, but, according to the Treasury Regulations, he may designate specific common
units sold for purposes of determining the holding period of units transferred. A unitholder electing to use the actual holding period of common
units transferred must consistently use that identification method for all subsequent sales or exchanges of common units. A unitholder
considering the purchase of additional units or a sale of common units purchased in separate transactions is urged to consult his tax advisor as to
the possible consequences of this ruling and application of the Treasury Regulations.

Specific provisions of the Internal Revenue Code affect the taxation of some financial products and securities, including partnership interests, by
treating a taxpayer as having sold an appreciated partnership interest, one in which gain would be recognized if it were sold, assigned or
terminated at its fair market value, if the taxpayer or related persons enter(s) into:

a short sale;

an offsetting notional principal contract; or

a futures or forward contract;
in each case, with respect to the partnership interest or substantially identical property.

Moreover, if a taxpayer has previously entered into a short sale, an offsetting notional principal contract or a futures or forward contract with
respect to the partnership interest, the taxpayer will be treated as having sold that position if the taxpayer or a related person then acquires the
partnership interest or substantially identical property. The Secretary of the Treasury is also authorized to issue regulations that treat a taxpayer
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Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees

In general, our taxable income and losses will be determined annually, will be prorated on a monthly basis and will be subsequently apportioned
among the unitholders in proportion to the number of units owned by each of them as of the opening of the applicable exchange on the first
business day of the month, which we refer to in this prospectus as the Allocation Date. However, gain or loss realized on a sale or other
disposition of our assets other than in the ordinary course of business will be allocated among the unitholders on the Allocation Date in the
month in which that gain or loss is recognized. As a result, a unitholder transferring units may be allocated income, gain, loss and deduction
realized after the date of transfer.

Although simplifying conventions are contemplated by the Internal Revenue Code and most publicly traded partnerships use similar simplifying
conventions, the use of this method may not be permitted under existing Treasury Regulations as there is no direct or indirect controlling
authority on this issue. The Department of the Treasury and the IRS have issued proposed Treasury Regulations that provide a safe harbor
pursuant to which a publicly traded partnership may use a similar monthly simplifying convention to allocate tax items among transferor and
transferee unitholders, although such tax items must be prorated on a daily basis. Nonetheless, the proposed regulations do not specifically
authorize the use of the proration method we have adopted. Existing publicly traded partnerships are entitled to rely on these proposed Treasury
Regulations; however, they are not binding on the IRS and are subject to change until final Treasury Regulations are issued. Accordingly,
Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion on the validity of this method of allocating income and deductions between transferor and
transferee unitholders because the issue has not been finally resolved by the IRS or the courts. If this method is not allowed under the Treasury
Regulations, or only applies to transfers of less than all of the unitholder s interest, our taxable income or losses might be reallocated among the
unitholders. We are authorized to revise our method of allocation between transferor and transferee unitholders, as well as unitholders whose
interests vary during a taxable year, to conform to a method permitted under future Treasury Regulations.

A unitholder who disposes of common units prior to the record date set for a cash distribution for any quarter will be allocated items of our
income, gain, loss and deductions attributable to the month of sale but will not be entitled to receive that cash distribution.

Notification Requirements

A unitholder who sells any of his units is generally required to notify us in writing of that sale within 30 days after the sale (or, if earlier,
January 15 of the year following the sale). A purchaser of units who purchases units from another unitholder is also generally required to notify
us in writing of that purchase within 30 days after the purchase. Upon receiving such notifications, we are required to notify the IRS of that
transaction and to furnish specified information to the transferor and transferee. Failure to notify us of a purchase may, in some cases, lead to the
imposition of penalties. However, these reporting requirements do not apply to a sale by an individual who is a citizen of the U.S. and who
effects the sale or exchange through a broker who will satisfy such requirements.

Constructive Termination

We will be considered to have terminated our tax partnership for federal income tax purposes if there are sales or exchanges which, in the
aggregate, constitute 50% or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period. For purposes of measuring
whether the 50% threshold is reached, multiple sales of the same interest are counted only once. A constructive termination results in the closing
of our taxable year for all unitholders. In the case of a unitholder reporting on a taxable year other than a fiscal year ending December 31, the
closing of our taxable year may result in more than twelve months of our taxable income or loss being includable in his taxable income for the
year of termination. A constructive termination occurring on a date other than December 31 will result in us filing two tax returns (and
unitholders could receive two Schedules K-1 if the relief discussed below is not available) for one fiscal year and the cost of the preparation of
these returns will be borne by all common unitholders. We would be required to make new tax elections after a termination, including a new
election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code, and a termination would result in a deferral of our deductions for depreciation. A
termination could also result in penalties if we were unable to determine that the termination had occurred. Moreover, a termination might either
accelerate the application of, or subject us to, any tax legislation enacted before the termination. The IRS has announced a publicly traded
partnership technical termination relief procedure whereby if a publicly traded partnership that has technically terminated requests publicly
traded partnership technical termination relief and the IRS grants such relief, among other things, the partnership will only have to provide one
Schedule K-1 to unitholders for the year notwithstanding two partnership tax years.
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Uniformity of Units

Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of units, we must maintain uniformity of the economic and tax characteristics of the units
to a purchaser of these units. In the absence of uniformity, we may be unable to completely comply with a number of federal income tax
requirements, both statutory and regulatory. A lack of uniformity can result from a literal application of Treasury Regulation

Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6). Any non-uniformity could have a negative impact on the value of the units. Please read  Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Section 754 Election. We depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to unrealized appreciation in the value of
Contributed Property, to the extent of any unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, using a rate of depreciation or amortization derived from the
depreciation or amortization method and useful life applied to the property s unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, or treat that portion as
nonamortizable, to the extent attributable to property the common basis of which is not amortizable, consistent with the regulations under
Section 743 of the Internal Revenue Code, even though that position may be inconsistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6),
which is not expected to directly apply to a material portion of our assets. Please read =~ Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Section 754
Election. To the extent that the Section 743(b) adjustment is attributable to appreciation in value in excess of the unamortized Book-Tax
Disparity, we will apply the rules described in the Treasury Regulations and legislative history. If we determine that this position cannot
reasonably be taken, we may adopt a depreciation and amortization position under which all purchasers acquiring units in the same month would
receive depreciation and amortization deductions, whether attributable to common basis or a Section 743(b) adjustment, based upon the same
applicable rate as if they had purchased a direct interest in our assets. If this position is adopted, it may result in lower annual depreciation and
amortization deductions than would otherwise be allowable to some unitholders and risk the loss of depreciation and amortization deductions not
taken in the year that these deductions are otherwise allowable. This position will not be adopted if we determine that the loss of depreciation
and amortization deductions will have a material adverse effect on the unitholders. If we choose not to utilize this aggregate method, we may use
any other reasonable depreciation and amortization method to preserve the uniformity of the intrinsic tax characteristics of any units that would
not have a material adverse effect on the unitholders. In either case, and as stated above under =~ Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership

Section 754 Election, Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion with respect to these methods. Moreover, the IRS may challenge any
method of depreciating the Section 743(b) adjustment described in this paragraph. If this challenge were sustained, the uniformity of units might
be affected, and the gain from the sale of units might be increased without the benefit of additional deductions. Please read  Disposition of
Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Tax-Exempt Organizations and Other Investors

Ownership of units by employee benefit plans, other tax-exempt organizations, non-resident aliens, non-U.S. corporations and other non-U.S.
persons raises issues unique to those investors and, as described below to a limited extent, may have substantially adverse tax consequences to
them. If you are a tax-exempt entity or a non-U.S. person, you should consult your tax advisor before investing in our common units. Employee
benefit plans and most other organizations exempt from federal income tax, including individual retirement accounts and other retirement plans,
are subject to federal income tax on unrelated business taxable income. Virtually all of our income allocated to a unitholder that is a tax-exempt
organization will be unrelated business taxable income and will be taxable to it.

Non-resident aliens and non-U.S. corporations, trusts or estates that own units will be considered to be engaged in business in the U.S. because
of the ownership of units. As a consequence, they will be required to file federal tax returns to report their share of our income, gain, loss or
deduction and pay federal income tax at regular rates on their share of our net income or gain. Moreover, under rules applicable to publicly
traded partnerships, our quarterly distribution to non-U.S. unitholders will be subject to withholding at the highest applicable effective tax rate.
Each non-U.S. unitholder must obtain a taxpayer identification number from the IRS and submit that number to our transfer agent on a Form
W-8BEN or applicable substitute form in order to obtain credit for these withholding taxes. A change in applicable law may require us to change
these procedures.

In addition, because a non-U.S. corporation that owns units will be treated as engaged in a U.S. trade or business, that corporation may be

subject to the U.S. branch profits tax at a rate of 30%, in addition to regular federal income tax, on its share of our earnings and profits, as

adjusted for changes in the non-U.S. corporation s U.S. net equity, that is effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business. That
tax may be reduced
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or eliminated by an income tax treaty between the U.S. and the country in which the non-U.S. corporate unitholder is a qualified resident. In
addition, this type of unitholder is subject to special information reporting requirements under Section 6038C of the Internal Revenue Code.

A non-U.S. unitholder who sells or otherwise disposes of a common unit will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gain realized from the sale
or disposition of that unit to the extent the gain is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the non-U.S. unitholder. Under a ruling
published by the IRS, interpreting the scope of effectively connected income, a non-U.S. unitholder would be considered to be engaged in a
trade or business in the U.S. by virtue of the U.S. activities of the partnership, and part or all of that unitholder s gain would be effectively
connected with that unitholder s indirect U.S. trade or business. Moreover, under the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act, a non-U.S.
unitholder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax upon the sale or disposition of a common unit if (i) he owned (directly or
constructively applying certain attribution rules) more than 5% of our common units at any time during the five-year period ending on the date
of such disposition and (ii) 50% or more of the fair market value of all of our assets consisted of U.S. real property interests at any time during
the shorter of the period during which such unitholder held the common units or the five-year period ending on the date of disposition.
Currently, we believe that more than 50% of our assets consist of U.S. real property interests and we do not expect that to change in the
foreseeable future. Therefore, non-U.S. unitholdolders may be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gain from the sale or disposition of their
units.

Administrative Matters
Information Returns and Audit Procedures

We intend to furnish to each unitholder, within 90 days after the close of each calendar year, specific tax information, including a Schedule K-1,
which describes his share of our income, gain, loss and deduction for our preceding taxable year. In preparing this information, which will not be
reviewed by counsel, we will take various accounting and reporting positions, some of which have been mentioned earlier, to determine each
unitholder s share of income, gain, loss and deduction. We cannot assure you that those positions will yield a result that conforms to the
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, Treasury Regulations or administrative interpretations of the IRS. Neither we nor Andrews Kurth
LLP can assure prospective unitholders that the IRS will not successfully contend in court that those positions are impermissible. Any challenge
by the IRS could negatively affect the value of the units.

The IRS may audit our federal income tax information returns. Adjustments resulting from an IRS audit may require each unitholder to adjust a
prior year s tax liability, and possibly may result in an audit of his return.

Any audit of a unitholder s return could result in adjustments not related to our returns as well as those related to our returns.

Partnerships generally are treated as separate entities for purposes of federal tax audits, judicial review of administrative adjustments by the IRS
and tax settlement proceedings. The tax treatment of partnership items of income, gain, loss and deduction are determined in a partnership
proceeding rather than in separate proceedings with the partners. The Internal Revenue Code requires that one partner be designated as the Tax
Matters Partner for these purposes. Our partnership agreement names American Midstream GP, LLC as our Tax Matters Partner.

The Tax Matters Partner has made and will make some elections on our behalf and on behalf of unitholders. In addition, the Tax Matters Partner
can extend the statute of limitations for assessment of tax deficiencies against unitholders for items in our returns. The Tax Matters Partner may
bind a unitholder with less than a 1% profits interest in us to a settlement with the IRS unless that unitholder elects, by filing a statement with the
IRS, not to give that authority to the Tax Matters Partner. The Tax Matters Partner may seek judicial review, by which all the unitholders are
bound, of a final partnership administrative adjustment and, if the Tax Matters Partner fails to seek judicial review, judicial review may be
sought by any unitholder having at least a 1% interest in profits or by any group of unitholders having in the aggregate at least a 5% interest in
profits. However, only one action for judicial review will go forward, and each unitholder with an interest in the outcome may participate.

A unitholder must file a statement with the IRS identifying the treatment of any item on his federal income tax return that is not consistent with
the treatment of the item on our return. Intentional or negligent disregard of this consistency requirement may subject a unitholder to substantial
penalties.
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Nominee Reporting

Persons who hold an interest in us as a nominee for another person are required to furnish to us:

the name, address and taxpayer identification number of the beneficial owner and the nominee;

whether the beneficial owner is:

a person that is not a U.S. person;

anon-U.S. government, an international organization or any wholly owned agency or instrumentality of either of the
foregoing; or

a tax-exempt entity;

the amount and description of units held, acquired or transferred for the beneficial owner; and

specific information including the dates of acquisitions and transfers, means of acquisitions and transfers, and acquisition cost for
purchases, as well as the amount of net proceeds from dispositions.
Brokers and financial institutions are required to furnish additional information, including whether they are U.S. persons and specific
information on units they acquire, hold or transfer for their own account. A penalty of $100 per failure, up to a maximum of $1.5 million per
calendar year, is imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for failure to report that information to us. The nominee is required to supply the
beneficial owner of the units with the information furnished to us.

Accuracy-Related Penalties

An additional tax equal to 20% of the amount of any portion of an underpayment of tax that is attributable to one or more specified causes,
including negligence or disregard of rules or regulations, substantial understatements of income tax and substantial valuation misstatements, is
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. No penalty will be imposed, however, for any portion of an underpayment if it is shown that there was a
reasonable cause for that portion and that the taxpayer acted in good faith regarding that portion.

For individuals, a substantial understatement of income tax in any taxable year exists if the amount of the understatement exceeds the greater of
10% of the tax required to be shown on the return for the taxable year or $5,000 ($10,000 for most corporations). The amount of any
understatement subject to penalty generally is reduced if any portion is attributable to a position adopted on the return:

for which there is, or was, substantial authority ; or

as to which there is a reasonable basis and the pertinent facts of that position are disclosed on the return.
If any item of income, gain, loss or deduction included in the distributive shares of unitholders might result in that kind of an understatement of
income for which no substantial authority exists, we must disclose the pertinent facts on our return. In addition, we will make a reasonable effort
to furnish sufficient information for unitholders to make adequate disclosure on their returns and to take other actions as may be appropriate to
permit unitholders to avoid liability for this penalty. More stringent rules apply to tax shelters, which we do not believe includes us, or any of our
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A substantial valuation misstatement exists if (a) the value of any property, or the adjusted basis of any property, claimed on a tax return is 150%
or more of the amount determined to be the correct amount of the valuation or adjusted basis, (b) the price for any property or services (or for the
use of property) claimed on any such return with respect to any transaction between persons described in Internal Revenue Code Section 482 is
200% or more (or 50% or less) of the amount determined under Section 482 to be the correct amount of such price, or (c) the net Internal
Revenue Code Section 482 transfer price adjustment for the taxable year exceeds the lesser of $5 million or 10% of the taxpayer s gross receipts.
No penalty is imposed unless the portion of the underpayment attributable to a substantial valuation misstatement exceeds $5,000 ($10,000 for
most corporations). If the valuation claimed on a return is 200% or more than the correct valuation or certain other thresholds are met, the
penalty imposed increases to 40%. We do not anticipate making any valuation misstatements.

In addition, the 20% accuracy-related penalty also applies to any portion of an underpayment of tax that is attributable to transactions lacking
economic substance. To the extent that such transactions are not disclosed, the penalty imposed is increased to 40%. Additionally, there is no
reasonable cause defense to the imposition of this penalty to such transactions.
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Reportable Transactions.

If we were to engage ina reportable transaction, we (and possibly you and others) would be required to make a detailed disclosure of the
transaction to the IRS. A transaction may be a reportable transaction based upon any of several factors, including the fact that it is a type of tax
avoidance transaction publicly identified by the IRS as a listed transaction or that it produces certain kinds of losses for partnerships, individuals,
S corporations, and trusts in excess of $2 million in any single year, or $4 million in any combination of six successive tax years. Our

participation in a reportable transaction could increase the likelihood that our federal income tax information return (and possibly your tax

return) would be audited by the IRS. Please read  Information Returns and Audit Procedures.

Moreover, if we were to participate in a reportable transaction with a significant purpose to avoid or evade tax, or in any listed transaction, you
may be subject to the following additional consequences:

accuracy-related penalties with a broader scope, significantly narrower exceptions, and potentially greater amounts than described
above at Accuracy-Related Penalties ;

for those persons otherwise entitled to deduct interest on federal tax deficiencies, nondeductibility of interest on any resulting tax
liability; and

in the case of a listed transaction, an extended statute of limitations.
We do not expect to engage in any reportable transactions.

Recent Legislative Developments

The present federal income tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships, including us, or an investment in our common units may be modified

by administrative, legislative or judicial interpretation at any time. For example, from time to time, members of the U.S. Congress propose and
consider substantive changes to the existing federal income tax laws that affect publicly traded partnerships. Currently, one such legislative
proposal would eliminate the qualifying income tax exception upon which we rely for our treatment as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. Please read  Partnership Status. We are unable to predict whether any such changes will ultimately be enacted. However, it is possible
that a change in law could affect us and may be applied retroactively. Any such changes could negatively impact the value of an investment in

our units.

State, Local and Other Tax Considerations

In addition to federal income taxes, you likely will be subject to other taxes, such as state and local income taxes, unincorporated business taxes,
and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that may be imposed by the various jurisdictions in which we conduct business or own property or in
which you are a resident. We currently conduct business or own property in several states, most of which impose personal income taxes on
individuals. Most of these states also impose an income or other entity-level tax on corporations and other entities. Moreover, we may also do
business or own property in other states in the future that impose income or similar taxes on individuals, corporations and other entities.
Although an analysis of those various taxes is not presented here, each prospective unitholder should consider their potential impact on his
investment in us. A unitholder may be required to file income tax returns and to pay income taxes in many of these jurisdictions in which we
conduct business or own property and may be subject to penalties for failure to comply with those requirements. In some jurisdictions, tax losses
may not produce a tax benefit in the year incurred and may not be available to offset income in subsequent taxable years. Some of the
jurisdictions may require us, or we may elect, to withhold a percentage of income from amounts to be distributed to a unitholder who is not a
resident of the jurisdiction. Withholding, the amount of which may be greater or less than a particular unitholder s income tax liability to the
jurisdiction, generally does not relieve a nonresident unitholder from the obligation to file an income tax return. Amounts withheld will be
treated as if distributed to unitholders for purposes of determining the amounts distributed by us. Please read =~ Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership Entity-Level Collections. Based on current law and our estimate of our future operations, our general partner anticipates that any
amounts required to be withheld will not be material.

It is the responsibility of each unitholder to investigate the legal and tax consequences, under the laws of pertinent states and localities,
of his investment in us. Accordingly, each prospective unitholder is urged to consult his own tax counsel or other advisor with regard to
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those matters. Further, it is the responsibility of each unitholder to file all state, local and non-U.S., as well as U.S. federal tax returns,
that may be required of him. Andrews Kurth LLP has not rendered an opinion on the state, local or non-U.S. tax consequences of an
investment in us.

40

Table of Contents 177



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten
INVESTMENT IN THE PARTNERSHIP BY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

An investment in us by an employee benefit plan is subject to additional considerations because the investments of these plans are subject to the
fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and restrictions imposed by Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code.
For these purposes, the term employee benefit plan includes, but is not limited to, qualified pension, profit-sharing and stock bonus plans, Keogh
plans, simplified employee pension plans and tax deferred annuities or IRAs established or maintained by an employer or employee

organization. Among other things, the person with investment discretion with respect to the assets of an employee benefit plan, often called a
fiduciary, should consider:

whether the investment is prudent under Section 404(a)(1)(B) of ERISA;

whether in making the investment, that plan will satisfy the diversification requirements of Section 404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA; and

whether the investment will result in recognition of unrelated business taxable income by the plan and, if so, the potential after-tax
investment return.
A plan fiduciary should determine whether an investment in us is authorized by the appropriate governing instrument and is a proper investment
for the plan.

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code prohibits employee benefit plans, and IRAs that are not considered part of
an employee benefit plan, from engaging in specified transactions involving plan assets with parties that are parties in interest under ERISA or
disqualified persons under the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the plan.

In addition to considering whether the purchase of common units is a prohibited transaction, a fiduciary of an employee benefit plan should
consider whether the plan will, by investing in us, be deemed to own an undivided interest in our assets, with the result that the Partnership also
would be a fiduciary of the plan and our operations would be subject to the regulatory restrictions of ERISA, including its prohibited transaction
rules, as well as the prohibited transaction rules of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Department of Labor regulations and Section 3(42) of ERISA provide guidance with respect to whether the assets of an entity in which
employee benefit plans acquire equity interests would be deemed plan assets under some circumstances. Under these rules, an entity s assets
would not be considered to be plan assets if, among other things:

the equity interests acquired by employee benefit plans are publicly offered securities i.e., the equity interests are widely held by 100
or more investors independent of the issuer and each other, freely transferable and registered under some provisions of the federal
securities laws;

the entity is an operating company, i.e., it is primarily engaged in the production or sale of a product or service other than the
investment of capital either directly or through a majority owned subsidiary or subsidiaries; or

there is no significant investment by benefit plan investors, which is defined to mean that less than 25% of the value of each class of
equity interest, disregarding some interests held by the Partnership, its affiliates, and some other persons, is held by employee benefit
plans subject to Part 4 of Title I of ERISA, IRAs and other plans subject to Section 4975 of the Code and any entity whose
underlying assets include plan assets by reason of such plan s investment in such entity.
Our assets should not be considered plan assets under these regulations because it is expected that the investment will satisfy the requirements in
the first bullet above.
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Plan fiduciaries contemplating a purchase of our common units should consult with their own counsel regarding the consequences under ERISA
and the Internal Revenue Code in light of the serious penalties imposed on persons who engage in prohibited transactions or other violations.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We are registering the common units on behalf of the selling unitholder. As used in this prospectus, selling unitholder includes donees and
pledgees selling common units received from a named selling unitholder after the date of this prospectus.

Under this prospectus, the selling unitholder intends to offer our securities to the public:

through one or more broker-dealers;

through underwriters; and

directly to investors.
The selling unitholder may price the common units offered from time to time:

at market prices prevailing at the time of any sale under this registration statement;

at prices related to market prices; or

at negotiated prices.
We will pay the costs and expenses of the registration and offering of the common units offered hereby. We will not pay any underwriting fees,
discounts and selling commissions allocable to the selling unitholder s sale of its securities, which will be paid by the selling unitholder.
Broker-dealers may act as agent or may purchase securities as principal and thereafter resell the securities from time to time:

in or through one or more transactions (which may involve crosses and block transactions) or distributions;

on the New York Stock Exchange;

in the over-the-counter market; or

in private transactions.
Broker-dealers or underwriters may receive compensation in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may receive commissions
from purchasers of the securities for whom they may act as agents. If any broker-dealer purchases the securities as principal, it may effect resales
of the securities from time to time to or through other broker-dealers, and other broker-dealers may receive compensation in the form of
concessions or commissions from the purchasers of securities for whom they may act as agents.

To the extent required, the names of the specific managing underwriter or underwriters, if any, as well as other important information, will be set
forth in prospectus supplements. In that event, the discounts and commissions the selling unitholder will allow or pay to the underwriters, if any,
and the discounts and commissions the underwriters may allow or pay to dealers or agents, if any, will be set forth in, or may be calculated from,
the prospectus supplements. Any underwriters, brokers, dealers and agents who participate in any sale of the securities may also engage in
transactions with, or perform services for, us or our affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses.
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In addition, the selling unitholder has advised us that it may sell the common units in compliance with Rule 144, if available, or pursuant to other
available exemptions from the registration requirements under the Securities Act, rather than pursuant to this prospectus.

Because the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ( FINRA ) views our common units as interests in a direct participation program, any
offering of common units under the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part will be made in compliance with Rule 2310 of
the FINRA Conduct Rules.

To the extent required, this prospectus may be amended or supplemented from time to time to describe a particular plan of distribution. The
place and time of delivery for the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered will be set forth in the accompanying prospectus
supplement.

In connection with offerings of securities under the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part and in compliance with
applicable law, underwriters, brokers or dealers may engage in transactions that stabilize or maintain the market price of the securities at levels
above those that might otherwise prevail in the open market. Specifically, underwriters, brokers or dealers may over-allot in connection with
offerings, creating a short position in the securities for their own accounts. For the purpose of covering a syndicate short position or stabilizing
the price
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of the securities, the underwriters, brokers or dealers may place bids for the securities or effect purchases of the securities in the open market.
Finally, the underwriters may impose a penalty whereby selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or other brokers or dealers for
distribution of the securities in offerings may be reclaimed by the syndicate if the syndicate repurchases previously distributed securities in
transactions to cover short positions, in stabilization transactions or otherwise. These activities may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the
market price of the securities, which may be higher than the price that might otherwise prevail in the open market, and, if commenced, may be
discontinued at any time.

In compliance with FINRA guidelines, the maximum consideration or discount to be received by any FINRA member or independent broker
dealer may not exceed 8% of the aggregate amount of the securities offered pursuant to this prospectus and any applicable prospectus
supplement.

SELLING UNITHOLDER

This prospectus covers the offer and sale of up to 725,120 common units by the selling unitholder identified below. These common units
represent securities received by the selling unitholder upon conversion of its limited partnership interests in us immediately prior to the closing
of our initial public offering in July 2011. The total amount of common units that may be sold hereunder will not exceed the number of units
offered hereby. Please read Plan of Distribution.

The following table sets forth information about the maximum number of common units that may be offered from time to time by the selling
unitholder under this prospectus. The selling unitholder identified below may currently hold or acquire at any time common units in addition to
those registered hereby. Accordingly, we cannot give an estimate as to the number of units that will be held by the selling unitholder upon
termination of this offering.

Information concerning the selling unitholder may change from time to time and, if necessary, we will supplement this prospectus accordingly.

Number
Total of
Number of Percentage of Units Percentage
Common Units Number of Beneficially of Units
Units Outstanding Units that Owned Outstanding
Beneficially Prior to May Be After After
Selling Unitholder Owned Offering(2) Sold Offering(3) Offering
AIM Midstream Holdings, LLC (1) 725,120 8.0% 725,120 0%

(1) Information as of September 7, 2012. The address of AIM Midstream Holdings, LLC is 950 Tower Lane, Suite 800, Foster City,
California 94404. Robert B. Hellman, Jr., Matthew P. Carbone and George E. McCown are the natural persons who share voting
and dispositive power over the securities owned by AIM Midstream Holdings, LLC. Messrs. Hellman, Carbone and McCown
disclaim beneficial ownership of such securities except to the extent of the pecuniary interest of each therein.

(2) Calculated based on 9,107,916 common units outstanding as of September 7, 2012.

(3) Assumes all units are sold.

Related Party Transactions

Following our initial public offering, AIM Midstream Holdings, LLC is the beneficial owner of 725,120 of our common units and all of our
subordinated units, representing a combined 57.7% limited partner interest in us as of September 7, 2012. In addition, AIM Midstream Holdings,
LLC owns and controls our general partner, which owns a 2.0% general partner interest in us and all of our incentive distribution rights.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the securities will be passed upon for us by Andrews Kurth LLP, Houston, Texas. If certain legal
matters in connection with an offering of the securities made by this prospectus and a related prospectus supplement are passed on by counsel
for the underwriters of such offering, that counsel will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement related to that offering.
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EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, which contains an explanatory
paragraph relating to significant transactions with related parties as described in Note 17 to the financial statements, an independent registered
public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The audited historical i) statement of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at November 1, 2011 and ii) statement of revenues in excess of
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010 of the 50% undivided interest in the Burns Point Processing Plant, included in Exhibit 99.2 of
the American Midstream Partners, LP s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated February 9, 2012 have been so incorporated in reliance on the
report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in
auditing and accounting.

The audited historical financial statements of Chatom Assets, included in Exhibit 99.2 of the American Midstream Partners, LP s Current Report
on Form 8-K/A dated September 11, 2012 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, that registers the offer and sale of the
securities covered by this prospectus. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about
us. In addition, we file annual, quarterly and other reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file
with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the SEC s Public Reference Room. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Our SEC filings are
available on the SEC s web site at http://www.sec.gov. You also can obtain information about us at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange,
20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we have filed with the SEC. This means that we can disclose important
information to you without actually including the specific information in this prospectus by referring you to other documents filed separately

with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus. Information that we later provide to the SEC,

and which is deemed to be filed with the SEC, will automatically update information previously filed with the SEC, and may replace information
in this prospectus and information previously filed with the SEC.

We incorporate by reference in this prospectus the following documents that we have previously filed with the SEC:

Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35257) for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed on March 19, 2012;

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35257) for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 filed on May 14, 2012 and for the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 filed on August 14, 2012;

Current Reports on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35257) filed on December 6, 2011, as amended by the Form 8-K/A filed on February 10,
2012, April 16, 2012, May 29, 2012, June 1, 2012, June 7, 2012, as amended by the Form 8-K/A filed on June 11, 2012, July 2,
2012, July 9, 2012, as amended by the 8-K/A filed on September 11, 2012, and July 17, 2012; and

The description of our common units contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A (File No. 001-35257) filed on July 26,
2011.
All documents that we file pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, after the date of
this prospectus and until our offerings hereunder are completed will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus and will be a
part of this prospectus from the date of filing of the document. Nothing in this prospectus shall be deemed to incorporate information furnished
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to, but not filed with, the SEC pursuant to Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K (or corresponding information furnished under Item 9.01 or
included as an exhibit).

We make available free of charge on or through our Internet website, http.//www.americanmindstream.com, our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Information
contained on our Internet website is not part of this prospectus.
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You may obtain any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus from the SEC through the SEC s website at the address
provided above. You also may request a copy of any document incorporated by reference in this prospectus (excluding any exhibits to those
documents, unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference in this document), at no cost, by visiting our Internet website at
http://www.americanmindstream.com, or by writing or calling us at the following address:

Investor Relations
American Midstream Partners, LP
1614 15th Street, Suite 300
Denver, Colorado 80202
Telephone: (720) 457-6060
ir@americanmidstream.com

You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone else to
provide you with any information. You should not assume that the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus is
accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of each document.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.
Set forth below are the expenses expected to be incurred in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities registered hereby.
With the exception of the SEC registration fee and the FINRA filing fee, the amounts set forth below are estimates.

SEC registration fee $ 47,420
FINRA filing fee 60,500
Printing and engraving expenses

Accounting and consulting fees and expenses

Legal fees and expenses

Transfer agent and registrar fees

Miscellaneous

Total $

L R R

* These fees are calculated based on the number of issuances and amount of securities to be offered, and accordingly cannot be estimated at this
time.

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.
American Midstream Partners, LP

Subject to any terms, conditions or restrictions set forth in the partnership agreement, Section 17-108 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited
Partnership Act empowers a Delaware limited partnership to indemnify and hold harmless any partner or other person from and against any and
all claims and demands whatsoever. The section of the prospectus entitled The Partnership Agreement Indemnification discloses that we will
generally indemnity officers, directors and affiliates of our general partner to the fullest extent permitted by the law against all losses, claims,
damages or similar events and is incorporated herein by reference.

The underwriting agreement to be entered into in connection with the sale of the securities offered pursuant to this registration statement, the
form of which will be filed as an exhibit to this registration statement, provides for indemnification of American Midstream Partners, LP and our
general partner, their officers and directors, and any person who controls our general partner, including indemnification for liabilities under the
Securities Act.

American Midstream GP, LLC

Subject to any terms, conditions or restrictions set forth in the limited liability company agreement, Section 18-108 of the Delaware Limited
Liability Company Act empowers a Delaware limited liability company to indemnify and hold harmless any member or manager or other person
from and against any and all claims and demands whatsoever.

Under the limited liability agreement of our general partner, in most circumstances, our general partner will indemnify the following persons, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities (joint or several), expenses (including legal
fees and expenses), judgments, fines, penalties, interest, settlements or other amounts arising from any and all claims, demands, actions, suits or
proceedings (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative):
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any person who is or was an affiliate of our general partner (other than us and our subsidiaries);

any person who is or was a member, partner, officer, director, employee, agent or trustee of our general partner or any affiliate of our
general partner;

any person who is or was serving at the request of our general partner or any affiliate of our general partner as an officer, director,
employee, member, partner, agent, fiduciary or trustee of another person; and

any person designated by our general partner.
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Our general partner will purchase insurance covering its officers and directors against liabilities asserted and expenses incurred in connection
with their activities as officers and directors of our general partner or any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries.

American Midstream Finance Corporation

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law empowers a Delaware corporation to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of the
corporation) by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or other enterprise,
against expenses (including attorneys fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the
best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was
unlawful. Similar indemnity is authorized for such persons against expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred in
connection with the defense or settlement of any such threatened, pending or completed action or suit if such person acted in good faith and in a
manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and provided further (unless a court of competent
jurisdiction otherwise provides) such person shall not have been adjudged liable to the corporation. Any such indemnification may that be made
only as authorized in each specific case upon a determination by the stockholders or disinterested directors or by independent legal counsel in a
written opinion that indemnification is proper because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct.

Section 145 further authorizes a corporation to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation or enterprise, against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such,
whether or not the corporation would otherwise have the power to indemnify him under Section 145. Also, the bylaws of American Midstream
Finance Corporation provide for the indemnification of directors and officers of and such directors and officers who serve at the request of the
company as directors, officers or employees of any other enterprise against certain liabilities under certain circumstances.

Item 16. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description
1.1* Form of Underwriting Agreement.
4.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of American Midstream Partners, LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to American
Midstream Partners, LP Form S-1 filed March 31, 2011 (File No. 333-173191))
4.2 Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of American Midstream Partners, LP (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to American Midstream Partners, LP Form 8-K filed August 4, 2011 (File No 001-35257))
43 Certificate of Formation of American Midstream GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to American Midstream
Partners, LP Form S-1 filed March 31, 2011 (File No. 333-173191))
44 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of American Midstream GP, LLC A Delaware Limited Liability
Company Dated as of November 4, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to American Midstream Partners, LP Form
S-1 filed March 31, 2011 (File No. 333-173191))
4.5 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of American Midstream GP, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to American Midstream Partners, LP Form S-1/A filed July 1, 2011 (File No.
333-173191))
4.6+ Certificate of Incorporation of American Midstream Finance Corporation.
4.7+ Bylaws of American Midstream Finance Corporation.
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4.8+ Form of Senior Debt Indenture.
4.9+ Form of Subordinated Debt Indenture.
4.10% Form of Senior Debt Securities.
4.11* Form of Subordinated Debt Securities.
5.1+ Opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP as to the legality of the securities being registered.
8.1+ Opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP relating to tax matters.
12.1+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
23.1+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.2+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.3+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.4+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.5+ Consent of Andrews Kurth LLP (contained in Exhibit 5.1).
23.6+ Consent of Andrews Kurth LLP (contained in Exhibit 8.1).
241+ Powers of Attorney (included on the signature pages).
242+ Powers of Attorney.
25.1+ Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification with respect to the Senior Debt Indenture.
25.2+ Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification with respect to the Subordinated Debt Indenture.

+ Filed herewith.
* To be filed as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K or in a post-effective amendment to this registration statement.

Item 17. UNDERTAKINGS.
(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
(1) To include any prospectus required by section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective
amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration
statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered
would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be
reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price
represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the
effective registration statement.

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any
material change to such information in the registration statement;

Provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(1), (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(iii) above do not apply if the information required to be included in a
post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to
section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a
form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement.
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(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a
new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.

(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:

(i) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the
filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement: and

(i1) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B
relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by section 10(a) of
the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of
prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As
provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a
new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in
a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by
reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of
sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the
registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date.

(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of
the securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this
registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to
such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be
considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(1) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;

(i1) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the
undersigned registrant;

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or
its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of
the registrant s annual report pursuant to section 13(a) or section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing
of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant to section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in
the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities
and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore,
unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred
or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such
director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being

1I-4

Table of Contents 192



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction of the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and
will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(d) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part
of this registration statement in reliance on Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or
(4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.

(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of
prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that
time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

1I-5

Table of Contents 193



Edgar Filing: BROOKS AUTOMATION INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Denver, State of Colorado, on September 11, 2012.

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, LP
By: AMERICAN MiDsTREAM GP, LLC
its general partner

By: /s/ Brian F. Bierbach
Name: Brian F. Bierbach

Title: Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below appoints Brian F. Bierbach and Daniel C. Campbell, and each of them, as his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities,
to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments thereto) to this Registration Statement and any Registration Statement
(including any amendment thereto) for this offering that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite
and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or would do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them of their or his substitute and substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement has been signed below by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Brian F. Bierbach Chief Executive Officer, President and September 11, 2012
Director

Brian F. Bierbach
(principal executive officer)

/s/ Daniel C. Campbell Senior Vice President and Chief Financial September 11, 2012
Officer (principal financial officer and
Daniel C. Campbell principal accounting officer)
/s/ Robert B. Hellman, Jr. Director September 11, 2012

Robert B. Hellman, Jr.
/s/ Edward O. Diffendal Director September 11, 2012

Edward O. Diffendal
/s/ L. Kent Moore Director September 11, 2012

L. Kent Moore
/s/ David L. Page Director September 11, 2012
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/s/ Gerald A. Tywoniuk
Gerald A. Tywoniuk
/s/ Eileen A. Aptman
Eileen A. Aptman
/s/ Donald H. Anderson

Donald H. Anderson
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Denver, State of Colorado, on September 11, 2012.

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM FINANCE
CORPORATION

By: /s/ Brian F. Bierbach
Name: Brian F. Bierbach
Title: Chief Executive Officer and President
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below appoints Brian F. Bierbach and Daniel C. Campbell, and each of them, as his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities,
to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments thereto) to this Registration Statement and any Registration Statement
(including any amendment thereto) for this offering that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite
and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or would do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them of their or his substitute and substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement has been signed below by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Brian F. Bierbach Chief Executive Officer and President September 11, 2012
Brian F. Bierbach (principal executive officer)
/s/ Daniel C. Campbell Senior Vice President and Chief Financial September 11, 2012
Officer (principal financial officer and
Daniel C. Campbell principal accounting officer)
/s/ Robert B. Hellman, Jr. Sole Director September 11, 2012

Robert B. Hellman, Jr.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Denver, State of Colorado, on September 11, 2012.

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM, LLC

By: AMERICAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, LP, its sole
member

By: AMERrICAN MiDsTREAM GP, LLC, its general
partner

By: /s/ Brian F. Bierbach
Name: Brian F. Bierbach
Title: Chief Executive Officer and President

Signature Title Date
/s/ Brian F. Bierbach Chief Executive Officer, President and September 11, 2012
Director

Brian F. Bierbach
(principal executive officer)

/s/ Daniel C. Campbell Senior Vice President and Chief Financial September 11, 2012
Officer (principal financial officer and
Daniel C. Campbell principal accounting officer)
* Director September 11, 2012

Robert B. Hellman, Jr.
* Director September 11, 2012

Edward O. Diffendal
* Director September 11, 2012

L. Kent Moore

* Director September 11, 2012

David L. Page
* Director September 11, 2012

Gerald A. Tywoniuk
* Director September 11, 2012

Eileen A. Aptman
* Director September 11, 2012

Donald H. Anderson
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Denver, State of Colorado, on September 11, 2012.

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM CHATOM, LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM CHATOM UNIT 1, LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM CHATOM UNIT 2, LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM MARKETING, LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (ALABAMA GATHERING), LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (ALABAMA INTRASTATE), LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (ALATENN), LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (BURNS POINT), LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (BAMAGAS INTRASTATE), LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (LOUISIANA INTRASTATE), LLC
AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (MIDLA), LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (MISSISSIPPI), LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (SIGCO INTRASTATE),

LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM (TENNESSEE RIVER),

LLC

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM ONSHORE PIPELINES,

LLC

MID LOUISIANA GAS TRANSMISSION, LLC

By:  AwmEerican Mipstream, LLC, its sole member

By:  AmericaN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, LP, its sole
member

By:  AwmEerican MipstrReam GP, LLC, its general partner

By:  /s/Brian F. Bierbach
Name: Brian F. Bierbach
Title: Chief Executive Officer and
President

Signature Title Date
/s/ Brian F. Bierbach Chief Executive Officer, September 11, 2012

Brian F. Bierbach President and Director

(principal executive officer)
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/s/ Daniel C. Campbell

Daniel C. Campbell

*

Robert B. Hellman, Jr.

*

Edward O. Diffendal

*

L. Kent Moore

*

David L. Page

*

Gerald A. Tywoniuk

*

Eileen A. Aptman

*

Donald H. Anderson

*By: /s/ Daniel C. Campbell
Daniel C. Campbell
Attorney-in-Fact

Table of Contents

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

II-11

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Denver, State of Colorado, on September 11, 2012.

Signature
/s/ Brian F. Bierbach
Brian F. Bierbach
/s/ Daniel C. Campbell

Daniel C. Campbell

Robert B. Hellman, Jr.

*

Edward O. Diffendal

*

L. Kent Moore

*

David L. Page

*

Gerald A. Tywoniuk

*

Eileen A. Aptman

Table of Contents

AMERICAN MIDSTREAM OFFSHORE (SEACREST), LP

By: AMERICAN MipsTREAM, LLC, its general partner
By; AMERICAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, LP, its sole member
By: AMmEricAN MDsTREAM GP, LLC, its general partner

By: /s/ Brian F. Bierbach
Name: Brian F. Bierbach

Title:  Chief Executive Officer and President

Title

Chief Executive Officer, President and Director

(principal executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer (principal financial officer and principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012

September 11, 2012
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N Director September 11, 2012

Donald H. Anderson

*By: /s/ Daniel C. Campbell
Daniel C. Campbell

Attorney-in-fact
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EXHIBIT LIST
Exhibit
Number Description
1.1% Form of Underwriting Agreement.
4.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of American Midstream Partners, LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to American
Midstream Partners, LP Form S-1 filed March 31, 2011 (File No. 333-173191))
4.2 Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of American Midstream Partners, LP (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to American Midstream Partners, LP Form 8-K filed August 4, 2011 (File No 001-35257))
43 Certificate of Formation of American Midstream GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to American Midstream
Partners, LP Form S-1 filed March 31, 2011 (File No. 333-173191))
44 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of American Midstream GP, LLC A Delaware Limited Liability
Company Dated as of November 4, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to American Midstream Partners, LP Form
S-1 filed March 31, 2011 (File No. 333-173191))
4.5 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of American Midstream GP, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to American Midstream Partners, LP Form S-1/A filed July 1, 2011 (File No.
333-173191))
4.6+ Certificate of Incorporation of American Midstream Finance Corporation.
4.7+ Bylaws of American Midstream Finance Corporation.
4.8+ Form of Senior Debt Indenture.
4.9+ Form of Subordinated Debt Indenture.
4.10* Form of Senior Debt Securities.
4.11* Form of Subordinated Debt Securities.
5.1+ Opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP as to the legality of the securities being registered.
8.1+ Opinion of Andrews Kurth LLP relating to tax matters.
12.1+ Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
23.1+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.2+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.3+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.4+ Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
23.5+ Consent of Andrews Kurth LLP (contained in Exhibit 5.1).
23.6+ Consent of Andrews Kurth LLP (contained in Exhibit 8.1).
241+ Powers of Attorney (included on the signature pages).
242+ Powers of Attorney.
25.1+ Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification with respect to the Senior Debt Indenture.
25.2+ Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility and Qualification with respect to the Subordinated Debt Indenture.

+ Filed herewith.
* To be filed as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K or in a post-effective amendment to this registration statement.
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